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COMPANY PROFILE
ANCILMY

Kanggiao Service Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Kanggiao
Service “or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
referred to as the “Group”, stock code: 2205) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on
October 8, 2020, and was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on July 16,

2021 (the “Listing Date”).

With more than 10 years of hard work and dedication and based in
Central China, Kanggiao Service is deeply rooted in the country.
Kanggiao Service is a reputable comprehensive property management
service provider in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), with a
leading position in Henan Province. We have been involved in various
business covering several types of properties such as residential,
commercial, office buildings, industrial parks, and public properties.
To date, we have served millions of property owners and have won
more than 200 awards. We were ranked TOP100 in China’s property
industry for seven consecutive years, and ranked 29th among the Top
100 Property Service Companies in terms of overall strength in 2022.

“Creating a joyful life through Kanggjiao's considerate services (FZRERLy,
BFEE)
path of urban civilization, and takes “Joyful Service (1% AR )" and

. The Group insists on in-depth study on the development

“Intelligent Technology (£ %% )" as its two core values. From service
concept to supporting services, the Group focuses on all business
forms, all-age groups and all-service scenarios, covering the whole life
cycle of property development. With the combination of modern
management with digital intelligence technology, the Group fully
demonstrates the new value in the era of large-scale properties by
integrating social governance on the basis of community services.

Based on the needs of urban cultural growth and the pain points of
community facilities, the Group launched the “Four Seasons and One
Hall (10 & — &)"
Clubs (F4L)” community activities. Through subdividing groups of
people, the Group organizes community activities for all age groups,

cultural activities in neighborhoods and the “Five

from the elderly to children, from learning to health care and caring
about the needs of people, so that the neighborhood is not only a
physical space, but also a community of life and emotion.

In the future, the Group will take the role as a better life and smart
city service provider to deeply participate in urban services, inject fresh
impetus into new neighborhoods within cities and redefine the
wonderful city life by capitalizing on smart technology!
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

We work together to overcome difficulties. In 2022, the regional
outbreak of 2019 novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") in China
had a significant impact on the economy, society and people’s lives;
the Company’s business centers in various cities in Henan Province
have repeatedly experienced frequent outbreaks of epidemics; the real
estate industry is in a period of deep adjustment, and the recovery is
not as expected; some small and medium-sized real estate developers
have shrunk their business and cut costs to ensure their survival. Faced
with challenges of complex external situations, the Group stepped up
its internal training, continued to improve its service, operation,
organization, digital science and brand strength, and insisted on the
tangibility of intangible services, namely, service standardization,
standardized products, product branding and brand value. Thus, the
main works carried out are as follows:

Quality service-based, standard assessment to
generate income

High-quality service is the foundation of the Group’s survival. With
the planned scale expansion of the Group, the three product lines of
the Company'’s property services, namely, residential business, non-
residential business and city services, have been formed respectively,
matching clear and definite hierarchical service positioning and service
standards, laying a solid foundation for the strategic layout planning
of the Company. The industrial sector focuses on the asset operation
and product premium of “big owners”, solves the product planning
and sales of their new houses, parking spaces and shops, and
improves their product premium ability through sales office
management services, pre-delivery services, consultancy services and
technological services; the asset management and community life of
“small owners” is committed to improving the needs of owners for a
better life, providing second-hand housing rental and sales, asset
custody and loan business, and also meeting the needs of different
owners through group purchase of explosive products, household
decoration, chain food, smart parking and smart charging. Under the
Group's overall business performance objectives, all major product
lines are customer-oriented, operate independently in the market,
mutually integrate internal and external resources, standardize service
under standardized management, put quality service first, and
eliminate losses through digital assessment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Scale expansion to increase efficiency, hand in hand
to develop and expand

Quality development is the goal of the Group. In the year ended
December 31, 2022 (the "Year”), the Group strengthened its
operational capacity and strategically expanded its market-oriented
scale. The Group focused on three directions: urban deep cultivation,
commercial deep cultivation and deep cultivation in the surrounding
areas of the project under management, and focused on the projects
to be delivered in the near future. Through the effective performance
incentive system and the signing of the target responsibility letter, all
employees were encouraged to work together to expand. In this Year,
in addition to the residential business, we also made achievements in
non-residential business such as industrial parks, universities, office
buildings and city services such as rail transit and sanitation; for
example, the signing of Rail Transit Line 1, Suburban Railway Phase |
and Phase Il, Fugou Environmental Sanitation, etc. As of December
31, 2022, Zhengzhou's under management scale has exceeded 15
million sg.m. In addition, the high-quality service has been widely
praised and recognized by the cooperative property developers, and
the service industry chain has been extended to the front end of the
product development of the third-party property developers, so as to
realize the third-party project management of pre-delivery, sales office
and project life cycle services.

Team building and cohesion, unified thinking and
dream building

In this Year, the Group focused on four directions: organizational
efficiency improvement, talent development, safety precautions and
corporate culture:

By adjusting the organizational structure and optimizing the
management and control mode, we have built an efficient and agile
organization, reduced costs and increased efficiency through scientific
and technological hardware and software investment, and constantly
improved per capita efficiency. Compared with the data of the same
period in 2021, the per capita management area, per capita net profit
and personnel cost rate have significantly increased.
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Build internal and external talent supply and development chains in
view of business objectives, and promote the full cycle management
of talents. Through the capacity building and echelon training system
of Kanggiao school, the Group improved the professional and
management ability of internal talents. Completed the development
of 113 front-line service standard operation process courses, the
Group helped the implementation of standards, and constantly
improved the proportion of internal talent training through the
improvement of the five-level talent training system. In 2022, the
proportion of internal talent training has reached 68%.

Employees are the cornerstone of the development of the enterprise.
Through risk source sorting and troubleshooting, the list of risk
sources and safety operation training plan are formulated, pre-control
is strengthened, and safety production monthly activities are regularly
carried out to make sure safety awareness deeply rooted in the hearts
of the people and the scale of safety behavior effectively
implemented.

Sort out and release the list of the Group’s corporate culture activities
in 2022, carry out three-level corporate culture activities at the Group,
theater and project levels, and strengthen the Group's four themes of
learning culture, family culture, campaign culture and role model
culture. Let the core values of the enterprise be deeply rooted in the
hearts, let the employees have a sense of security, unity and cohesion,
and make the enterprise to built and to last.

Technology makes perception, standardization
improves efficiency

Intelligent technology is a pragmatic development direction of the
Group, based on meeting the needs of owners and improving
employee efficiency.

In 2022, the Digital Science Center focused on the strategic
development requirements of the Group’s four modernizations and
five forces, combined with the core pain points and frontline demands
in the business side work process, and after several months of in-
depth research, analysis, design, and construction, comprehensively
constructed a “industry finance integration” digital technology
support system, providing more intelligent and refined management
of business management and cost control, thereby laying a solid
foundation for the digital transformation of joylife, meet the overall
business scale and support needs of the Group in the next five years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Fulfiling corporate social responsibility, making
safety services as a priority

The Group gives full play to the leading role of Party building of grass-
roots Party organization, fulfills corporate social responsibility, makes
safety services as a priority, ensures the safety of owners, employees and
projects, with the help of smart technology, constantly explores and
innovates the new co-management model of “Party building +
community + property management”, actively participates in the
management of property and municipal public services in buildings
without owners, forms a new pattern of property services with joint
construction, governance and management through consultation, and
continues to actively make contributions to improving the people’s
happiness index. Red Colour Ling Li Hui (4L &2 %F1&[# ) has been selected
and upgraded based on the “Four Seasons and One Hall (Fl9Z&=—% )" of
the Group's Ling Li Hui (#B & [f), it has held the “Voluntary Epidemic
Prevention and Control” activity, the “Smart Helping the Elderly and
activity, and the “Celebrating the New Journey of the Twentieth National
Congress of the Communist Party of China, Joyful Celebrating the Mid-
Autumn Festival and Joining Hands for Kindness” activity, aiming at
delivering the voice of the Central Communist Party, spreading positive
energy, calling for charity and public welfare, carrying forward the
traditional virtues of the Chinese nation, creating red cultural atmosphere
in neighborhoods and developing the neighborhoods culture of caring
“Family-and-Country”.

Our original aspiration will never change, without fear of new
direction. In the future, under the guidance of the grand service
strategy, the Group will continue to lead the lifestyle change with
high-quality service, help the industrial development with smart
technology, promote management upgrading and service innovation,
complete the building of core competitiveness, resist the changing
macro environment with the unchanged service, and establish a
century-old enterprise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DT

|, BUSINESS REVIEW . FEKDOE

(1) FBHR

(1) Business Overview

2022 was an important year in the five-year development
of the Group. As a listed property enterprise, Kanggiao
Service continues to (i) provide high-quality services of
“Satisfaction + Refinement” for property owners in this
extraordinary year; (ii) fulfill its commitment to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) with
stable business performance; and (iii) be responsible for
the employees, so that the employees, with a sense of
belonging and security, can devote themselves to work,
and provide continuous and satisfactory services to the
property owners.

At present, the Group’s business covers a variety of
property types, including residential property,
non-residential property (such as commercial, office
buildings, industrial parks, hospitals and other public
infrastructure), and provision of city services (such as rail
transit sanitation, city environmental sanitation and other
services). The Group’s business involves property
management services, value-added services to non-
property owners and community value-added services. All
business areas are interconnected and market-oriented for
balanced development. In 2022, the Group's revenue was
approximately RMB792.9 million, representing an increase
of 1.2% as compared to approximately RMB783.6 million
for the corresponding period in 2021. Profit for the Year
was approximately RMB65.7 million, representing a
decrease of 25.8% as compared to that of approximately
RMB88.6 million for 2021. Profit for the Year attributable
to the owners of the Company was approximately
RMB54.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 35.5% as compared to that of RMB83.9
million for 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBR W& DT

As of December 31, 2022, the Group provided property
management services, value-added services or city services
in 31 cities in the PRC, with 234 projects under
management and a contracted gross floor area (the
"GFA") of approximately 63.3 million sg.m., representing
an increase of 19.2% as compared to approximately 53.1
million sq.m. for 2021, among which approximately 51.0
million sgq.m. or 80.6% were from third party property
developers. The GFA under management was
approximately 31.9 million sg.m., representing an increase
of 35.9% as compared to approximately 23.5 million
sg.m. for 2021, among which approximately 25.1 million
sg.m. or 78.7% were from third party property
developers. The GFA under management of non-
residential properties was approximately 4.2 million sg.m.,
representing an increase of 104.3% as compared to
approximately 2.0 million sq.m. for the corresponding
period in 2021, among which approximately 98.5% of
non-residential properties were from third party property
developers.

Since the beginning of 2022, the international situation
has been complex and grim, and the world economic
growth has slowed down significantly. The COVID-19
fluctuated globally, posing an unprecedented challenge to
the global economy. The Group, in conjunction with the
effective implementation of the national prevention and
control policies in the community, continued to pay
attention to the situation of COVID-19 to ensure the
safety of the lives and properties of property owners and
its employees, maintained sufficient inventory for
prevention and control of the epidemic and business
defense, and actively safeguarded the financial position
and operating results of the Group against the impact of
COVID-19. The board (the “Board”) of the directors (the
“Director”) of the Company considered that COVID-19
did not have any material adverse impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(2) Four Major Business Lines

The Group is a reputable comprehensive property
management services provider in the PRC, with a leading
position in Henan. In April 2022, the Group was awarded
the title of “2022 China Top 100 Property Management
Companies” by China Index Academy, with its overall
industry strength ranking increased by eight places to
29th as compared with the year of 2021. The Group
generates its revenue mainly from four business lines: (i)
property management services; (ii) value-added services to
non-property owners; (iii) community value-added
services; and (iv) city services.

Property management services

The Group provides property owners, property developers,
residents of residential properties as well as tenants in
non-residential properties with a wide range of property
management services, which typically include security,
cleaning, greening, gardening, repairs and maintenance
services. The Group's portfolio of properties under
management comprises of residential properties and non-
residential properties, such as commercial properties,
office buildings, industrial parks, hospitals and other
public infrastructure. The Group’s business has been
effectively improved in 2022, especially in terms of
increase in the GFA under management of non-residential
properties of the Group by approximately 104.3% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2021. Revenue
from property management services was approximately
RMB480.9 million, accounting for 60.7% of the total
revenue, representing an increase of 37.1% as compared
to 2021.

(2)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBR W& DT

Value-added services to non-property owners

The Group provides value-added services to non-property
owners, primarily major customers like property
developers, mainly consisting of (i) sales office
management services to property developers’ sales offices
and show flats, such as visitor reception, cleaning and
security services; (ii) pre-delivery services that the Group
offers to property developers at different stages before
the delivery of properties from the perspective of property
owners and future property management services,
primarily including optimization of construction blueprints
at the drawing design stage, quality control during the
construction process, measurement and inspection of
completed units prior to delivery; (iii) sales agency services
in which the Group mainly facilitates property developers
in selling their first-hand properties prior to property
delivery; (iv) construction site management services in
which the Group provides daily security services to
constructors and property developers, such as video
surveillance, emergency response, access control and
visitor management; and (v) consultancy services for
property developers and property management companies
in relation to sales and management of projects. Revenue
from value-added services to non-property owners of the
Group was approximately RMB151.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 51.4% as compared to
approximately RMB311.9 million for 2021. The decrease
in revenue from value-added services to non-property
owners was due to the shrinking of real estate business
under the influence of policies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Community value-added services

The Group also provides a comprehensive range of
community value-added services to property owners and
residents to improve their living experiences and to
preserve and increase the value of their assets. These
services primarily include (i) home-living services, such as
housekeeping and cleaning services, home maintenance
services, decoration and move-in furnishing services and
shopping services; (ii) community operation services with
respect to managing community spaces and optimizing
the utilization of public resources, such as assist third-
party vendors in seeking suitable places to operate or
promote their businesses, facilitating their promotional
events, daily cleaning and equipment maintenance; and
(iii) asset operation services, primarily including property
agency services with respect to second-hand properties
and unsold parking spaces after property delivery, as well
as rental service in relation to parking spaces and shop
spaces. Revenue from community value-added services
provided by the Group was approximately RMB134.0
million, representing an increase of 10.8% as compared
to that of approximately RMB120.9 million for 2021,
which was mainly attributable to the increase of the GFA
under management and service users as well as the
increasing diversification of types of lifestyle services
business.

City services

The Group can also provide the city with a wide range of
city services, which mainly include (i) rail transit sanitation
services; (ii) city environmental sanitation; (iii) waste
sorting and treatment; (iv) installation of road facilities; (v)
landscaping project; (vi) old communities renovation; and
(vii) setting up smart block construction, etc. The Group'’s
revenue from the city services was approximately RMB26.5
million, accounting for 3.3% of the total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBR W& DT

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

The Group is committed to becoming a better life and smart city
service provider, and has always adhered to the original intention
of providing customers with “Satisfaction + Surprise” and worked
hard to move forward. According to the Group's strategy for the
next five years, the Group shall continue to improve its product
strength, organizational strength, operational strength, digital
science strength and brand strength to ensure service
standardization, product standardization, product branding and
brand value. The Group shall adhere to the bottom line of safety in
projects, the property owner and the employees, the bottom line
of providing services with quality corresponding to price and of
providing the best price, the bottom line of standardization of
service products, the bottom line of the performance of employees
and the bottom line of business performance. Efforts will made to
expand the non-residential property and city services product lines
of horizontally, and gradually realize the three pillars of “Joyful
Living” (1% 4 7&) (for residential properties), “Joyful Commercial
Property Management” (157 & ) (for non-residential properties)
and “Joyful City Service s” (13 AR) (for city service). The vertical
industry sector will be deeply cultivated and incubated, and
realize the service ecology with the characteristics of the Group
with people as the core.

Under the clear strategic layout of the Group, it will be able to
continue to increase its market capitalization by rapidly
expanding its scale, securing contracted GFA as well as
expanding the portion of the GFA from third party property
developers, the portion of non-residential properties and the
scale of city services, and thereby calmly responding to the
intensive competition in the capital market and generating
returns to the Shareholders, customers and employees of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue was mainly generated from four major
businesses: (i) property management services; (ii) value-added
services to non-property owners; (i) community value-added
services; and (iv) city services. During the Year, the Group's total
revenue was approximately RMB792.9 million, representing an
increase of 1.2% as compared to approximately RMB783.6
million for 2021.

The following table sets out the revenue contribution of each
business line for the years indicated:
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Year ended December 31,
BZENA3MALEE

2022 2021
2022 2021 F

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

AR%ETR % AREFIT %

Property management services YRR RS 480,918 60.7 350,767 44.8

Value-added services to JEE T IRERK

non-property owners 151,527 19.1 311,935 39.8

Community value-added services I E RS 133,970 16.9 120,865 15.4

City services 38 T AR TS 26,505 3.3 - -

Total et 792,920 100.0 783,567 100.0
Property management services YEEE IR

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
property management services amounted to approximately
RMB480.9 million, representing an increase of 37.1% as
compared to approximately RMB350.8 million for 2021, which
was mainly attributable to the rapid increase in the total GFA
under management as a result of the Group’s business
expansion.

RAFEE  AEEREDEBTERBER
BHRAZEINARE48098E T &
201F M ARBIS08HE LI R E
371%  FZREAREEHEHER -
Tr BB R MR REIE INFTEL ©

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022

ERREETEEERAT /I S —FF#F

17



18

Value-added services to non-property owners

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
value-added services to non-property owners amounted to
approximately RMB151.5 million, representing a decrease of
51.4% as compared to approximately RMB311.9 million for
2021. The decrease in revenue from value-added services to
non-property owners was due to the shrinking of real estate
business under the influence of policies.

Community value-added services

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
community value-added services amounted to approximately
RMB134.0 million, representing an increase of 10.8% as
compared to approximately RMB120.9 million for 2021, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in the area under
management and service users as well as the increasing
diversification of the types of lifestyle services business.

City services

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the city services
amounted to approximately RMB26.5 million.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit
expenses, greening and cleaning expenses, utilities,
maintenance and customer service costs, security service costs,
sales agency service costs, office expenses, rental expenses
related to short-term leases, travelling and entertainment
expenses, depreciation and amortisation charges and others.

During the Year, the Group’s cost of sales was approximately
RMB601.9 million, representing an increase of approximately
3.8% as compared to approximately RMB579.7 million for
2021. The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the rapid
growth of the Group’s business scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross
profit margin by business line for the years indicated:
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Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

Gross Gross profit Gross  Gross profit

profit margin profit margin

E7 ER= E7 ESVUES

RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

AR¥TR % ARETFT %

Property management services WIEE B RIS 78,278 16.3 55,815 15.9
Value-added services to FEE T RERS

non-property owners 49,947 33.0 109,862 35.2

Community value-added services 1t [& & 1B IR 7% 58,879 44.0 38,175 316

City services YT RS 3,965 15.0 - -

Total “st 191,068 241 203,852 26.0

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 24.1%, representing a decrease of 1.9
percentage points as compared to 26.0% for 2021, mainly due
to the lower gross profit margin of value-added services to
non-property owners and the relatively low gross profit margin
of city services.

The gross profit margin of property management services was
16.3%, representing an increase from 15.9% for 2021, which
was mainly because of the decrease in energy consumption and
labor cost of facilities and equipment through scientific and
technological means, and the scale effect brought by the
Company’s focus on cities, property portfolios and the scale
effect.

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners was 33.0%, representing a decrease from 35.2% for
2021, which was mainly due to the decrease in sales of
commercial housing affected by the real estate policy and the
decrease in the number of new buildings, resulting in a decrease
in the gross profit of sales agency and pre-delivery services.
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The gross profit margin of community value-added services was
44.0%, representing an increase from 31.6% for 2021, which
was mainly due to the improvement of the business capacity for
the sale of community merchandise and effective cost control.
On the other hand, the development of cleaning business at the
pre-delivery stage allows for the repeated deployment of staff
and hence saving costs.

Other income

During the Year, the Group’s other income amounted to
approximately RMB9.7 million, representing an increase of
13.8% as compared to approximately RMB8.5 million for 2021.
The increase was mainly due to the receipt of government
subsidies.

Selling and marketing expenses

During the Year, the Group’s selling and marketing expenses
amounted to approximately RMB12.6 million, representing a
decrease of 17.8% as compared to approximately RMB15.3
million for 2021. The decrease in selling and marketing expenses
was mainly due to the Group’s cost control and focus on
expanding business on low-cost projects.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB53.0 million, representing a decrease of
14.0% as compared to approximately RMB61.7 million for
2021, mainly due to the one-off listing expenses of the Group
incurred in 2021, and the implementation of cost control
measures for the enhancement of the Group’s operational
efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Credit impairment losses

During the Year, the Group’s credit impairment losses was
approximately RMB47.7 million, representing an increase of
629.7% as compared to approximately RMB6.5 million in 2021.
The increase was mainly due to the impact of the overall
downturn in the real estate market, which slowed down the
Company’s collection of trade and other receivables from
related parties. The overall downturn in the real estate market
also led to an increase in the expected credit loss rate of the real
estate industry, resulting in a significant increase in provision for
expected credit loss on receivables from related parties for the
Year as compared to 2021.

Income tax expenses

During the Year, the Group’s income tax expenses amounted to
approximately RMB17.3 million, representing a decrease of
45.2% as compared to approximately RMB31.6 million for
2021. The decrease in income tax expenses was mainly due to
the reduction in national tax preference and profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the Year was approximately RMB65.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 25.8% as compared
to that of approximately RMB88.6 million for 2021. Profit for
the Year attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB54.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 35.5% as compared to that of approximately
RMB83.9 million for 2021.
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Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a strong financial position during the
Year. As at December 31, 2022, the current assets amounted to
approximately RMB1,003.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.0% as compared to that of approximately
RMB983.7 million for 2021. As at December 31, 2022, the
Group's cash and cash equivalents were mostly denominated in
RMB and amounted to approximately RMB345.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.0% from
approximately RMB540.8 million as at December 31, 2021,
mainly due to the payment of the refundable deposits for the
sales agency services. The Group's current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) as at December 31, 2022 was
approximately 2.6, representing an increase of 5.6% from
approximately 2.4 as at December 31, 2021. The asset-liability
ratio (total liabilities divided by total assets) as at December 31,
2022 was 35.3%, representing a decrease of 38.2% from 2.9%
as at December 31, 2021.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings and the gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by
total equity) was nil.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure on
a regular basis and strikes a balance between retaining higher
returns for the Group’s owners and the possible high level of
borrowing, while maintaining the advantages and security of a
strong capital position and adjusting the capital structure in
response to changes in economic conditions.

Trade and other receivables

As at December 31, 2022, trade and other receivables
amounted to approximately RMB598.9 million, representing an
increase of 42.7% from approximately RMB419.7 million as at
December 31, 2021, which was mainly due to the slow recovery
of the Group’s trade and other receivables due to the impact of
COVID-19.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade and other payables

As at December 31, 2022, trade and other payables amounted
to approximately RMB279.8 million, representing an increase of
12.5% from approximately RMB248.7 million as at December
31, 2021. This was mainly attributable to the Group’s
optimization in settlement of trade and other payables.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates its business primarily in the PRC. RMB is the
currency used by the Group for valuation and settlement of all
transactions. Any depreciation of RMB would adversely affect
the value of any dividends paid by the Group to Shareholders
outside the PRC. Majority of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents is denominated in RMB. The Group is currently not
engaged in hedging activities that are designed or intended to
manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will continue to
monitor foreign exchange activities and make its best efforts to
protect the cash value of the Group.

Pledge of assets

As at December 31, 2022, the Group has provided the following
material guarantees:

1. In December 2021, Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, provided the
Property Development Guarantee in favour of China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. Henan Branch (1
BlEmEETEROHERARIIEE P2 F]) ("Huarong”)
for the financing arrangement of a related party of the
Company, the Kangqgiao Property Development Group.
The financing arrangement of the Kanggiao Property
Development Group was for an amount of approximately
RMB388.3 million as at December 31, 2022. On March
31, 2023, Huarong issued a statement of discharge of
guarantee to Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo, thereby
voluntarily discharging all obligations of Henan Kanggiao
Yueshenghuo under the Property Development
Guarantee, and relinquishing any right to enforcement
actions Huarong may have under the Property
Development Guarantee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBR W& DT

The Group completed the acquisition of 51% of the equity
interests in Dingfeng Property in October 2021 (the
“Dingfeng Acquisition”). Unbeknownst to the Group at the
time of the Dingfeng Acquisition, Dingfeng Property had
entered into the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan Guarantee, jointly
guaranteeing with other guarantors certain cash payment
obligation and the performance of the redemption obligation
of Henan Ruipeng Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (;A] B 35 4 ¥kl
AR A F]) (“Henan Ruipeng”) and Guan Xiaoyan (& &
E), which arose from certain investment agreements
between Henan Ruipeng, Guan Xiaoyan (882 Z) and Tibet
Yuteng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (FARI#ABEEEE
I B BR A 7)) (“Tibet Yuteng”), among other parties (the
“Investment Agreements”). Due to the non-performance of
the obligations by Henan Ruipeng, upon the application by
Tibet Yuteng, the Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court
issued a freezing order on August 8, 2022 against the
relevant guarantors including Dingfeng Property, freezing
each guarantor’s bank deposit for up to RMB186,224,556.
Approximately RMB4.8 million in Dingfeng Property’s bank
account was frozen as at December 31, 2022.

On January 9, 2023, Tibet Yuteng reached a settlement
agreement with certain parties under the Investment
Agreements. It should be noted that Dingfeng Property
was not named as a party to the settlement agreement.
On January 16, 2023, Tibet Yuteng voluntarily withdrew
its claim against Dingfeng Property. On January 31, 2023,
the freezing order has been lifted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3. In May 2020, Dingfeng Property has provided a guarantee
(the "Dingfeng-Pingdingshan Guarantee”) for the loan
repayment obligation of Pingdingshan Yufu Trading Co.,
Ltd. (FIEL T =@ E AR A A]) (“Yufu Trading”), in
favour of Henan Wugang Rural Commercial Bank Co.,
Ltd. (JF] e #2324 7 SR ERTT AR B IR 2 A]) (“Wugang
Rural Commercial Bank”). The loan amount was
RMB30,000,000. The loan was also secured by third
parties’ pledging of assets valued at around
RMB18,000,000. As a measure to shield the Group
against any loss as a result of the Dingfeng-Pingdingshan
Guarantee, under the agreement for the Dingfeng
Acquisition, the Group would be entitled to acquire at no
additional cost the remaining 49% equity interest in
Dingfeng Property to cover any losses as a result the
Dingfeng-Pingdingshan Guarantee. Due to the default of
Yufu Trading, the bank accounts of Dingfeng Property
were frozen by the court on February 9, 2023. On July 28,
2023, the frozen bank deposits of approximately RMB11.1
million was enforced.

The Company has engaged Avista Business Consulting
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Valuer”), an independent professional
valuer, to assess the expected credit loss (the “ECL") for the
financial guarantees of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2022. The ECL associated with the Property Development
Guarantee, the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan Guarantee and the
Dingfeng-Pingdingshan Guarantee for the year ended December
31, 2022 is RMB812,000, RMB276,000 and nil, respectively.
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Contingent liabilities

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities and capital commitments.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On September 30, 2021, the Group, Xi‘an Lifeng Property
Management Co., Ltd. (AZZ LWMEEEFR A A]) (“Xi'an
Lifeng Property”), the then existing shareholders of Xi‘an Lifeng
Property and Yan Ming (the ultimate beneficial owner of Xi'an
Lifeng Property, as the guarantor) entered into an investment
agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire
80% of the equity interest in Xi'an Lifeng Property by equity
transfer from its existing shareholders (the “Investment”). The
total consideration for the Investment is RMB164.07 million. As
of December 31, 2022, the amount of the Investment paid by
the Group was approximately RMB65.6 million, and the
acquisition was completed as of the date of this report.

Upon completion of the Investment, Xi'an Lifeng Property will
become a subsidiary of the Group. The Investment constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). For details of the Investment, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated September 30, 2021
and November 12, 2021, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other major investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures held as at December 31, 2022, nor are there any
plans for other significant investments or additions to capital
assets as authorized by the Board.

Significant investments

During the Year, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
BERHEETREEERAR /I S —FFK

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBR W& DT

REEE

MR2022F 12 A31H » NEEI &M
EANEEENEARHRE -
BEXKNEBREE

M2021F9HA30H @ AEFEFALE
MEEEBRAT(ALIEME]
R EYEZRRBRE AR (AR
TEMERREREEAN  ERERA)
BRI REHE Bt XEBRERR
ERENEZEREN A KBEAL L
M 80% i ([ZIRE]) - ZIRER
REAARE164.07EE T - 22022
F12A318 - AEELZNZIRESEA
HANRBeS6EET  RBEARREH
B - WBE B R TTAK ©

ZIRBETE AR EMERK AR
SEOMBAGR - REBEEABERZM
BRAR([BAZ]) &FH LmHRRA L
MHRADE14E  ZREBRARF L
BETHRERS  BHEZEENTFE &
28 8855 £2021F9A30H &
2021F 11 A 12 BHARRRE -

Br EXXCAT#EEE A SN - 7R 2022412 A 31
B AEEHMESBENNEAR - B
ERAREGEAAIMNEMEREE - &
APBHLEEE  AFAMESSHEE
HHEMERIRESIGINE R EERNETE -

BEARE

RAFE  AEEHEREENEAR
ﬁ o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Future plans for major investments

The Group intends to utilize part of the net proceeds raised
from the global offering to acquire property management
companies and professional service companies, and to
cooperate with local municipal investment companies or local
property developers through capital injection or forming joint
ventures according to the prospectus of the Company dated
June 29, 2021 (the "Prospectus”). As at the date of this report,
the Group does not have any other material plans to invest in
the future.

Supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group and Beijing Kanggiao
Tongdao Shenghe Consulting Group Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Tongdao”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries and
associates) (collectively, “Beijing Tongdao Group”) entered into
the sales agency services framework agreement on June 17,
2021, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide the sales
agency services to the Beijing Tongdao Group, being sales
agency services for first-hand properties and unsold parking
spaces, including but not limited to consulting services and sales
events organization services, on an exclusive and sole basis for
some of the property projects developed by the Beijing Tongdao
Group.

On April 21, 2022, the Company and Beijing Tongdao entered
into the supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement, pursuant to which members of the Group shall pay
to members of the Beijing Tongdao Group the refundable
deposits in connection with the sales agency services
contemplated under the sales agency services framework
agreement. At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on June 30, 2022, the independent Shareholders approved
the entering into of the supplemental sales agency services
framework agreement.
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Beijing Tongdao is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. SONG
Gewei, the ultimate controlling Shareholder. Therefore, Beijing
Tongdao is a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated
under the supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions of the
Company. For details of the supplemental sales agency services
framework agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated April 21, 2022 and the circular of the Company
dated June 16, 2022.

Significant events after the end of the reporting
period

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated March 31, 2023, April 18, 2023, April 25, 2023, May 31,
2023 and June 30, 2023 in relation to, among other things, (i)
suspension of trading; (i) delay in publication of annual results
for the year ended December 31, 2022 and delay in despatch of
annual report; (i) the Auditor’s Letter; and (iv) the Resumption
Guidance (the “Announcements”). Unless the context requires
otherwise, capitalised terms used herein this report shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements.

On March 30, 2023, the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) received the letter from the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”) to the Audit Committee dated March
30, 2023 (the “Auditor Letter”). The Auditor’s Letter identified
that two guarantees were omitted from the list of the Group’s
guarantee obligations in favour of external parties provided by
the Company to the Auditor. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated April 18, 2023 for the key content of the
Auditor’s Letter.

As additional time was required by the Company to conduct an
independent investigation and by the Auditor to complete the
audit process in respect of the 2022 Annual Results, the
Company was unable to announce its audited 2022 Annual
Results by the deadline prescribed by the Listing Rules. The
trading of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange was
suspended with effect from April 3, 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As disclosed in the Announcements, an independent committee
comprising all the independent non-executive Directors was
established by the Audit Committee. Grant Thornton Advisory
Services Limited (the “Independent Investigator”) has been
appointed to conduct an independent investigation on the
issues raised by the Auditor, and SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited (the “IC Consultant”) has been appointed to conduct
an independent internal control review on the Group’s
management of related party transactions and the provision of
guarantees, and a follow-up review of the remedial measures
implemented by the Group to address the internal control issues
raised in the Independent Investigation Report (as defined
below).

The Company has also engaged the Valuer to assess the ECL of
the financial guarantees of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Please refer to “Pledge of assets” above
for the assessment of the Valuer.

As of the date of this report, the Independent Investigator has
issued its report of findings of its investigation to the
Independent Committee (the “Independent Investigation
Report”). The Independent Committee has accepted the
conclusion of the Independent Investigation Report and
concluded that the omission of the Property Development
Guarantee and the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan Guarantee from the list
of the Group’s guarantee obligations in favour of external
parties provided by the Group to the Auditor was due to
internal control weaknesses of the Group and no other
guarantees in accordance with the Independent Investigation
Report by Independent Investigator were identified. The
Company will make further announcement(s) shortly to update
the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company
regarding the key findings of the Independent Investigation
Report.

The IC Consultant has also issued its report of its findings and
recommendations (the “Internal Control Report”). The
Company has adopted all the recommendations of the IC
Consultant. In the follow-up review conducted by the IC
Consultant, the Company has implemented adequate measures
to address the internal control weaknesses identified in the
Independent Investigation Report. No further material
deficiencies were identified by the IC Consultant.
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The Board has reviewed the content and the findings of the
Independent Investigation Report and the Internal Control
Report. Having considered the recommendations of the IC
Consultant, the Board is of the view that the remedial and
rectification measures implemented by the Group are sufficient
to address the internal control weaknesses identified in the
Independent Investigation Report and the Internal Control
Report.

Employee and remuneration policy

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 1,831
employees (December 31, 2021: 1,857).

During the Year, the total remuneration cost incurred, including
Director’s remuneration, was RMB177.3 million (year ended
December 31, 2021: RMB191.9 million).

The Group has a well-established recruitment and internal
promotion system in place and strives to hire talented employees
by offering competitive wages, bonuses, benefits, systematic
training opportunities and internal promotions. The Group hires
employees through a combination of online recruitment, job
fairs, campus recruitment and referrals. To provide employees
with fair competition opportunities, in addition to external
recruitment, selections for management positions are open to
all employees for their application.

The Group offers employee with benefits such as housing
allowances, cultural and social events, as well as holiday and
birthday gifts. The Group is also committed to embracing
diversity within the Group’s organization and treating all of the
Group's employees with equality and respect in recruitment,
training, wellness, as well as professional and personal
development. While maximizing equal career opportunities for
everyone, the Group will continue to promote work-life balance
and create a culture of fun for all employees in the Group’s
workplace and pantry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREGNEEEEEFE

DIRECTORS
Non-executive Director

Mr. SONG Gewei (REZ ), aged 54, was appointed as the Chairman
and non-executive Director on January 20, 2021. He has been
primarily responsible for overall business direction and strategic
planning of our Group since its establishment in August 2010. Mr.
Song has about 20 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Song has been the president of the
Kanggiao Group (Henan Boyuan Quanjing Enterprise Consulting Co.,
Ltd., a diversified enterprise group which principally engages in the
PRC real estate, education, agent construction and culture and
tourism businesses) since January 2003 during which he is primarily
responsible for the overall business direction and strategic planning of
the group. Mr. Song graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in the
PRC, where he obtained a master degree of business administration in
June 2003. Mr. Song was awarded the “Most Responsible
Entrepreneur” (5 & & £ B & % XK) by Henan Housing Industry
Association (J7] B & B H E ¥ 7 2) in 2020 for combating against
COVID-19. Also, he has been the “Honorary Member of Westlake
University Board of Trustees” (78 j# X £ £ & & =) since 2018. In
addition, he was awarded “Forty Years of Reform and Opening Up,
Great Development in Central Cities — Meritorious Entrepreneur in
Henan Real Estate Industry” (“ 2R B +F R REEHAER " A
FEMETTEIE %) by Henan Province Real Estate Evaluation
Centre at Henan Housing Industry Association (AIEI & EHIEEE S
SAEE B ERIEEH ). Moreover, he has been the vice chairman of
Henan Housing Industry Association (Ji] F & = i & 2% 75 €) since
2005. Also, he was named the “Top Ten Leaders in Central Real
Estate” (FR R E + KB AY)) awarded by the Economic View (£
EEBEER4E) in 2005. Furthermore, he was the “Person of the Year in
Zhenzhou Real Estate Business” (ZB/1 5= i & 3 F 2 A ¥ 4€) awarded
by the Management Committee of Zhenzhou Real Estate Transaction
Center (BMTEHERZZFPOLEERZEE)in 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEEERFE

Executive Directors

Mr. DAI Wei (%137), aged 54, was appointed as our executive Director
on January 20, 2021 and president in July 2018. Mr. Dai is primarily
responsible for the overall management and strategy of our Group.
He has over 10 years of experience in property management services.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Dai was the general manager at
investment and development centre and then the general manager at
strategic development centre at Chongging Huayu Group Co., Ltd. (&
EEFEE AR AR]), acompany principally engaged in the PRC real
estate business, from January 2018 to July 2018 during which he was
mainly responsible for investment and development. Also, Mr. Dai
was the president of Chongqing Huayu Savills Property Services Group
Co, Ld (EBEEFE - ATHAMMERBEEERAA), a
company principally engaged in the PRC property management
service, from January 2017 to October 2017 during which he was
mainly responsible for overall strategic operation and management in
property management segment of the company. In addition, he was
the chairman of Easy Life Smart Community Services Group Co., Ltd.
(BEERE LR RISEBERMD AR A A (formerly quoted on the
NEEQ and subsequently delisted on September 4, 2020 (stock code:
837249)), a company principally engaged in the PRC property
management service from April 2014 to July 2016 during which he
was mainly responsible for the overall management and operation
strategy. Furthermore, he was the vice president of Jinghan Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd. (RZ B X 5B B R &£ 2 7)), a company
principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, from July 2010 to
April 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for the human
resources management, legal affairs, customer services and property
management. In addition, he was the deputy general manager of
Hiersun Xili industrial Co., Ltd. (EZ B R EZWR M AR 2 A), a
company principally engaged in the design and sales of jewelry, from
January 2005 to December 2009 during which he was mainly
responsible for the human resources management and operation.

Mr. Dai Wei obtained a master degree in business administration from
Murdoch University in Australia in January 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESkeAREEEBREMNR

Mr. KANG Weiguo (F7#E), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director and executive president on January 20, 2021 and has been
our vice executive general manager since November 28, 2018. Mr.
Kang is primarily responsible for the operational management of our
Group. He was our vice general manager from January 2016 to
November 2018, during which he was mainly responsible for the
property service center and early intervention supervision. Also, he
was the assistant to our Group’s general manager from December
2014 to December 2015, during which he was responsible for the
urban project management in the urban area in Zhengzhou.
Furthermore, he was the regional general manager when he joined
our Group in August 2010, and remained in the position until
November 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for projects
such as Jinyu Shangjun (13 _EZB).

Mr. Kang Weiguo graduated from Zhenzhou University (EB/1KE2) in
the PRC in July 1999, where he obtained a post-secondary certificate
of civil engineering. Also, he obtained the qualification of assistant
engineer in building issued by the People’s Government of Guancheng
Hui District, Zhengzhou City (&5 /N T & ¥k Bl & [& A R B ) since
December 2010.

Ms. WANG Na (F ), aged 42, was appointed as our executive Director
and joint company secretary on January 20, 2021 and has been our
chief financial officer since December 10, 2017. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the investment and financial management affairs of
our Group and the affairs of our Board. Prior to joining our Group,
she was the chief financial officer at Zhengzhou Kanggiao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BSM EEEHERZBEREE A A)), a
company principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, from
September 2013 to December 2017, during which she was mainly
responsible for the investment and financial affairs of the company.
Also, she was the finance manager at Zhengzhou Xinxing Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (EpMFTELE 2B R A F]), a company principally engaged in
the PRC real estate business, from 2008 to September 2013, during
which she was mainly responsible for the overall financial
management of the company. Also, she was the vice finance manager
at Henan Century Great Wall Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BSJH 42 R E
¥ B BR 2 7)), a company principally engaged in the PRC real estate
business from December 2005 to November 2018 during which she
was mainly responsible for the financial affairs of the company.
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Ms. Wang Na graduated from Zhengzhou University (E81 A 22) in the
PRC, where she obtained a bachelor degree of management (major in
accounting) in June 2003. Also, she obtained the qualification of
intermediate accounting issued by the Finance Department of the
People’s Republic of China (FZE A R HAEIBFEED) since May 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LI Haitao (Z)8/3), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 17, 2021. Dr. Li has extensive teaching
and research experience in theoretical and empirical asset pricing,
term structure of interest rates, hedge funds, and financial
econometrics and he has extensive research experience in the area of
hedging, derivatives and risk management. His Ph.D dissertation at
Yale University deals with risk management issues related to swaps.
Dr. Li's research papers and articles have been published in numerous
financial and economic journals, including the Journal of Finance,the
Journal of Financial Economics, the Review of Finance Studies, the
Journal of Econometrics. In addition, Dr. Li has many years of teaching
experience in the United States. He worked at the University of
Michigan from 2005 to 2013 and was the Jack D. Sparks Whirlpool
Corporation Research Professor in the Finance Department of the
Stephen M. Ross School of Business at the University of Michigan. Dr.
Li is currently appointed as the Dean’s Distinguished Chair Professor
of Finance and Associate Dean of MBA Program at the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business since March 2013.

Furthermore, he has been an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of China Sliver Group
Limited since December 2012, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 815), which principally engaged in
sliver, gold and precious metals businesses in the PRC. In addition, he
has been an independent director of Shanxi Securities Co., Ltd. (178
FH DB R A A since December 2020, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002500), which principally
engaged in securities businesses in the PRC. Also, he has been an
independent director of Horizon Asset Management Co., Ltd. (FE% &
S EBEHREMAR]) since April 2016, which is principally engaged
in securities businesses in the PRC.

Dr. Li undertook the Ph.D program in geophysics at Yale University in
the United States between 1991 and 1992. He received his Ph.D in
finance from Yale University in the United States in 1998.
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Dr. FAN Yun (#%#z), aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on June 17, 2021. Since November 1987, she has
served as a lecturer, associate professor, and was subsequently
promoted to professor at Xi‘an Jiaotong University in June 2001. Also,
she has been an independent director of Soarle Technology Co., Ltd.
(VY B 25 RE B T A% 19 A PR 2 A1) from June 2014 to May 2017, a
company listed on the New Over the Counter Market (stock code:
430758), which principally engaged in construction intelligence
businesses in the PRC. From November 2012 to October 2018, she
was an independent director of Autobio Diagnostics Co., Ltd. (E5 %
BAMTERDERAD
Exchange (stock code: 603658), which is principally engaged in

7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock

biological technology businesses in the PRC.

Dr. Fan studied in the Department of Industrial Economics at Xi‘an
University of Technology in the PRC (formerly known as Shaanxi
Institute of Mechanical Engineering) and obtained a bachelor degree
of engineering in July 1982. She received his Ph.D in management
science and engineering from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in the PRC in
May 2002.
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Mr. WONG Yun Pun (&)8&), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 17, 2021. From August 1989 to April
1992, Mr. Wong worked as an auditor at PricewaterhouseCoopers.
He served at Duty Free Shoppers as a budgeting and planning
manager from April 1992 to August 1998. Mr. Wong served at
Nielsen’s Hong Kong office (formerly known as AC Nielsen (China)), a
leading worldwide research company on consumer market, as senior
finance manager from August 1998 to August 2000. Also, Mr. Wong
served as a finance manager at Icon Medialab Limited from July 2000
to October 2001. From March 2002, Mr. Wong served as associate
director at JAFCO Asia which is the Asian arm of JAFCO, established
in early 1990, one of the leading venture capital firm in the region,
where he was mainly responsible for managing the finance and
administration matters. After which, he served as the chief finance
officer of Natixis Private Equity Asia Limited, which is the private
equity arm of Natixis, a subsidiary of Group BPCE, a French
multinational financial services firm, from November 2006 where he
was mainly responsible for financial matter, tax planning and treasury,
and corporate governance. Mr. Wong then worked at Spring Capital
Asia Limited, a company principally engaged in investments on
cleantech, healthcare and consumer transactions until June 2011. And
from January 2012 to July 2015, Mr. Wong served as the chief
financial officer and executive director respectively of Tsing Capital,
the first General Partner focus on environment and cleantech
investments, where he was mainly responsible for fund, finance and
compliance matters. From August 2015, Mr. Wong served as the chief
financial officer at Lokin Holdings Limited, a thermal management
solution provider based in Hong Kong, for about two years. From
August 2018 to December 2020, Mr. Wong served as a director and
chief financial officer of Tottenham Acquisition | Limited (subsequently
merged with Clene Nanomedicine, Inc., a pharmaceutical company
listed on NASDAQ: CLNN), mainly responsible for listing and financial
matters. Since September 2017, Mr. Wong served as managing
director of Chronos Capital Limited, where he was mainly responsible
for fund raising and financial advisory.

Mr. Wong obtained a professional diploma in Company secretaryship
and Administration in from Hong Kong Polytechnic (& /& T &f3)
(currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (783 T
K &) in November 1989. He then obtained a master’s degree in
business electronic commerce from Curtin University in Australia in
2003. Mr. Wong is an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") since January 1996 and a fellow of
HKICPA since October 2003.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yifa (ELA)%), aged 49, has been our chief economist since
June 2016 and is primarily responsible for community development.
He was our financial director from August 2010 to June 2016, during
which he was responsible for the financial affairs of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group from August 2008 to July 2010, Mr. Jia was
the financial director of the predecessor of our Group, Henan Great
Wall Hotel Property Service Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jia Yifa obtained a post-secondary certificate in industrial
accounting from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics ()7 F 87 4%
EB7T) in the PRC in June 1994.

Mr. LI Zhigang (Z7E ), aged 38, has been our vice general manager
of our Group since January 1, 2017. He is primarily responsible for the
human resources, informatization and value-added innovation works,
etc.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li served as the chief officer at the
human resources department from October 2013 to December 2016
and the assistant manager at the operations department from April
2011 to September 2013 at Zhengzhou Kanggiao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BB INEB M ERE M EMZE AR Q) a
company principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, during
which he was mainly responsible for the operation of the company,
and staff development and human resources works, respectively.

Mr. Li Zhigang obtained a maser degree in business administration
from Jinan University (& A2 ) in the PRC in June 20009.
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The Board is pleased to announce the annual report for the year
ended December 31, 2022 (the “Annual Report”) and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on October 8, 2020. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on July 16, 2021.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group are
principally engaged in provision of property management services,
related value-added services and city services in the PRC. An analysis
of the Group's principal business for the year ended December 31,
2022 is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 105 to 106 of the Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual
Report from page 11 to 30 and “Chairman’s Statement” in this
Annual Report from pages 7 to 10.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group believes that the risk management practices are important
and uses its best effort to ensure it is sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our operations and financial position as efficiently and
effectively as possible. Operational risk may arise when the Group has
loss of (i) our customers; and (ii) senior management employed by the
Group which may adversely affect the Group’s operations. In the
event that the Group fails to identify suitable replacements for senior
managements in a timely manner and at reasonable cost, the Group’s
competitiveness may be impaired and performance could be adversely
affected. To retain our customers, we are trying to maintain excellence
and integrated services to our customers in timely manner, so that we
can create extra value to our customers.
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An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management (including
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk) objectives and policies
are provided in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
risks faced by the Group are set out in the section headed “Risk
Factors” in the Prospectus.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to conducting its business in an
environmentally conscious manner and minimising the adverse effects
caused by its operations on the environment. The Group continues to
make endeavors in saving energy and reducing unnecessary waste by
adopting various green measures in its workplace. Such measures
include using of energy-efficient light tubes, encouraging use of
recycle papers and both sides of papers for printing and copying and
keeping office temperature at reasonable level. The Group will review
the environmental policy from time to time and will consider
implementing further environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s business. The Board paid attention to
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements essential to its business operations.
The Group would seek professional advice from its external legal
advisers and consultants to ensure transactions and business to be
performed by the Group are in compliance with applicable
environmental policies, laws and regulations. During the Year, as far
as the Company is aware, it has complied in all material respects of
the laws or regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operation. More disclosures regarding our environmental
policies and performance will set out in the Group's environmental,
social and governance report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the transaction value of the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 19.9% (2021: 35.6%)
of the Group’s total revenue, and the transaction value of the largest
customer accounted for 13.9% (2021: 32.7%) of the Group's total
revenue.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the transaction value of the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 46.9% (2021: 58.0%) of
the Group’s total procurement costs, and the transaction value of the
largest supplier accounted for 21.3% (2021: 20.2%) of the Group's
total procurement costs.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, none of the other
Directors, their respective associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.057
per share for the year ended December 31, 2022. The final dividend is
subject to the approval from the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on September 6,
2023 and will be expected to be paid on September 27, 2023 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on September 15, 2023. No shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend for the financial year ended December
31, 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently has a dividend policy in place. Any future
dividend distribution and payment will be determined by the Board at
its discretion and may be subject to the Shareholders’ approval.
Whether any future dividends are declared or paid, and the amount
of any such dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including
our earnings, working capital and cash position, financial condition,
capital requirements and such other factors as the Board may deem
important. There is no assurance that any amount of dividend will be
declared or paid in any year.

The Board have reviewed the Company’s dividend policy and
considered it to be effective.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 232 of this report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had no borrowings.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
July 16, 2021, being the Listing Date, and the total net proceeds from
the global offering, after deduction of the listing expenses, amounted
to approximately HK$628.9 million.

Proceeds from the global offering are and will continue to be applied
in accordance with the plans disclosed in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The following table sets
forth the status of use of net proceeds from the global offering as at
December 31, 2022:
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Net Unutilised Actual use Unutilised Expected

Percentage  proceedsas amountasat  of proceeds  amount as at timeline for

oftotal  disclosedin  December 31, during  December 31, the use of

amount  the Prospectus 2021 the Year 2022 proceeds
BRER  BR221F BzankE

158 KEH  12B31AL AEE 128318k BAREHEN

Purposes i3 Bl FSHERE *BAtE ERBALE KBALE BARER
(approximate) ~ (HKS million) ~ (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million)
(B#)  (ABET)  (RBERL)  (AB#R)  (B8ET)

Pursue selective strategic investment and S REE I BBIRA R 65% 408.8 326.6 37 3229 By December 2024
acquisition opportunities to further BERE - SRR 200412 B2
develop strategic cooperation and AfERERR MO EHRE
expand our business scale

Invest in our intelligent operationaland & A Bk EL RAHERE 10% 629 57.4 9.0 484 By December 2024
internal management systems to improve ~ ZS LM ETHREEE R 200412 B2

EPER

service quality and customer experience
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Net Unutilised Actual use Unutilised Expected

Percentage  proceedsas amountasat  of proceeds  amount as at timeline for

of total  disclosedin  December 31, during  December 31, the use of

amount  the Prospectus 2021 the Year 2022 proceeds
BRER BZ20015 HBE02F

3t BES®  12A3AL FEE  NANAL  BAREHEN

Purposes i ARt FERERE FXBALE ERBALE *BALH T’E%H%Fsﬁ
(approximate) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(14 (AE#T) (AE#T) (RE#T) (RE#T)

Enrich and expand our service and L= R MMRER 15% 943 82.0 69.4 126 By December 2024
product offerings to develop our EREENERZ T 2024512 B2
diverse business line 2%

Working capital and other general EEEEREM—RAT 10% 62.9 87 46.6 2.1 ByDecember 2023
corporate purposes BE) 2023F 128280

Total a5t 100% 628.9 514.7 1287 386.0

Note: T

Due to inadvertent oversight, the “actual use of proceeds during the Year” and the B R B 72 CRAAF A AR2023F7 A28 H)

“unutilised amount as at December 31, 2022 for items “Enrich and expand our 2022¢B’J£¢¥2§2% CTHE A [E2FMRRERD

service and product offerings to develop our diverse business line” and “Working
capital and other general corporate purposes”, and the “expected timeline for the
use of proceeds” for “Working capital and other general corporate purposes” in
the Company’s announcement dated July 28, 2023 on the 2022 Annual Results
were erroneously stated. Please refer to the above for the correct version.

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
proceeds were deposited in short-term interest-bearing bank accounts
with domestic and overseas licensed financial institutions.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the
2022 are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

year ended December 31,

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into or outstanding
at year-end by the Company or any of its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2022.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

As at December 31, 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB511
million (2021: approximately RMB522 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB23,000 (2021: RMB2,235).

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Directors were
as follows:

Non-executive Director

Mr. SONG Gewei (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. DAl Wei

Mr. KANG Weiguo

Ms. WANG Na

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. LI Haitao

Dr. FAN Yun
Mr. WONG Yun Pun
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”), the Board shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The term
of office of any Director appointed hereunder shall expire at the next
general meeting of the Company and he or she shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. DAI Wei, Mr. KANG Weiguo and Ms. WANG Na
shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors who are eligible for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular to be despatched to the
Shareholders.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the opinion that they are
independent during the year ended December 31, 2022.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 31 to 37 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by either the relevant executive
Director or the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other party. The appointment of executive Directors
is subject to the retirement and re-election by rotation requirements
of the Directors under the Articles of Association.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Pursuant
to their respective letters of appointment, each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to receive a fixed Director’s fee, and
the non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any
remuneration. Such appointment is subject to the retirement and re-
election by rotation requirements of the Directors under the Articles
of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group, other than contracts
expiring within one year or terminable by the employer without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 1,831 employees.
The Group provides regular training to each operating department,
including new employee orientation, technical training, professional
and management training, team building and communication
training. The Group also offers competitive remuneration packages,
including salaries, bonuses and other benefits. In general, the Group
determines the salaries of employees based on the qualifications,
experience, position and seniority of each employee. The
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established to review the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior management in
the light of the Group’s operating results, the individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices. The remuneration received by the Directors and senior
management includes fees, salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits
in kind and contributions to pension plans in accordance with the
provisions of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 are
set out in Notes 36 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit plans are
set out in Note 2.15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Interest in the Company:

Nature of interest

EEME

Name of Director

EEHS

BN e B & FETE

RAFRARKIEBEAFEFBEINLGE
|MARMIFE2.15 -

BE=REmiTRABRRD -
AR 1) Je frhee A o e

24

2022F 12 A31H » EERARAZSITH
AEBRARA REFAEREZE(TERE
REAEEDI ([ FH R EEEHI]) XV EB) AR
17 - ABRERR % Mﬂ%ﬁqﬂ%mﬁﬁ#‘%&ﬁﬂf
{Im1ﬁﬂ%xv*l3%7&%8’“ HERMEARAR

RETH R AR (BIEHIRIEE #&H ff'zx
fﬁﬂﬁf‘ﬁﬂ%‘x%&" TESAR B ¥E B 0 # &= RO%
B) WIREE %&Hﬁiﬂlﬂﬁu%ssmmaﬁ
RAREGEMECMANERE AR iR
%FLrn%EBIJWﬁ-JrPﬁﬁEﬁLmi—%ﬁA%%iﬁﬁ

ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬂ’ﬁi‘fﬁ SPRI(MRZESPRI ) ARG AR
NS m oK BT ¢
RARRE =
Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares held

FrsRMEE O

shareholding
REMUB DL

Mr. SONG Gewei Founder of a discretionary trust,

("Mr. Song" )@ Interest in a controlled corporation
REZFRE(TRELED® RREFEINIA - RITEE#ER
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Notes:
Q) (L) — long position.

(2) The entire share capital of Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo Holdings Limited
(“Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI”) is wholly owned by Hung Fai Property
Limited. The Eternity Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Song as the
settlor on November 10, 2020 for the benefit of Kanggiao Taichen Holdings
Limited (“Kanggiao Taichen BVI") (a limited company incorporated in the
British Virgin Island and wholly owned by Mr. Song) and his family members
with Trident Trust Company (South Dakota) Inc. (“Trident Trust”) acting as
the trustee. Mr. Song (as the founder of the Eternity Trust) and Trident Trust
are taken to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI under the SFO.

Interest in shares of associated corporation:
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1 LW—wE-

2 BEBEEERAERAR (BB AEEBVI K
2 #P % 7N F Hung Fai Property Limited 2 & °
Eternity Trust /R %5 4 (1E A Z 58 A ) 720204
MAI0BE REBRREERAR LA ([RERRE
BVI)) (REE 4 RA ST MAER AR
REEDERE) RE KKK B 725 8 Trident
Trust Company (South Dakota) Inc. ([ Trident
Trust]) FERZFEATTE) RUMDRIEFT - TR
%4 (YE A Eternity Trust 898132 A ) & Trident Trust
RIRE 5 R EROIHE AR RIE T EEBVIFT
BENAARBRMDPAE S -

FAAEEE B ) By i s

Approximate

Name of Name of Number of percentage of
Director associated corporation Nature of interest shares held® shareholding
EEpE HE LR EH EEME FEROBEY RESIEIL
Mr. Song Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI Founder of a discretionary trust, 100 (L) 100%
Interest in a controlled
corporation
REHE AR AEEBVI FRETEIUA  XEEEER
Note: FI5E

(1) (L) — long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, none of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any of the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

m  O—#a-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2022, the following persons (other than a

Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which fell

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the

provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO:

= &% INDAINCIEEE R Sh)

R2022F12A31H U TAE(BESH AR
AR EITIA BRRIN) AR AR 1 s MR B AR
MPRREBERBEIZILFRBERAEXVEE2 L3
DEAERMANT KRR - BT SERAR
NAREFES KAEEIEIBCEEFENF
EMAEERIOAE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders Status and nature of interest shares held® shareholding
BREEHE St kERME FrsiRmEa® REMAOB DL
Mr. Song®@ Founder of a discretionary trust, 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
Interest in a controlled corporation
RICHED PRETTEINA - I EE RS
Hung Fai Property Limited®@ Interest in a controlled corporation 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
LB ER
Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI® Beneficial owner 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
EREIRAETE BVI® BEmEa A
Trident Trust®@ Trustee 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
ZHEA
Ms. Dong Yanxia® Spouse’s interest 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%

Dong Yanxia 2 = ©®

Notes:

(1) (L) — long positions.

Bt

(2)  The entire share capital of Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI is wholly owned by
Hung Fai Property Limited. The Eternity Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Song as the settlor on November 10, 2020 for the benefit of Kanggiao
Taichen BVI (a limited company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by
Mr. Song) and his family members with Trident Trust acting as the trustee.
Mr. Song (as the founder of the Eternity Trust) and Trident Trust are taken to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo

BVI under the SFO.

3) Ms. Dong Yanxia is the spouse of Mr. Song and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares in which Mr. Song is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022

BREREEEEERAE/ S —FFR

BT

@

3)

L—FE °

BRI 15 4 V& BVI Y 2 B A% 7K |1 Hung Fai Property
Limited 2 & ¥ A ° Eternity Trust AR £ £ (1A
ZFEA) 2020511 B10B AEBREBVI(R
RBERRSIMKINERARTWHREES
B¥ER) RE K&K & K F) & 8 Trident Trust (1F
REFATR)RUNDRET  MAREEHER
Eternity Trust 88132 A ) K Trident Trust 48 1% 3% %
R BB AR AR RPN B AR 10 A4 08 BVI PS B 9 R
RNRARMDPHEEER

Dong YanxiaZ T &R £ £ WS - BRI ZE
HREEED - WARBNREERAERORD
REE R



2022, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company is aware of any person

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31,

or the Company had not been notified by any person (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who has an interest in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
interests or short positions which are required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

To ensure that competition does not develop between our Group and
our Controlling Shareholders, each of our Controlling Shareholders
(collectively, the “Covenantors” and each, a “Covenantor”) entered
into a deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) in favor of our Company for ourselves and as trustee
for the benefit of each of our subsidiaries on June 17, 2021.

For details of the non-competition undertakings, please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the

Prospectus.

Based on the information and confirmation provided by the
Covenantors, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the implementation of the Deed of Non-competition for the year
ended December 31, 2022 and are satisfied that the Covenantors are
in compliance with the Deed of Non-competition.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For details of such continuing connected transactions, please
refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions —
(D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject to Reporting, Annual
Review, Announcement, Circular and Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirements” in the Prospectus, the section headed
“Events after the Balance Sheet Date” of this report. The transaction
amount of the continuing connected transactions of the Group for

FEREBERS

AEBRETRERS  ZERHEK LTH
A 14AAETBE THIFERER S - BR%ER
BEEXZNFE B2RBRER [FERH
ER G — D)/EESTHE - FEEH 25
BERBIRRIERENFEBELS ] —
B o REEREZE202F 12 A31BIEFER
FEMEXHNZZHEHINAT ¢

the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out below:

Transaction
Amount Annual Cap for
for the Year Ended the Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2022

Connected Person Nature of Transaction (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
BEAL REME REZE2022F REBZE2022F
12B31BLEFEN 12831HLFEN
REEHE FELR
(AR T ) (AR®T )
1. Beijing Tongdao Group®ete2 Provision of pre-delivery property 18,902 20,441
management services
bR EEEE W=D AR E IR RS
2. Beijing Tongdao Group Provision of value-added services 41,626 179,137
IERFAEEE REEERE
3. Beijing Tongdao Group Provision of sales agency services 46,647 193,809
b RRIEEE PR & IR RS
4. Beijing Tongdao Group Payment of refundable deposits 197,270 200,000

1t [E3E

i

Notes:

1. Beijing Kanggiao Tongdao Shenghe Consulting Group Co., Ltd. and its

in connection with the sales
agency services (maximum
daily balance)

S HERERBETRE
FRER (BRRSHER)

—

subsidiaries (It R FEBRIBEAS L EEBHBR A F]) (“Beijing Tongdao”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability which is beneficially-
wholly owned by Mr. Song, the ultimate Controlling Shareholder, and

therefore a connected person of the Company.

2. Beijing Tongdao, its subsidiaries and associates is defined as Beijing Tongdao 2.

Group.
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Pre-delivery Property Management Services
Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject to
Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 1. Provision
of Pre-delivery Property Management Services to Beijing Tongdao
and its Associates” in the Prospectus, the Company (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement
(the “Pre-delivery Property Management Services Framework
Agreement”) with Beijing Tongdao (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries and associates) on June 17, 2021, in relation to the
provision of basic property management services and vacant
property maintenance services (for maintenance of vacant
properties which have not been sold) for Beijing Tongdao and its
associates’ property projects, including but not limited to
cleaning, gardening, repair and maintenance of common area
and shared facilities (collectively, the “Pre-delivery Property
Management Services”), for a term from June 17, 2021 to
December 31, 2023, renewable by mutual agreement of the
parties, subject to compliance with all relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
The annual caps of the transactions contemplated under the Pre-
delivery Property Management Services Framework Agreement
for the three years ending December 31, 2023 are
RMB17,775,000, RMB20,441,000 and RMB23,712,000,
respectively.

As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Pre-delivery Property Management Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Pre-delivery Property
Management Services under the Pre-delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for the three
years ending December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%, the transactions
contemplated thereunder will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement, circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Value-added Services Master Framework
Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 2.
Provision of Value-added Services to Beijing Tongdao and its
Associates” in the Prospectus, the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement
(the “Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement”)
with Beijing Tongdao (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries
and associates) on June 17, 2021, in relation to the provision of
a variety of value-added services to the residential property
projects of Beijing Tongdao and its associates, including
construction site supervision and maintenance services and pre-
delivery services (without basic property management services,
including but not limited to cleaning, gardening, repair and
maintenance of common area and shared facilities) (the “Value-
added Services”), for a term from June 17, 2021 to December
31, 2023, renewable by mutual agreement of the parties,
subject to compliance with all relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. The
annual cap of the transactions contemplated under the Value-
added Services Master Framework Agreement for the three
years ending December 31, 2023 is RMB115,732,000,
RMB179,137,000 and RMB238,947,000, respectively.
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As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Value-added Services
under the Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement
for the three years ending December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%,
the transactions contemplated thereunder will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 3.
Provision of Sales Agency Services to Beijing Tongdao and its
Associates” in the Prospectus, the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries), entered into a sales agency services
framework agreement with Beijing Tongdao (for itself and on
behalf of its associates), pursuant to which our Company agreed
to provide sales agency services for first-hand properties and
unsold parking spaces, including but not limited to consulting
services and sales events organization services (the “Sales
Agency Services”), on an exclusive and sole basis for some of
the property projects developed by Beijing Tongdao and its
associates (the “Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement”),
for a term from June 17, 2021 to December 31, 2023,
renewable by mutual agreement of the parties, subject to
compliance with all relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. The annual cap
of the transactions contemplated under the Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement for the three years ending
December 31, 2023 is RMB133,386,000, RMB 193,809,000 and
RMB277,281,000, respectively.

As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Sales Agency Services
under the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for the
three years ending December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%, the
transactions contemplated thereunder will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Supplemental Sales Agency Service Framework
Agreement

As disclosed in the Prospectus, on June 17, 2021, the Group
and Beijing Tongdao Group entered into the Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide the Sales Agency Services to the Beijing
Tongdao Group, being sales agency services for first-hand
properties and unsold parking spaces, including but not limited
to consulting services and sales events organization services, on
an exclusive and sole basis for some of the property projects
developed by the Beijing Tongdao Group.

On April 21, 2022, the Company and Beijing Tongdao entered
into the supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement, pursuant to which members of the Group shall pay
to members of the Beijing Tongdao Group the refundable
deposits in connection with the sales agency services
contemplated under the Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement. At the annual general meeting held on June 30,
2022, the independent Shareholders approved the entering into
of the supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement.
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Beijing Tongdao is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Song
Gewei, the ultimate Controlling Shareholder. Therefore, Beijing
Tongdao is a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated
under the supplemental sales agency services framework
agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions of the
Company. For details of the supplemental sales agency services
framework agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated April 21, 2022 and the circular of the Company
dated June 15, 2022.

Confirmation from the independent non-executive
Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have:

(i)  been entered into in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group;

(i)  been conducted based on normal or better commercial terms;
or been entered into based on the terms no less favorable than
those available from or provided by independent third parties;
and

(i) been carried out according to the agreements for related
transactions with terms that are fair and reasonable and in line
with the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from the auditor

The Company’s Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised),
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group from pages
50 to 55 of the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.56. The Auditor concluded that based on the foregoing in
respect of the disclosed continuing connected transactions:

a.  nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to his attention that causes him
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c.  nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to his attention that
causes him to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

In relation to the Property Development Guarantee that the Group
entered into to guarantee the repayment obligations of a related
party of the Company, the Kanggiao Property Development Group,
during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, please refer to
Note 31 of the consolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Annual Report, the Directors consider that other
related party transactions disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report did not fall or were fully
exempted under the definition of “connected transactions” or
“continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and hence are not required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the Property Development Guarantee was provided in favour of
certain entities that were ultimately owned or controlled by our non-
executive Director, Mr. Song Gewei, the provision of the Property
Development Guarantee constitutes a connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and the Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Property
Development Guarantee was discharged on March 31, 2023.

The Company regrets that it has not complied with the relevant
requirements for connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules with respect to the Property Development Guarantee.
Upon identification of the Property Development Guarantee, the
Company has promptly engaged the Independent Investigator and
the IC Consultant, and has adopted their recommendations in order
to prevent recurrence of similar events in the future. Further
announcements shall be made regarding the findings of the
Independent Investigator and the IC Consultant.

At the same time as the Property Development Guarantee was
executed, Beijing Tongdao, a connected person, provided a counter-
guarantee in favour of Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo (the “Counter-
Guarantee”). Under the Counter-Guarantee, Beijing Tongdao shall
indemnify Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo for up to the total amount
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which may be payable by Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo under the
Property Development Guarantee, together with any interests accrued
thereon, any penalties, compensation and other expenses. The term
of the Counter-Guarantee is for a period of three years from
December 20, 2021. As the Counter-Guarantee provided by Beijing
Tongdao was conducted on normal commercial terms and was not be
secured by the assets of the Group, in accordance with Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules, such Counter-Guarantee was fully exempted from
reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief to which shareholders are
entitled by virtue of their shareholdings in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save for the Property Development Guarantee, the details of which
had been discussed in “Management Discussion and Analysis — III.
FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets” above and disclosed in note
32 to the financial statements of this annual report, none of the
directors is directly or indirectly materially interested in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group and entered into by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2022 and up
to the date of this report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save for the Property Development Guarantee, the details of which
had been discussed in “Management Discussion and Analysis — III.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets” above and disclosed in note
32 to the financial statements of this annual report, during the year
ended December 31, 2022, none of the Controlling Shareholders or
their subsidiaries had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of material importance to the
business of the Group and entered into by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries during the year ended December
31, 2022 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and no Director or any of their
spouses or their minor children has been granted any right to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate, or has exercised any such right.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Legal Proceedings by Huarong

As disclosed above in “Management Discussion and Analysis — III.
FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets”, in December 2021, Henan
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
provided the Property Development Guarantee in favour of China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. Henan Branch (FEIZEREE
ERRMHERARTEE D AA]) ("Huarong”) for the financing
arrangement of a related party of the Company, the Kanggiao
Property Development Group. On November 2, 2022, Huarong
commenced proceedings in the Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s
Court (BB A% A RJEFR) against, among other parties, Henan
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo, for, inter alia, the outstanding amount of
approximately RMB355 million under the financing arrangement with
Kanggiao Property Development Group, as well as the liquidated
damages for breach of the financing terms and compensation for the
extension of the grace period for repayment. As guarantors under the
Property Development Guarantee, Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo
was named as a party to the proceedings.

On December 2, 2022, Huarong entered into a settlement agreement
(FER1%5%) (the “Settlement Agreement”) with, among other parties,
Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo. Under the Settlement Agreement,
the outstanding principal of RMB362 million under the financing
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arrangement with Kanggiao Property Development Group has been
extended to December 17, 2024, in exchange for, inter alia, (i)
repayment of RMB70 million as principal by December 17, 2023; (ii)
an extension penalty fee, to be paid in tranches every five months
until December 17, 2024, (iii) certain assets of Kanggiao Property
Development Group to be pledged as security; and (iv) the addition of
Kaifeng Kangxiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (FAFTEREREH
ER BB AR]), a company under the Kanggiao Property
Development Group, as a joint debtor. Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo
(together with Mr. Song Gewei and a company under the Kanggiao
Property Development Group) shall guarantee Kanggiao Property
Development Group’s repayment of the outstanding principal, the
payment of the extension penalty fee, damages for breach of the
financing terms, and enforcement expenses. Under the Settlement
Agreement, breach of its terms shall entitle Huarong to accelerated
repayment and increased extension penalty fee.

On January 16, 2023, the Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court
issued a civil mediation agreement (RZFEFfFE) (case number: (2022)
R01R4)1155%3%) (the “Civil Mediation Agreement”), confirming the
salient terms of the Settlement Agreement.

On March 31, 2023, Huarong issued a statement of discharge of
guarantee (the “Discharge”) to Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo,
thereby voluntarily discharging all obligations of Henan Kanggiao
Yueshenghuo under the Property Development Guarantee and the
Civil Mediation Agreement, and relinquishing any right to
enforcement actions Huarong may have under the said agreements.

Legal Proceedings by Tibet Yuteng

As disclosed above in “Management Discussion and Analysis — III.
FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets”, the Zhengzhou Intermediate
People’s Court issued a freezing order on August 8, 2022 against
Dingfeng Property, freezing its bank deposit for up to
RMB186,224,556. Approximately RMB4.8 million in Dingfeng
Property’s bank account was frozen as at December 31, 2022. The
freezing order has subsequently been lifted in January 2023. Please
refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Illl. FINANCIAL
REVIEW — Pledge of assets” under the above section of
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS for further details.

Saved as disclosed in “Management Discussion and Analysis — lIl.
FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets”, the Group was not involved
in any other material legal proceedings or arbitrations. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material legal proceeding or
claim which is pending or threatening against the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company did not
enter into or have any contracts for the management and
administration of all or any substantial part of the business.

DIRECTORS" INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest in any business which directly or indirectly
compete or may compete with the businesses of our Group during
the year ended December 31, 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

In accordance with the Articles of Association and applicable law, the
Company has made appropriate insurance arrangements for all costs,
fees, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by any Director or officer
in the performance and discharge of his or her duties and
responsibilities. As at December 31, 2022 and as at the date of this
report, the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association and such
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance are in force.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There are no other major investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures held as at
December 31, 2022, nor are there any plans for other significant
investments or additions to capital assets as authorized by the Board.

ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY
The Property Development Guarantee

On December 17, 2021, Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo entered into
the Property Development Guarantee, pursuant to which Henan
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo agreed to guarantee the repayment
obligation of the Kanggiao Property Development Group under
certain financing arrangement with Huarong.

On December 2, 2022, Huarong entered into a settlement agreement
(FER ) (the "Settlement Agreement”) with, among other parties,
Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo. Under the Settlement Agreement,
the outstanding principal of RMB362 million under the financing
arrangement with Kanggiao Property Development Group has been
extended to December 17, 2024, in exchange for, inter alia, (i)
repayment of RMB70 million as principal by December 17, 2023; (ii)
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an extension penalty fee to be paid in tranches every five months until
December 17, 2024, (iii) certain assets of Kanggiao Property
Development Group to be pledged as security; and (iv) the addition of
Kaifeng Kangxiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (FA¥TEHEREH
ERMEBMRAA), a company under the Kangqgiao Property
Development Group, as a joint debtor. Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo
(together with Mr. Song and a company under the Kanggiao Property
Development Group) shall guarantee Kanggiao Property Development
Group's repayment of the outstanding principal, the payment of the
extension penalty fee, damages for breach of the financing terms, and
enforcement expenses.

The Dingfeng-Yuanxuan Guarantee

Prior to the Group’s acquisition of 51% equity interest of Dingfeng
Property, Dingfeng Property had entered into the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan
Guarantee, which consisted of two agreements: (i) a guarantee
agreement dated October 29, 2020 and (ii) a guarantee agreement
dated June 29, 2017. Under the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan Guarantee,
Dingfeng Property, being one of the guarantors, guarantees the cash
payment obligation and the performance of the redemption
obligation of Henan Ruipeng Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (AIEimiEE YD
FHE AR A 7)) (“Henan Ruipeng”) and Guan Xiaoyan (B8 Z), which
arose from certain investment agreements between Henan Ruipeng,
Guan Xiaoyan (3B Z) and Tibet Yuteng Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd. (FAEIREEE IR AR A A]) (“Tibet Yuteng”), among
other parties. According to the valuation report by the Valuer, as of
December 31, 2022, the financial liability guaranteed by Dingfeng
Property was approximately RMB192.17 million.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On March 30, 2023, Audit Committee received the Auditor’s Letter.
The Auditor’s Letter identified that two guarantees were omitted from
the list of the Group’s guarantee obligations in favour of external
parties provided by the Company to the Auditor. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated April 18, 2023 for the key
content of the Auditor’s Letter.

As additional time was required by the Company to conduct an
independent investigation and by the Auditor to complete the audit
process in respect of the 2022 Annual Results, the Company was
unable to announce its audited 2022 Annual Results by the deadline
prescribed by the Listing Rules. The trading of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange was suspended with effect from April 3, 2023.
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As disclosed in the Announcement, an independent committee
comprising all the independent non-executive Directors was
established by the Audit Committee. Grant Thornton Advisory Services
Limited (the “Independent Investigator”) has been appointed to
conduct an independent investigation on the issues raised by the
Auditor, and SHINEWING Risk Services Limited (the “IC Consultant”)
has been appointed to conduct an independent internal control
review on the Group’s management of related party transactions and
the provision of guarantees, and a follow-up review of the remedial
measures implemented by the Group to address the internal control
issues raised in the Independent Investigation Report (as defined
below).

The Company has also engaged the Valuer to assess the ECL of the
financial guarantees of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2022. Please refer to “lll. FINANCIAL REVIEW — Pledge of assets”
under the above section of MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS for the assessment of the Valuer.

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Independent Investigator
has issued its report of findings of its investigation to the Independent
Committee (the "Independent Investigation Report”). The
Independent Committee has accepted the conclusion of the
Independent Investigation Report and concluded that the omission of
the Property Development Guarantee and the Dingfeng-Yuanxuan
Guarantee from the list of the Group’s guarantee obligations in
favour of external parties provided by the Group to the Auditor was
due to internal control weaknesses of the Group and no other
guarantees in accordance with the Independent Investigation Report
by Independent Investigator were identified. The Company will make
further announcement(s) shortly to update the Shareholders and
potential investors of the Company regarding the key findings of the
Independent Investigation Report.

The IC Consultant has also issued its report of its findings and
recommendations (the “Internal Control Report”). The Company has
adopted all the recommendations of the IC Consultant. In the follow-
up review conducted by the IC Consultant, the Company has
implemented adequate measures to address the internal control
weaknesses identified in the Independent Investigation Report. No
further material deficiencies were identified by the IC Consultant.

The Board has reviewed the content and the findings of the
Independent Investigation Report and the Internal Control Report.
Having considered the recommendations of the IC Consultant, the
Board is of the view that the remedial and rectification measures
implemented by the Group are sufficient to address the internal
control weaknesses identified in the Independent Investigation Report
and the Internal Control Report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% (the minimum public float required by the Stock
Exchange and the Listing Rules) of the entire issued share capital of
the Company is held by the public.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reviews with the Board the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discusses with the
management the Group’s internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. PricewaterhouseCoopers
shall retire from office at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group has complied
with the “Comply or Explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guidelines as set out in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules. Matters relating to the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") of the Group will be set out in a separate ESG
report to be published by the Company in due course and will be
available on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

By order of the Board
Chairman
Mr. SONG Gewei

Hong Kong, July 28, 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules as its code of governance. During the Year, in
the opinion of the Board, save as the code provisions of the CG Code
disclosed below, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code.

Under Code Provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’'s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, while the Company has a monthly reporting system
with updates on overall monthly performance and operations, the
monthly reports did not include information on the provision of
guarantee to external parties, material litigations and contingent
liabilities.

As a rectification measure, the management of each subsidiary of the
Company shall submit to the Board monthly reports on the
performance and operations of each subsidiary of the Company,
covering areas including but not limited to the provision of guarantees
and security, litigations and contingent liabilities. The Board shall
review and provided feedback to the management of each subsidiary
of the company.

Under Code Provision D.2.1 of the CG Code, the board should
oversee the issuer’s risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis, ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
issuer’s and their subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least annually and report to
shareholders that it has done so in its Corporate Governance Report.
The review should cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

The Independent Investigator and IC Consultant have identified the
weaknesses in the Group’s internal control during its review. As of the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has adopted all the
recommendations from the IC Consultant. Please refer to “Significant
events after the end of the reporting period” in this Annual Report for
details.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations which have a significant impact to the
Group, which primarily include the Company Law of the PRC, the Civil
Code of the PRC, the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC, the Bidding Law of the PRC, the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC, the Production Safety Law of the PRC, the Fire
Control Law of the PRC and the Land Administration Law of the PRC
as well as the Provisions on Property Management and the
Regulations on Safety Supervision of Special Equipment promulgated
by the State Council of the PRC.

During the Year, the Group had complied with the relevant laws and
regulations in all material aspects and did not breach or violate any
laws and regulations applicable to the Company which would have a
material adverse impact on the business operation or financial
conditions of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to
such Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of liability arising from legal action against its Directors, and will
conduct annual review on such insurance coverage.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one non-
executive Director, three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as detailed below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. DAI Wei
Mr. KANG Weiguo
Ms. WANG Na

Non-executive Director:
Mr. SONG Geweli
Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. LI Haitao
Dr. FAN Yun
Mr. WONG Yun Pun

The biographies of the Directors are set out in section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

During the Year, the Board has met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
which relates to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge,
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

As regards to the provisions under the Corporate Governance Code
requiring directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board as they bring an impartial view on the Group’s strategies,
performance and control, as well as ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders are considered. All independent non-executive Directors
possess appropriate academic, professional qualifications or related
financial management experience. None of the independent non-
executive Directors held any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Board Independence Assessment
Mechanism (the “Board Independence Assessment Mechanism”). The
Board Independence Assessment Mechanism aims to ensure that the
Board has strong independent elements, so that the Board can
effectively make independent judgments and better protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the
independent non-executive Directors are made available to the Board,
the Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
annually with regards to all relevant factors including the following:

o required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability
to fulfill their roles;

o time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

o firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

o declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as independent
non-executive Directors;

o no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationship or circumstances which would affect the
exercise of their independent judgement; and

o the chairman of the Board meets with the independent non-
executive Directors regularly without the presence of the
executive Directors.

In addition, according to the Board Independence Assessment
Mechanism, Directors are allowed to seek independent professional
advice when performing their duties and are encouraged to
independently contact and consult the senior management of the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Board Diversity Policy
sets out the criteria for the selection of Board candidates, including
but not limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience,
knowledge, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length
of service to achieve Board diversity, and the final decision on
appointment will be based on the value that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. In accordance with the current composition of
the Board, our Board has a balance of knowledge, skills and
experience in overall management and strategy development,
economics, accounting and financial management and corporate
governance.

The Board has appointed our Nomination Committee to be
responsible for compliance with the relevant Code on Board Diversity
under the Corporate Governance Code. Our Nomination Committee
will review the Board’s diversity policy and relevant compliance
situation with the relevant Corporate Governance Code from time to
time (at least once a year) to ensure its ongoing effectiveness.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee and the Board have
reviewed the membership, structure and composition of the Board,
and are of the opinion that the structure of the Board is reasonable,
and the experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and
fields can enable the Company to maintain high standard of
operation.

Measurable Objectives

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
measurable objectives adopted include (a) at least one-third of the
members of the Board shall be independent non-executive Directors;
(b) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications; and (c) at least one of
the members of the Board shall be female.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company will take opportunities to increase the proportion of
female members of the Board when selecting and recommending
suitable candidates for appointments to enhance gender diversity in
accordance with stakeholder expectations and recommended best
practices. To develop a pipeline of potential female successors to the
Board, the Company will (i) ensure that there is gender diversity when
recruiting staff at mid to senior levels; and (ii) engage more resources
in training female staff with the aim of promoting them to be
members of the senior management or the Board. The Company is of
the view that such strategy will offer chances for the Board to identify
capable female candidates to be nominated as a member of the
Board with an aim to achieving gender diversity of the Board in the
long run.

The Board has also assessed the Group’s diversity profile annually of
all levels of employees and applied the diversity policy to attract,
retain and motivate employees from the widest possible pool of
available talent. As of December 31, 2022, the Group had 1,831
full-time employees (including senior management), of whom the
number of female employees (including senior management)
accounted for approximately 49.1% and the Group has achieved the
objective of maintaining a relatively balanced gender ratio. For the
purpose of implementation of the gender diversity for the Group's
workforce, the measurable objectives adopted include, among other
things, (i) at least one of the senior management members of the
Company shall be female; and (ii) at least 30% of the Group’s full-
time employees shall be female. Based on the Board’s review, there
was no mitigating factor or circumstance which makes achieving
gender diversity across the workforce (including senior management)
more challenging or less relevant.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules, and
regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and changes in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position, and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for all the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The joint company secretaries of the Company update and
provide the Directors with written training materials in relation to their
roles, functions, and duties from time to time.
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Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of the  RIFZE1ZMHAER - REZE 2022412 A 31
trainings received by the Directors during the year ended December — H |F6[E - EHET RIS MM T -
31, 2022 is as follows:

Nature of
continuous
professional
development

Name of Director courses
BEEX
EEgE BRABME
Mr. SONG Gewei A~C-D
RERTE
Mr. DAI Wei A~C-D
BT E
Mr. KANG Weiguo A~C-D
EREBSEE
Ms. WANG Na A~C- D
Fifzz+
Dr. LI Haitao A~C-D
FEEELT
Dr. FAN Yun A~C-D
BiniE L+
Mr. WONG Yun Pun A~C-D
=EHALE
Notes: e
: Attending seminar and/or conference and/or forum and/or briefing A HERS R REF L SwmE R SRS
B: Speaking at seminar and/or conference and/or forum B: ST IN OGN Y YRk
Participating in training provided by legal firm, training related to the ~ C: 2 NEEIEHAAIRENEY - EATEBEBN
business of the Company =5l
D:  Reading materials on various issues, including corporate governance, director ~ D: FrEZBERRENME  BECEER B2
responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws BE - EWRRREMERED

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
BREBEEEEARAT/ S _FFRH

73



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which may be terminated by either the relevant
executive Director or the Company by providing not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. The appointment of
executive Directors is subject to the retirement and re-election by
rotation requirements of the Directors under the Articles of
Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Pursuant
to their respective letters of appointment, each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to receive remuneration and the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive an annual salary.
Such appointment is subject to the retirement and re-election by
rotation requirements under the Articles of Association and the
applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group, other than contracts
expiring within one year or determinable by the employer without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the then
number of Directors (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to, but not less than one-third of, the
number of Directors) shall retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting and each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years at the annual general meeting.
Directors appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies on the Board
or as new Directors shall be subject to re-election by Shareholders at
the next general meeting following their appointment.

The procedures and processes for the appointment, re-election and
dismissal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the composition
of the Board and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers are dispatched at least three days before
the Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the relevant papers and be
adequately prepared for attending the meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.
Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the joint company secretaries
with copies circulated to all Directors for their information and
records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.
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During the Year, five Board meetings were held and an annual RAFEER - ARFIEEITHAAEES S5
general meeting was convened by the Company. The attendance of N—XBRERBEFAZ - AfEEHFEeEee
individual Directors at Board meetings and the general meeting is set % RARE A EHEBEREH N T &

out in the following table:

Number of annual

Number of general meetings
board meetings attended/number of
attended/number of annual general
board meetings meetings
Director to be attended to be attended
EHERRBF
EHEESERY ASXRE EHERR
5= EBHEEESRH BFERERK
Mr. SONG Gewei 5/5 7
RELFRE
Mr. DAl Wei 5/5 1Al
CIR b
Mr. KANG Weiguo 5/5 7
EXelebt
Ms. WANG Na 5/5 11
T+
Dr. LI Haitao 5/5 1Al
FEEEL
Dr. FAN Yun 5/5 11
Bzt
Mr. WONG Yun Pun 5/5 1Al
=HBELEE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS B EEITEAER HHEXESTE|
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions 772 & 2 549 - 48 B M 4% + PR 9 ¢ - g
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in  {TAZEETELER FHIZESTE]) ([1ZHSF
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for dealing in the B ) {EAESEITESTHMNITASTE < KM
securities of the Group by the Directors. After specific enquiries made 22T E{EH AREHE  SEECHR  #
to all Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed their compliance SR ARFEE —H B TIZE T B FTE A IZ 4]
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the ¢ °

Year.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors,
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration, and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

a.  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

b.  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

c.  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to employees and Directors; and

e. to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board Committees operates under its terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee comprising one non-
executive Director, Mr. SONG Gewei, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Dr. FAN Yun and Mr. WONG Yun Pun, with Mr.
WONG Yun Pun as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s financial information, and oversee the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
procedures.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to deliberate and consider:

1. to review the unaudited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2021,

2. to review the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2021; and

3. toreview the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended June 30, 2022.

The Audit Committee has also evaluated the effectiveness of the
Company'’s risk management and internal control measures and the
Company’s internal audit function.
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The following table sets out details of the attendance of each Audit
Committee member at meetings during the year ended December 31,
2022:

AL 1/‘-"-\\ =+
1F ﬁ?ﬁ%#ﬁﬁi

TREFNNREZ2022F12 A31 BIEFEHME
BEGZEENELREROFE

Number of
meetings Number of

should be meetings
Director attended attended
= EHEER R HESERE
Mr. WONG Yun Pun 3 3
=HEELE
Mr. SONG Gewei 3 3
REZRAE
Dr. FAN Yun 3 3
BisE+
Remuneration Committee FMEEE

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee comprising
two independent non-executive Directors, Dr. LI Haitao and Dr. FAN
Yun, and an executive Director, Ms. WANG Na, with Dr. LI Haitao as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish and
review the policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management and to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for the formulation of such remuneration policy, and to
make recommendations to the Directors in this regard, to determine
the specific terms of remuneration packages for each executive
Director and senior management and to approve performance-based
remuneration with reference to the Company’s targets and objectives
as adjusted by resolutions of the Directors from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to deliberate and consider the
remuneration of the relevant independent non-executive Directors.
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The following table sets out details of the attendance of each
Remuneration Committee member at meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2022:

TREFAEHZE2022F 12 A31BIEFESH
MEEEeKEHFEEEMNFE

Number of
meetings Number of

should be meetings
Director attended attended
= EHEERRHE HESERE
Dr. LI Haitao 1 1
FEEELT
Dr. FAN Yun 1 1
LN
Ms. WANG Na 1 1
Fii L
Nomination Committee REZE®

The Board has established a Nomination Committee comprising an
executive Director, Mr. SONG Gewei, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Dr. FAN Yun and Dr. LI Haitao, with Mr. SONG
Gewei as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to regularly review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, make recommendations to
the Board on proposed changes to the composition of the Board,
identify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the
nomination of Directors, ensure diversity of the Board, assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the appointment,
reappointment and dismissal of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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The Nominating Committee will evaluate candidates or incumbents
based on criteria such as credibility, industry achievements and
experience, availability of time and representation of relevant sector
interests, diversity on all aspects of the Board and tenure of service.
The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

2022, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to deliberate and consider the

During the year ended December 31,

remuneration of the structure, composition, size and diversity of the
Board of Directors.

The following table sets out details of the attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2022:

TRERWS
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TREINNREZE2022F 12 A31BILFESR
HELEEEHELFERAFE

Number of
meetings Number of

should be meetings
Director attended attended
= BHEERRH HESZRE
Mr. SONG Gewei 1 1
REZFRLE
Dr. FAN Yun 1 1
izt
Dr. LI Haitao 1 1
FEEEL
Director Nomination Policy EERBEX

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director (including an independent non-executive
Director) in accordance with the following procedures and processes:

i. The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort;
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The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
Shareholders with due consideration given to the criteria which
include but are not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest;

(©)  Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience
in the relevant industries in which the Group’s business is
involved;

(d)  Independence;
(e)  Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the
Board; and

(g)  Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such
as interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;
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vi. The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package of
such selected candidate;

vi. The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make the
recommendation to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration;

viii. The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board, who are not
members of the Nomination Committee, and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the case
may be; and

ix.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of
the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any
other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory authorities, if
required.

For the re-election of Directors at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contributions and
services to the Company of the retiring Directors, including its
attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and
general meetings (if applicable), and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall require
the nominee to submit updated biographical information and the
consent to be re-elected as a Director; and should review and
determine whether retiring Directors still meet the criteria for Director
selection. The Nomination Committee shall then make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall also monitor and review the
implementation of the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate
from time to time, and will report to the Board annually. As of the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee and the Board have
reviewed the Director Nomination Policy and consider it effective.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR BEEN S RETEE R SN
MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the members of the Board and the & ZE 202212 A31HILFE > KATEES
senior management of the Company as set out on pages 84 to 86 of KENSREEEBNFHIFBHA M T @ BIAR
this Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out FIRESYIEE 86 B, :

below:
Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid EEMERANVNESEFEMAL
Individuals
(a) Directors’ Remuneration () EEWL
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are as follows: EEMEFBOT
Pension cost,
housing
provident fund,
medical
insurance and
other allowance
For the year ended BZ222F Salariesand  and benefits
December 31, 2022 12A31HLEFE Director's fee bonuses in kind Total
BEEZERA -
FEAES
BERBEK -
ok FeRA HMERANET #st
Directors X RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®T R ARETR ARETR
Mr. DAl Wei B - 1,200 13 1,213
Ms. WANG Na M - 684 74 758
Mr. KANG Weiguo 5EHE - 545 82 627
Mr. SONG Gewei REE - - - -
Dr. LI Haitao 5% 91 - - 91
Dr. FAN Yun B 91 - - 91
Mr. WONG Yun Pun =Rh 91 - - 91
Total Bt 273 2,429 169 2,871
84 Kanggiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
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Pension cost,
housing
provident fund,
medical
insurance and
other allowance

For the year ended EE2021F Salaries and and benefits
December 31, 2021 12A31BIHEE Director’s fee bonuses in kind Total
FELAED
BERRER -
e He R HtERENERN Bt
Directors BF RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T AREF T AREF T ARETF T
Mr. DAI Wei B - 1,200 42 1,242
Ms. WANG Na T4 - 684 73 757
Mr. KANG Weiguo PR - 503 66 569
Mr. SONG Gewei REZ - - - -
Dr. Ll Haitao ENi 53 - - 53
Dr. FAN Yun BE¥x 53 - - 53
Mr. WONG Yun Pun BHE 53 - - 53
Total W=t 159 2,387 181 2,727
(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals (b) EUESHFMAL
An analysis of the Group’s five highest paid individuals for the NEFEFHZE2022FK2021F12 8318
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows: IFEERNSSHMATHONET -

Years ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Directors =
Non-Director highest paid individuals IEEEEFTMAL 2

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022 85
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Details of the remuneration of the above non-director highest A EE 20224 % 202112 A31H
paid individuals for the years ended December 31, 2022 and IFENIESEZIHFMATHEI©HF
2021 are as follows: =L OENE

Years ended December 31,
BZE12A31MHLLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARKETT
Salaries and bonuses e RIEAT 1,352 1,469
Pension cost, housing provident fund, BEEKA - FEAES
medical insurance and other allowance  Z2E (R 2 H b1t &%k
and benefits in kind 164 140
The maximum number of non-Director individuals whose ETIHEHBEANSEaHHIEESE A
remuneration falls within the following remuneration ranges: 2 -
Years ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
Remuneration range (in HKD) FNEE (LAUBTTED)
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 BT E
1,000,000 7T 2 2

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the Year. The management has provided the Board of
Directors with the necessary explanations and information to enable
the Board of Directors to make an informed assessment of the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements presented to the Board
of Directors for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out from pages 93 to 104
in this report. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2022, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control and risk management system (including the environmental,
social and governance risk) to safeguard the Group’s assets and
Shareholders’ interests and to review annually the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management system (including
the environmental, social and governance risk) to ensure the adequacy
of internal controls and the existing risk management system
(including the environmental, social and governance risk). The
Company also has an internal risk control audit department that
primarily analyzes and independently evaluates the adequacy and
effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and internal control
systems and reports its findings to the Board of Directors at least
annually.

AL 1/‘-"-\\ =+
1F E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

EEERSAMBRENTH

EXRAEERAMBMROBRIE B
B RRANE BB F B A R A FER
XENRERE EEECRESTSREME
MEBELEN  FEFTEHRETESSH
ENARRRIERE P BRRAETABAOE -

ESVTNBEAEEAREARELEBNE
REFEOEHHANBENEMNEATEER
% o

BRI R RS M SRR B R T ER
BN AREFIZEI104H - REEE=2022
F1RANBLEFENGEMBERERTE £S5
EEECENSFBRLERMER  fEHE
B RTEREENFERER - WIRFERE
REBUTRE IS HRER o

[\ B HE N A B

EEATARREARAMEELRERE
BERG(BERE HekEamR)  Nig#
AEBNEEMBRRES - WEFRIARA]
N EZENREREERSR(BRERR L8k
ERRR) BN - UERAREZEMIRE
MEREREZR(BERER e RERRR)
BB o ARRINAA A RREIEE T -
T 2OMABLFEETANRRERE AR
ERRGNASNERE  XELBFRAESR
emMEHLAEER -
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The Group's internal control and risk management system includes a
well-established organizational structure with clearly defined
responsibilities and authorities. The departments involved in the day-
to-day operations of the division are responsible for their conduct and
performance and are required to operate their own divisional business
within the limits of their authority and to implement and strictly
comply with the strategies and policies set by the Company from time
to time. Each division is also required to keep the Board informed of
significant developments in the division’s business and the
implementation of policies and strategies that are regularly
implemented by the Board. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
maintaining of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. However, these
systems are designed to manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to
meet business objectives and provide only reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As at December 31, 2022, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems (including the
environmental, social and governance risk) of the Group to ensure
that a sound system is maintained and operated in compliance with
the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by discussions
with the management of the Company, its external auditor and the
relevant assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. Also, the
Company has strict rules on the treatment and release of inside
information in accordance with relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules and the SFO and prohibits any unauthorized use or release of
confidential or inside information. The Directors and senior
management of the Company have adopted all reasonable measures
to ensure proper precautionary measures are in place to prevent the
Company from violating relevant disclosure requirements. The Board
believes that the existing internal control systems are adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.
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In order the address the issues raised in the Auditor’s Letter, the
Company has engaged the IC Consultant to conduct an independent
internal control review on the Group’s management of related party
transactions and the provision of guarantees, and a follow-up review
of the remedial measures implemented by the Group to address the
internal control issues raised in the Independent Investigation Report.
As at the date of this Annual Report, the internal control review has
been completed. The Board acknowledged that there are internal
control deficiencies identified as a result of the findings from the
internal control review by the IC Consultant. Please refer to
“Significant events after the end of the reporting period” in this
Annual Report for details.

The Board will continue to review and improve the Group’s internal
controls system, taking into account the prevailing regulatory
requirements, the Group’s business development and the interests of
Shareholders.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor’s approximate remuneration in respect of the audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2022 is as follows:

AL 1/‘-"-\\ =+
1F E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

REFERZEEE P REMME  ARFEHE
BRI AN R B B T R 5 e E R AER
MIRFUETT A M AEENES - UREASE
[ S AR RSB S 8 2 s P B H ) P B
MR EETRERS - RERFH
BE - ARENBRECE K - EFERA
RIBRIEBERNAMEFEEER - FHEAB
ZHITNE - BEFHAEN  FHEFLHAFR
) [REHRNERNFE] -

EEEeRERBTEERNR  AREXRKER
TR RN - #E B B A R R E A AR E
GBS

N

AN
stz

BT B

AN EZE 20225 12 A 31 B IEEE AR
N AR AR BN SR EURTS 2 A BN & #5)
m

Amount
Type of services (RMB)
Bk 7% %8 71 SHE(ARY)
Audit services ZERTE 1,868,000
Non-audit services — Interim review services IEZE RS — P HIE I RS 1,038,000
Total @t 2,906,000
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. WANG Na was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company on January 20, 2021. In order to maintain good corporate
governance and to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also engaged Ms. YU
Wing Sze of TMF Hong Kong Limited, a company secretarial service
provider, as another joint company secretary of the Company to assist
Ms. WANG Na in performing her duties as company secretary of the
Company. Ms. WANG Na is the principal contact person of Ms. YU
Wing Sze with the Company. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Ms. WANG Na and Ms. YU Wing Sze have attended not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance, and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective information on the Company for the Shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions.

The AGMs of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the
Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees of the
Company will attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The auditor will also attend the AGMs to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies, and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication and to build an inter-relationship
and communication channel between the Company and the
Shareholders, the Company adopts a Shareholders’ communication
policy and maintains a website (www.kqgysh.com.cn), where the up-
to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices,
and other information are available for public access.
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The Company has established several channels to communicate with
the Shareholders as follows:

(i)  corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company'’s website at www.kqgysh.com.cn;

(i)  periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange
and published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company;

(i) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv)  AGMs and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

(v)  the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy. The Board is of the view that
the Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company has
facilitated sufficient Shareholders’ communication and considered the
policy is effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meetings.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders may put
forward proposals at the general meeting of the Company for
consideration. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or anyone of the joint company secretaries of
the Company to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Company for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board to convene such general
meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the relevant
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who wish to make enquiries to the Board regarding the
Company may do so by emailing Investor Relations at the Company’s
head office at ir@hnkgwy.com.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association on June 17, 2021, which have been
effective from the Listing Date (the “Existing M&A"). During the Year,
the Existing M&A did not have any change.

The Board proposed to amend the Existing M&A and adopt the
second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association (the “New M&A") in substitution for, and to the exclusion
of, the Existing M&A at the forthcoming AGM. The New M&A shall
become effective upon the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kanggiao Service Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kangqgiao Service Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 105 to 231, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. the assessment of expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade and
other receivables;

o the assessment of ECL of financial guarantees.
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Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

AR R 2 TTE:

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

Assessment of expected credit losses of trade and other
receivables

AHEE S R AMBEYRENEREREX

Refer to Note 3.1.2, Note 4(a), and Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRMG A EREMTESN.2 i 4) RMIEE21 -

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables and other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB490,556,000 and RMB171,034,000, respectively, which
represented approximately 42% and 15% of the total assets of the
Group, and provision for ECL allowance on trade receivables and
other receivables of approximately RMB49,313,000 and
RMB 13,408,000 were recognised to the consolidated balance sheet.
BZE 2022512 A31 B - B 5 B WGRIE T E Ath 8 YRR IE 1Y BR TE 48 5
2 RI#) R AR ¥ 490,556,000 7T F1 A R # 171,034,000 7T © 9 AllME &
EAEEERKA2% M 15% - E 5 &R IE A E b f& 4 5718 7 78 HA
ERBERXERESTELN/ARK49,313,0007T M A K # 13,408,000
T BEGEEEAERPER

Management applied the simplified approach to measure ECL of trade
receivables and applied the 3-stage model to measure ECL of other
receivables under HKFRS 9, by grouping the trade and other
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics.
EREBRAEBMBRELENFEIRAETNE T EZREEESE
WHIERTRHE AL - WA =R R & H th fE YR IE /Y
BHBEREX  HERBREBEARNERRRSEEE SR IFIARM
H W RIEETT D4 -

We have performed the following procedures in
respect of the assessment of ECL of trade
receivables and other receivables:

BB E ZEYGRIETE B (E A B ka1
AT -

(@) Obtained an understanding of the

Group’s internal control and assessment
process of the ECL of trade receivables
and other receivables, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk of
factors, such as complexity and
subjectivity;
THESEHEH KHMEWFKIATE S
ERBERA S R HIRRF - WE
RAGET T HEE M 8012 8 K E Ath [ B = b
A=(WEHREEREEMN) - UFTHE
REEREE A =R

(b) Evaluated and validated, on a sample
basis, the controls over management’s
assessment of the ECL of trade receivables
and other receivables;

A RMEREEEESNE S R EMmE
e SR I8 T8 HA {5 PR 18 2K 1F 1 ST (il B 0 1A 3D
P
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Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

For trade receivables without remarkable different credit risk
characteristics, the Group used judgment in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the ECL calculation, based on the Group's
historical cash collection, ageing profile of the trade receivables,
current market conditions as well as forward looking estimates.
HWVRBRETREARREBNEZRKTIE - E£ERE &
SENELBR KK BSHRKFENRRIER - BAIMSIRRLE
KRBT MG - D REBEMS BRI A T & -

For trade receivables with remarkable different credit risk
characteristics and other receivables in groups, management assessed
the ECL by applying several significant assumptions, including the
estimation of probability of default, loss given default and forward
looking estimates based on their knowledge about the customer
group’s credit ratings, industry information, financial capability and
payment histories, and current market conditions as well as forward-
looking information.

U EABRETRIERERESEE E 5 SRR H & W kIR E
& EREERAEALEEZRI[RTEERERESL  BFEER
i EFRENERTR  TEREM  MHBRENMIMNES - E50
ISR A R ATRE L & T R fEE B EHE B R - BRBERM
RITRE A FHYfEET

The assessment of ECL of trade and other receivables is considered a
key audit matter given the significance of the trade and other
receivables balance, combined with the significant degree of
estimation uncertainty in relation to the ECL assessment. The inherent
risk in relation to the assessment of ECL is considered relatively higher
due to the complexity of ECL models and subjectivity of significant
assumptions and data used.

HRNE S & E A EYCRIESRFERN E AN - AR ETERER B
ER R R AT AB R ENMGT T EEN - 85 RAME WA
RHERBRLNTHRE SARENFE - ANREEXNEMR
EEAMAERBRREENTHE  EFEEREREREHENE
BRBER BB
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()

Assessed the appropriateness of the credit

loss provisioning model and methodology

adopted by management with the

involvement of our internal expert:
ERMANOAFERZET  FETER
BHRAMNBHRERBRAEENG ENE

i -

assessed the appropriateness of
customer grouping based on our
understanding on the Group's
business process, the credit control
process and the credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables
and other receivables;

BRERMYE SEKEEBKRRE E
R HIRIZA KR E 5 W RIB A E
th JRE U K T Y {5 PR R B F B 38
B AHETEPOEREE M

for trade receivables without
remarkable different credit risk
characteristics, challenged the
reasonableness of the estimated
credit loss rates by considering
historical cash collection and
movements of the ageing of trade
receivables;
HRRBBRETRARREENE S
FEWRIE - BRE EE LIRS R
TBAE 5 RWRIEREE ) - B&E
HETEHERBRAEN BN ;



Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AR R 2 TTE:

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

i)

for trade receivables with
remarkable different credit risk
characteristics and other receivables
in groups, challenged and assessed
the reasonableness of the significant
assumptions in estimating the
probability of default and loss given
default by corroborating
management’s assessment with
publicly available information and
supporting evidence; and

B 5 & U 5% T8 A0 H h FE Uz TE 4R
& RBAAREENIFHEERSE
BEEEENTE - HEFHEORE
MENBRANEZRIANGEMR
B FIREAS ¢ AN

evaluated management’s
assessment on the forward-looking
factors with reference to our
understanding of Group's business,
industry and external
macroeconomic data;

2ERMYE BEEEER  1TEMU
KON RE R ESIR IR M - 1k
TEREHMBEEEZANE

Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
ageing analysis of trade receivables
prepared by management against relevant

supporting documents;

ORI B E 12 B AR I ) R U R SRR i

iR
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Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
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(e) Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculation of the provision for loss
allowance; and

BEBBRREFENHRBEMENE A

(f)  Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to assessment of ECL of trade and
other receivables.

AT 4 B B 5 A0 B iR WO IR TR HA{E AR 48
KAEAEARBEN T M

Based on the above, we found the models,
significant assumptions and data applied by
management in the assessment of ECL of trade
receivables and other receivables were
supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

2R FER - BRMEREEEENEE SR
WORIE R B Ath FE U IR RV TR ERE BB R I B
BRREY - B ERRANBIR P ARBEFHE
RFEITHO AR 7 2R SE FE A o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

AR R 2 TTE:

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

Assessment of ECL of financial guarantees

AL ERRNERERBRX

Refer to Note 3.1.2, Note 4(a) and Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BB BMARMNE3.1.2 - sk @) MHEE31 ©

As at 31 December 2022, the maximum credit risk exposure of
financial guarantees was approximately RMB608,732,000, the credit
impairment losses and provision for ECL allowance on financial
guarantees of approximately RMB1,088,000 were recognised to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
balance sheet, respectively.

BZE2022F12 A31 8 BERNSKXERRRMOO/ARE
608,732,000 T * Eﬁﬁﬁz@%@é&ﬂ MBEROBRERBEERGS
BMAMARYE1,088,0007T ' DHlEFAEETERARNGEEER
BERPHER o

Management applied a multi-scenario discounted cash flow approach
under the 3-stage model required by HKFRS 9 to measure ECL of
financial guarantees. The provisions for ECL allowance were made on
an individual basis.
EREERABEREVBREERZIORE TN =EREELTHEZER
MRBRMEREGEMBERNBHAEHEL - RAGHBRER
TRERBERBRHER o

To measure the ECL, management evaluated the distribution of
expected cash flows of the financial guarantees under multiple
scenarios based on experience of historical credit loss, current
situations and forecasts of future conditions of contract
counterparties, and made corresponding provision for ECL allowance
by applying several significant assumptions, including the cancelation
or settlement of the financial guarantees and their probabilities which
are the major consideration to determine the exposures at default,
the expected loss rates and the related probability weight under
different scenarios.

RTEHEEHEREKX  EEERBEELEABRNKLER  ElE
SRS & E T AR MRS TEARI - 51 E T 2150 T M ERAV TR EA
WemRDM IL@%%%“EEF“%%%F%E%%EW&T
HENR  BEETRBE TARENRBRBANEEZEERAE
WS RRNBUER AR &ﬁﬁf FRHE AR MEES X EE -

We have performed the following procedures in
respect of the assessment of ECL of financial

guarantees:
HPIE AT B ERTARERB RO EEL A
TR

(a)

()

Obtained an understanding of and
evaluated the Group’s internal control
and assessment process of the ECL of
financial guarantees, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk of
factors, such as complexity and
subjectivity;

BRI FET SEBEVBEREHE
PR K B0 A BD 4% I AN EE AR AR - W05
ZRMETOTEEEREEMEMEEY

EERK  MEEMEREEY  FET
SAEBOELRSR ;

Assessed appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology with assistance
of our internal expert;
ENHER B NG FaEREL
HEFEREE M

Assessed reasonableness of the probability
of cancelation or settlement of the
financial guarantees by discussing and
challenging management’s assessment on
relevant qualitative factors and
corroborating management’s explanation
to the underlying documents and
subsequent supporting documents, and
assessed reasonableness of the settlement
amount used in specific scenarios with
assistance of our internal valuation expert;
BB wmNEREEEURBTERE
RIFE - WREEERE AR X ENE
BXRXIENRE A BERIUH
SEERENESEMN - WERMYAE
HEERNBH T - FTHTERERBR
TEANEESHENAEN ;
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Key Audit Matters
BEEITEE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
EMHNET R EERETTSE

The assessment of ECL of financial guarantees is considered a key
audit matter given the significance of the maximum exposure of
financial guarantees, combined with the significant degree of
estimation uncertainty in relation to the ECL assessment. The inherent
risk in relation to the assessment of ECL is considered relatively high
due to the complexity of ECL models and subjectivity of significant
assumptions and data used.

ERFBRROZARRMONEZY - URERAFEHBERTE
HEN G TRELNBRERE - UBEEROEREHEATEE
BR—EAREENFE - HRERERBREE G KPIE
ANEEZRFANERNEHNE - BRHAEHBRTEEFANEFR
BRIR RIEHE S °
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(d)

Evaluated the rationality of management’s
significant assumptions of expected loss
rates and related probability weight under
different scenarios by discussing and
challenging management’s assessment on
relevant qualitative factors and
corroborating management’s explanation
to the underlying documents;

BB wmNEREEEURBTIEEE
BIET - 0 RE B E IR B A R AR
B AGEREETRBER THELE
REFEFARERENEARERNEGE
:H{ ;

Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculation of the provision for ECL
allowance; and
BERRACHELRERSEAENHE
M R

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to assessment of ECL of financial
guarantees.

Al T EA B ERAHERE AT EE
BEREN T o

Based on the above, we found the models,

significant assumptions and data applied by

management in the assessment of ECL of

financial guarantees were supportable by the

evidence obtained and procedures performed.

AR EMER - RAIFERERBENEMHE

RIRHERBKRREAER -

EERRME

BAEEESNBBEMATORF SR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

18 3 % SR ]

H Az 8

BERARESFAHEMEEAR - HBEEEHE
FHRANMBEES  ETBREGEEMEEHRERR
BT ERED IR o

B GEEMBRRNBER L MR EEME
B BRI THZFEMERBEREME AN

5 TIX 4 =A
BB o

EeRMYREMBRENET  RFANEE
ERERMESR - FLBRET  EEEMES
R EGE B HRR AR MERTBIETT
ROBRAFEERBBENEUFFEEAHER
BRALEYIES ©

&

l

ERBMERTHIIE - IRBEMRBSEME
BREEAHRRL  RAFTERELEE -
FETE  BRFPVREEMRS -

EZNENERERAERE W
HRBAFENET

BERAEFAABERBEEBSFMAGRME
(EBMBIREER) REBEBCR ARG BB
BREREREEMTENGAMBERE - UY
HR/REFEEVBHRROBE N FERRKR
AF Sk BR RR T B 2R r0 B K 35 AR R AL P 75 1O PO R 42
Hasg -

ERBEAMBRERE  EFAHTE BF
BB KL LN  THEBRBR T RE RS
BREBMANER  URERFBELE RS

2 BFEFEEN BEEFRRELE
B RYELHERHBRIE -

s
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

AR R 2 TTE:

s HEERARBLESEMMNKREN
fEH & o RIBFAENMAETRE
ERAFERSHEKBRAEBNERT
HMEMN  #mAEERYE ESXENF
BREBRNELEREE - IREAR
REEEATEEN  ABABEERH
B S PiR A EAEIBRS M ]mE
REVEBNE - BREEHNEETR -
AIRMEEERRFEREER - HFIW
mmaE RN AN RE B LRGN E
AHBRFE o AT RRFEKIBERAIES

B BEEBETRERELE -

s HEFAMBHRRNEBIHmAN &
BHUAR  BEEE URESMBER
REATERBRRZMEIE -

e i BERERNERIEHADOMBE
BERRR  BENETRE  UEY
HEMBRRERER - ZMAERE &
SEEAN R - BEEMHANT - HFAS
BB RARREL -

i

FREMFIAIN - HAEEFRE BB T
HEFTRE - BR%ZH EXEAERS 8
IR PIEERT R A EBIE S B E I E KRR
B

BRERAZFZESRENR - SARMEN
BRBBIIEMNERERBEER I EM
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FALAERR S8 E A BB BT E) S EREREV
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 July 2023
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEWER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARET T
Revenue WA 792,920 783,567
Cost of sales HEMA 7 (601,852) (579,715)
Gross profit EF 191,068 203,852
Administrative expenses GG (53,047) (61,705)
Selling and marketing expenses HEMEHEFT (12,608) (15,339)
Credit impairment losses ERRERK 3.1.2 (47,736) (6,542)
Other income E AU A 8 9,663 8,494
Other losses — net HEE — 55 9 (9,569) (1,924)
Operating profit R R 77,771 126,836
Finance income BhE WA 5,294 1,472
Finance costs B & pk 2N (1,077) (8,395)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA S (A) — F5 11 4,217 (6,923)
Share of profit of investments FEAG 3 AR A AR AT
accounted for using the equity wEFHE
method 1,021 244
Profit before income tax Fﬁ' S5 A FE 83,009 120,157
Income tax expenses PSR Sz 13 (17,304) (31,598)
Profit for the year FRFE 65,705 88,559
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(CONTINUED)
mETmE Wk ()

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BmEERIN  MBESERARETITIIR)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BtEE AR® T ARETFT
Profit attributable to: T &7 BAER :
— Owners of the Company — AREHEEA 54,121 83,885
— Non-controlling interests — JEIER R 11,584 4,674
65,705 88,559
Other comprehensive income Hh 2w =
ltem that may be reclassified to AR EFT D EEERMIAR
profit or loss
— Exchange difference on translation — #E)GINEFKEA R
of foreign operations &5 =% 10,353 (2,606)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEKZEE
for the year 76,058 85,953
Total comprehensive income UT&FERE2HEKEERE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — ARREHEE A 64,474 81,279
— Non-controlling interests — FEPERRE 11,584 4,674
76,058 85,953
Earnings per share SRERN
— Basic and diluted (expressed in — AR REE (AR
RMB yuan per share) ARTTHR) 14 0.08 0.14

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meRBEEAER

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

As at 31 December

M12A318
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARETR ARETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment E IS E L] 15 13,829 10,207
Right-of-use assets FREEE 27 3,013 3,130
Investment properties WEMZE 16 2,081 3,893
Intangible assets I EE 17 52,918 56,118
Deferred income tax assets BLEFSREE 18 21,652 9,988
Prepayments SEUNE O 20 69,730 65,629
Restricted cash TR e 24 1,253 1,325
Investments accounted for using FAEREARNIRE
the equity method 1,953 932
166,429 151,222
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 1,014 1,075
Prepayments TEfS TR 20 3,308 1,045
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HAth fE UG I8 21 598,869 419,729
Restricted cash 2R EEE 24 10,847 =
Financial assets at fair value through R RA R EFF AR SR EE
profit or loss 22 43,094 21,018
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEED 23 345,910 540,833
1,003,042 983,700
Total assets EEHAE 1,169,471 1,134,922
EQUITY iz
Equity attributable to owners RARHEEAEGLES
of the Company
Share capital N 25 5,831 5,831
Other reserves HAib 26 540,450 545,902
Retained earnings BIEAEF 165,082 116,156
711,363 667,889
Non-controlling interests FEIERERS 45,002 33,508
Total equity R 756,365 701,397
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

LEEERER(B)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARET T ARET T
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 2,387 4,783
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFTSHEE 18 6,314 7,028
Other payables H b fE A~ B 28 5,747 5,450
Contract liabilities SRAaE 6 5,341 8,779
19,789 26,040
Current liabilities REBAE
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 7,131 5,002
Trade and other payables B 5 FNE {th FE <t F0E 28 274,012 243,292
Contract liabilities aRAE 6 104,711 138,024
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS R & E 7,463 21,167
393,317 407,485
Total liabilities EERE 413,106 433,525
Total equity and liabilities ERZNEEEE 1,169,471 1,134,922
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  FittiE S EEBEREEF T —REE -

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 231 were 4RAMBREF 10522315 ATEEERN
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 28 July 2023 20237 A28 HIt AR KA AIEE

and were signed on its behalf.

KANG Weiguo WANG Na
BREE |
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

1:‘"‘)(%:-,%@]%%

BESRNAARETITIIR)

n\/-ﬁ
(REHEHEBEIN -

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARaER AEL
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves eamings Total interests equity
e Hft e REBZH B JHEER ]
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note 25) (Note 26)
(FitsE25) (Fzx26)
Balance as at 1 January 2021 R2021E1 5184 - 7,982 137,982 145,964 21,05 167,016
Total comprehensive Hh2EREAE
income for the year
Profit for the year HAHE - - 83,885 83,885 4,674 88,559
Currency translation differences EHhgEE - (2,606) - (2,606) - (2,606)
- (2,606) 83,885 81,279 4,674 85,953
Transactions with owners in REBARTHRS
their capacity as owners:
Appropriation of statutory reserves = B EIR 2% - 5711 (5711) - - -
Issue of shares in connection it~ ERA A (v B/ TR B
the capitalisation issue BB 4373 (4373) = = = -
Issue of shares in connection with ~ B{TEALNE FHABH
the Company’s listing OESDI 1,458 518,583 - 520,046 - 520,046
Dividends to the then shareholders A FARIEEHRE
of a subsidiary RERE - - (100,000 (100,000) - (100,000)
Dividends to non-controlling R RRERRERS
interests - - - - 2.223) 2,223
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi -HEHEAR - - - - 9,705 9,705
Capital contribution by FERERLE
non-controlling interests - - - - 300 300
Capital injection from owners AYNGIE 2WNi
of the Company - 25,600 - 25,600 - 25,600
Deemed distribution to the then ~~ EEAAEEZERRE
shareholder of the Group arising RIEDR
from the Reorganisation - (5,000) - (5,000) - (5,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 #2015 12 A 31 AR 5,831 545,902 116,156 667,889 33,508 701,397
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

mEEESER (E)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

Attributable to owners of the Company

A SRUAARETITIIR)

RRTEEAER
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
Rx B REEA &5 FRRES  EREE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it AR®Tn  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
(Note25)  (Note 26)
(Ri2s)  (HE26)
Balance as at 1 January 2022 R2022% 18 1BME&ER 5831 545,902 116,156 667,889 33,508 701,397
Total comprehensive income Hh2ERREE
for the year
Profit for the year HRAE - - 54,121 54,121 11,584 65,705
Currency translation differences EXpBE =S - 10,353 - 10,353 - 10,353
- 10,353 54121 64,474 11,584 76,058
Transactions with owners in their EHA AETHRS :
capacity as owners:
Appropriation of statutory reserves  EEE B2 HE 26 - 5,195 (5,195) - - -
Dividends to shareholders of the ~ AARREMRE
Company - (21,000) - (21,000) - (21,000)
Dividends to non-controlling interests 3£ ¥ #2501 & - - - - (3,086) (3,086)
Capital contribution by SRl ER L E
non-controlling interests - - - - 2,996 2,99
Balance as at 31 December 2022 HZ 2022512 A 31 RHILH 5831 540,450 165,082 711,363 45,002 756,365

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(Br=EHEHI

n‘/T/\IErﬁl)HJE%E

BESRNAARETITIIR)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE ARETR ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities R&EBEENRESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from LEEEEENIRS
operations 30 (99,972) 115,548
Interest received from bank deposits  R1TTFEF & 11 5,294 1,472
Income tax paid ERFTEH (43,386) (53,065)
Net cash (used in)/generated RETHEENRESFH
from operating activities (138,064) 63,955
Cash flows from investing activities R & EZHEENRERE
Loans repaid by related parties EE Gl - 301,626
Cash advances to related parties R 5 EENER (3,176) (5,873)
Repayments of cash advances MR T IREIR S B
by related parties 3,041 48,361
Repayments of cash advances FIERERERR BN
by non-controlling interests - 14
Loan to third parties BERTE=FH (11,350) (13,380)
Loan repaid by third parties HE=ZHEENER 11,350 20,580
Interest received from loans to M REHE 5 A EE = H IR B K
related parties and third parties FIT IER 9 71 2, 372 13,429
Purchases of property and BEMENEREARBREE
equipment and intangible assets (7,452) (3,465)
Purchases of financial assets at BEZRAABETABRRZN
fair value through profit or loss TREEMNFTSREIE (186,800) (82,400)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEFAERD
assets at fair value through profit TRUE ERFTSIE
or loss 165,725 61,762
Proceeds from disposal of property R IE BN 0 &
and equipment 95 21
Prepayments for acquisition of a WM B A Al TR =X
subsidiary - (65,629)
Prepayments for purchases of BERETAENENK
intangible assets (4,101) -
Payments for investments accounted  fFFRREZEXE IR E N
for using the equity method - (490)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WHEHT B AR - kRIS
net of cash acquired Be - (7,293)
Net cash (used in)/generated RETE(FTA) EEW
from investing activities ReFE (32,296) 267,263
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

ll‘mAiﬁzﬁl)le’%‘% (II\E)

SEERI

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (F&

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
BiaE AR® T ARETTT

Cash flows from financing activities & FHELENRERE
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER - (346,984)
Cash advances from third parties E=FMIREBK 2,510 3,435
Repayments of cash advances RITERATISRIA

from third parties (2,266) -
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ 8 (184) (6,165)
Settlements of the principal element HBHEaENAEIY

of lease liabilities (2,274) (4,799)
Dividend paid BERRE (24,086) (102,223)
Payments for listing expenses WA AH (2,013) (4,435)
Contribution from non-controlling IEFEE R A EE

interests 2,996 300
Consideration paid to the then MEAMAEEZ AR

shareholder of the Group S IRRE

for the reorganisation - (5,000)
Capital injection from shareholders KRARIRERIFE

of the Company - 25,600
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares @AY 21 TFT/S B - 520,046
Net cash (used in)/generated BMEEEH (FTA) ELEH

from financing activities HEHAE (25,317) 79,775
Net (decrease)/increase in cash fﬂ%*ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%

and cash equivalents W) IR R (195,677) 410,993
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January E’M R1BMRENREEEEY 540,833 134,758
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and HEMESEEYHELIEX

cash equivalents 754 (4,918)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A3MENEER

31 December HEZEY 345,910 540,833
The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in  Filt4RAIR S REREEN T —HEE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
8 October 2020 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket
Square, Grand Cayman, KY1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 16 July 2021 by way of
its initial public offering.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in provision of property management
services, related value-added services and city services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Group is Mr. Song Gewei (“Mr. Song”, the
“Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 28 July 2023.

1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IS HmR MR

CEEFTLS
fRE R

RRAFR2020F 10 A8 ARIEHAE S
RAEF 2N EERSHSTMALAE
BRARALE - EFMMPEEMIEA
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9010, Cayman
Islands ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(@) Compliance with HKFRS and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(b) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a

historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9]

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2022. The
adoption of these standards and amendments does
not have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to Hong Property, Plant and Equipment:
Kong Accounting Proceeds before Intended
Standard (“HKAS") 16 Use

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Update Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Costs of
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements

Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations

The Group did not change its accounting policies or
make retrospective adjustments as a result of
adopting the abovementioned amended standards
or annual improvements.

(Br=EHEHI

2 BEE@:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) New and amendments to existing standards (d)
that have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1 January 2022
and have not been early adopted by the Group

are as follows:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (KRB 1EBHIN - FTE & BAARE T THIR)

EESFTEERE M e)

2.1 REEEE)

R2022F 1B 1B B %H W B
BEEERAMESRERE
REEIEIR R RAAHAE

AIRREEANBITHT :

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on
or after
RT3 B8R
ZEBRKBEN
FEAEER

HKFRS 17
BB GEIREERE 17 5%
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
B G ERFE 1 FAB BB
#ﬁm,%\ SAERIEE 2 BB E]

Amendments to HKAS 8
EREGTAERZE 8RAERT
Amendments to HKAS 12

BA G ERE12RMNER]

Amendments to HKAS 1
ARG ERE 1 RAEE]
Amendments to HKAS 1
EAGHERIE 1 5RER
Amendments to HKFRS 16
EBREEAIE

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
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Insurance Contracts

'f% N\El

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR

Definition of Accounting Estimates
BEHEE TR
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
%ﬁ*?&%?iﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬂ%%*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
BIEFTISH
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
@ 1E§J\*E7E’fwlh§bjd|5mu§b
Non-current liabilities with covenants
BEHNERBEE
Lease liability in sale and leaseback

EREENEERE

1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023

20231 H1H

1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023

20231 H1H

1 January 2024

20241 A1H
1 January 2024
2024F1 B 1H
1 January 2024
202451 H1 H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) New and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1 January 2022
and have not been early adopted by the Group
are as follows: (Continued)

e MR ERR MR

(Br=EHEHI

2 BEESTBERBM )

BESRNAARETITIIR)

2.1 REEEZ)

(d) R2022F1B18 BB
BEESHEMEHARERE
AEBYLER BN IFE
AIRBEBEANBITAOT :

(&

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RT3 BER
ZERBEN
FEHBEXR

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

BRRESE 5% (20204F)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

ERMBmELERFE 105K
EA G REER

Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

2IMBHRER — ERAHHBFREKX
BERGERNTERHERN DR

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

20241 A 1H

To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventures

REEHRABEPEIAERE AN 55E
BELEITE

F28AERT

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised standards,
interpretation and amendments, certain of which
are relevant to the Group’s operations, and not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting period.

AEBERSFEREFH
KRBT R EEEEERN
FE  BHRREIRER
SHHEUAEEYEEAY
@,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NENE L E T eIk

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR

SEERI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(Br=EHEHI

2 BEESHBEBEm®

BESRNAARETITIIR)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 KERARERZRETEER
accounting (Continued) (&)

222 ZHEMHBERTEHNHE AT

2.2.2 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

The Group treats transactions with NCI that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to NCI and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Group.

2.2.3 Investments accounted for using the equity

method

(i) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see Note (iii) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

(i) Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (see Note (iii) below),
after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

FEEEZ2E

7N 5 B % B 3F 4R AR i 2 2
TEEPRERNR IR
SIMFERASEREREALZ
MZEBRE - HEEER
8@ BT A B ORI A
@A REERAE LR
R E R B~ A 2 A8 A
oo JRER R 2 AR A
FHENeRREBzRZ
EAZEENAEEHERA
&5 #E 25 19 £ 98 3L fof s P B

27
s ©

2.2.3 FAEREARNKRE

() BERFE]

BE AR ASEEHE
BEEAFE BT
Sk EIE FIEN B
B —RBRT  AE
B # B520% E50%H)
TERE - PREEE A RIRY
TER T IRK TR
% ERAEEEIEA
3R (RT3 (i) ©

(i) BERE

]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (F&

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.2.3 Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

(i)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker
("CODM"), who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (B

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Company’s functional

currency is Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented as finance income/(costs).
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented on a net basis with in other losses.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(9]

Group entities

The results and financial positions of the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities of each balance sheet of
the Group entities are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet,

o income and expenses of each statement of
comprehensive income of the Group entities
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken into equity holders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fk B & 5RE) -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Office premises 31 years
— Vehicles 4-6 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3-6 years

— Leasehold improvements shorter of 3 years or

lease term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other losses — net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, being
the operating segments.

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives
(5 years).
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NENE L E T eIk

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR

SEERI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Customer relationships and backlog

Customer relationships and backlog acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relations and backlog have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of 120 to 156 months
for the customer relationships and backlog, which is
determined by considering the existing conditions
and possibilities of renewal of the property
management contracts by reference with industry
experiences, or based on the remaining contract
period pursuant to the term set out in the property
management contracts at the acquisition date.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that has an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group only held debt instruments
classified as financial assets at amortised costs.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEEFBEREE@
POLICIES (Continued)
29 SREE )

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Impairment 2.9.3 FE

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL") associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2
details how the Group determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial assets.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the assets. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime ECL.
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NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 21 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1.2 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions.

2.12Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers and amounts to be repaid from
the Group to its counterparties. These amounts are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12
months or less. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BESTTBREME®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14Current and deferred income tax 214 RIEEFT S5

The tax expense for the period comprises current and ANEAFI M B IE 2 B B 4R B B AR T

deferred income tax. Tax is recognised as “income tax I - MIBEES 2 ERERPHE

expenses” in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it REEHASZ]  AEETHEME

relates to items recognised in other comprehensive mE RPN EE RSP ERNIE

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also BAEBERBRIN - EZIBERT » F

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in HNSREEMEmW S EEE

equity, respectively. PR ©

(a) Current income tax (a) ENHAFTEHE
The current income tax charge is calculated on the BVEAFR S i X BRI AN A 7
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively ZHBARSLENELER
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries BHBRANBRRREEREEBR
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and HHIE B EE B MO
generate taxable income. Management periodically BoEflztE - EBEREA
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect A ER R EBFAERE B R
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is FHFERBRERAOMR - I
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions EERBRTIRIETEHER
where appropriate on the basis of amounts TSR S 5 B B FRER U B
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC
under which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the governments. The Group has no
forfeited contributions by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the defined contribution
pension plans prior to vesting fully in such
contributions.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
ERHEETEBERAR /I S —FFK

(BR=EEHI -

2

A SRUAARETITIIR)

EESFTHEBE ®)

215 &

(a)

=gl
RARESEE

REBEEETEHIGENR
SEHE - REBEP B ABRAR A
REFR  AEENTREES
ALXMPBRERE RTEE
B2 E T EETRKE
Mg Bt AEERHE
TEEEBESAREETS
R E B 2 R Rz S At 8l i
Koo B R T A GE A AR
B L e NN 2R E
KRR A BIRRE B # R K
BREM - BREAHKIN
AEBEAREREEAER
IR R E At 3R K 1% 48 A1) 89 32 A+
E—SEMT - ZF5HENE
ERAEEEESFFA -
WHEABLEEMNESR
E-AEERBREELEH
HRFE A RTR L ZA
g -BAEZREEEENH

o

S

“:4>h‘

758 B A E BB R BUR R ET 8l
1 B (R E A B 51 VB R
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages of
the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these
funds is limited to the contributions payable in each
year. Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR

SEERI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations within other payables in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEE@WElE s
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Provisions (Continued) 21684 (&)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.17 Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners and community
value-added services. Revenue is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Depending on the terms of the contracts and the laws
that apply to the contract, services may be recognised
over time or at a point in time.

—  For property management services and city services,
the Group bills a fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to bill and
that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed. The Group primarily
generate revenue from property management
services income from properties managed under
lump sum basis, the Group entitles to revenue at
the value of property management services fee
received or receivable.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fk B & 5RE) -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include (i) sales office management services, the
Group bills a fixed amount for services provided on
a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to bill and
that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed. (ii) pre-delivery services
providing designing, construction management
planning, property inspection and pre-delivery
advices to property developers which are recognised
as revenue over time when such services are
rendered; (iii) sales agency services provided to
property developers to facilitate the selling of
properties which are recognised as revenue at a
point in time when such services are rendered; (iv)
construction site management services provided to
property developers to safeguard the construction
site which are recognised as revenue over time
when such service are rendered; and (v) consultancy
services provided to other property management
companies which are recognised as revenue when
such services are rendered and accepted by the
customer.

Community value-added services revenue mainly
include (i) income from the provision of second-
hand property transaction assistance services for
property owners, which is recognised on a net basis
when the sales or rental contracts are signed; (ii)
rental income from sub-lease of carparks and other
spaces leased from property developers recognised
on straight line basis over the lease period; (iii) sales
agency income for assisting in selling the rights of
carpark spaces owned by property developers,
which are recognised when the underlying sales
contracts are signed; and (iv) revenue from other
community convenience services recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEE@WElE s
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WA TER (&)

If a contract contains multiple services, the transaction
price is allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-
alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or
adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheet as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers services to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a contract liability when
the payment is received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s
obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if
recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

When the difference between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to customer and the payment by the
customer is considered significant and implied financing
components contained in certain contracts, the Group
adjust the transaction price for the time value of money.

2.18Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income” (Note 8).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 11 below.

2.19Leases

The Group leases certain properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (Note 27) and
investment properties (Note 16) and corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEE@WElE s
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19Leases (Continued) 2197 & (&)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate,

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees,

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

° any initial direct costs, and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEEFBEREE@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Dividend distribution 220 RE DK

AR ERRKZFIEERER R
SRR RD IR ZEMBRB LR

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at

the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.22Investment properties

Investment properties, representing commercial properties
held under leases, are held for rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. The Group measured its
investment properties at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost over their lease term typically varying from 3 to
7 years.
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.23Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

. the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

2.24Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

() Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk for
certain interest-bearing cash deposits at
banks. Cash deposits at banks at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. As at 31 December 2022, the cash flow
interest rate risk on cash deposits at banks
was immaterial (31 December 2021: same).

3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash deposits at banks, trade and other receivables
and financial guarantees.
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e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (B 2 A& F5RASN »

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Risk management

For trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the ECL of these receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Impairment

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment (Continued)

internal credit rating,
external credit rating,

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations,

actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of individual
property owner or the debtor,

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtor, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group
and changes in the operating results of
the debtor.

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the company.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for ECL on a timely
basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

nVT\
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BB HRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& REIEEAIN - FiE £ EBUAARET TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKREEREIR @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEBRREE @)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 EHEK (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JeE (&)
(@)  Cash deposits at banks (@) HARESER
The Group expects that there is no HRNBELFEEZ K
significant credit risk associated with MATERARERAG
cash deposits at banks since they are RiTsk B A R IF
substantially deposited at state-owned ERFg s EE
banks and other medium or large-sized F RN =i N
listed banks in the PRC which are with WRT AER
good credit rating or good reputation. JEERSR TR & 17
Management does not expect that there ZWEEAEE
will be any significant losses from non- - EIEEBIE
performance by these counterparties. HAeREZER
SHFIETR
TS BT ME
REHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lk E S

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ir)

Impairment (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified
approach to provide for ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for
trade receivables. For trade receivables
without remarkable different credit risk
characteristics, the Group used
judgment in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the ECL
calculation, based on the Group’s
historical cash collection, ageing profile
of the trade receivables, current market
conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. For trade receivables with
remarkable different credit risk
characteristics, management assessed
the ECL by applying several significant
assumptions, including the estimation of
probability of default, loss given default
and forward looking estimates based on
their knowledge about the customers
group’s credit ratings, industry
information, financial capability and
payment histories, and current market
conditions as well as forward-looking
information.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKREEREIR @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREE#)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.2 ERRER (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JR1E (4E)

(b)  Trade receivables (Continued) by BHrEWIEE)
Trade receivables have been assessed for B S5 EWREZE
impairment on a collective basis based BETREZER
on different credit risk characteristics. oy 4 1k 5 HE BL
Trade receivables are categorised as % 1T R E FF
follows for assessment purpose: He BB EH

ms - BZEK
B 7D *EZ%LX—F
HHRl -
Group 1: Trade receivables due from AR ek R
related parties 77 8B S EBGR
Group 2: Trade receivables due from AR2 - EWE=
third parties — non-property owners 7 — EMERES
A2 B 5 WK
]
Group 3: Trade receivables due from 7R3 EWRE=
third parties — property owners H — EEEA
2B 5 EWRIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(b)

(Br= BRI BESBAARETTIIR)

3 BIKREEREIR@

3.1 BIREKREZE®)

3.1.2 ERER (&)

(i) BL1E (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) by BHrEWRIEE)
As at 31 December 2022, the provision 2022 % 12 A
for ECL allowance on the trade 3MH B EW
receivables was determined as follows. BE 2% > &5 18 1 5
The ECL below also incorporated BEM T LT
forward looking information. JEHR = E &1 In
BIERTEMEER -
Total
#Et
Trade receivables (Group 1) B S EWRIE (A5011)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BERmE(ARETIT) 264,844
Expected loss rate TE AR IR X 10.31%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) EEEFHEBRE(ARETIT) 27,298
Upto 1to 2to 3to Over
Tyear 2years 3years Adyears  4years Total
150/ 12258 2E3F  3B4E 4ENL Eh
Trade receivables (Group 2) B5ENEE (852)
(Gross carrying amount (RMB000) BERE(\RETT) 9125 24171 3,669 148 70 125314
Expected loss rate il b 389%  1759%  33.01% 100.00% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BREGRE(ARETT) 3,780 4,251 1211 148 70 9,460
Trade receivables (Group 3) EAENSE(AR3)
(Gross carrying amount (RMB000) SERE(\RETT) 66453 19466 8000 3161 3318 100398
Expected loss rate il b 652% 1364% 21.43%  3825%  79.60%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BEEERE(\RETT) 4,336 2,655 1,114 1,209 2641 12,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (B 2 A& F5RASN »

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)
(b)  Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the provision
for ECL allowance on the trade

A SRUAARETITIIR)

3 HBERERE®

B EBs & ()

3.1.2 ERRK(E)

(i) JR1E (&)
(b) EBHEWFIEGE)

HZE2021F12 A
31 BE5EW

receivables was determined as follows. RIE 7 E A R
The ECL below also incorporated EEM T LT
forward looking information JEH=EEE I
BIERTEMEER -
Total
5T
Trade receivables (Group 1) B S WA (A511)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) TEHR 18 & 189,168
Expected loss rate BwIEmBE(ARE T 1.71%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) EREFEREE (ARETIT) 3,236
Upto Tt 210 3to Over
Tyear — 2years  3years  Adyears  4years Total
VEIR 1E2% 2E3F R4 AFNE &
Trade receivables (Group 2) EAENSE(4R2)
(Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BERE(ARETT) 5,766 9,019 n 70 - 6178
Expected loss rate RfEiEE 200%  10.15%  37.15% 100.00% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BREEREARETT) 1,063 915 120 70 - 2168
Trade receivables (Group 3) EAENSE(AR3)
(Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BERE(\RETT) 4718 15368 6330 3578 2685 69679
Expected loss rate il Ed 559%  1216%  1861%  29.82%  81.30%
Loss allowance provision (RMB000) EBREERR(ARETT) 2333 1868 1178 1067 2183 869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(0

Other receivables and financial
guarantees

Impairment on other receivables and
financial guarantees are measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Group applied
the general "3 stage model” to measure
the ECL of other receivables and
financial guarantees.

For other receivables in groups, the
management assessed the ECL by
applying several significant assumptions,
including the estimation of probability
of default,
forward looking estimates based on

loss given default and

their knowledge about the customers
group’s credit ratings, industry
information, financial capability and
payment histories, and current market
conditions as well as forward-looking

information.

(Br=EHEHI

BESRNAARETITIIR)

3 HBERERE®

BREBEE )

3.1.2 ERER (&)

(i) JifE (#&)

(0)

H fth & W 3R E I
MEHER

7N Bt FE U R A
B EREORE
121 HECLZL
RHECLETZ - A
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ERARE AR
% T B A E g
me REEHEA
— R [ =P ERAE
B RS H MR
U 5% AN B 75 4 AR
RTEER(EREXK -

570 H e Wk
HEA BEE
Lﬂﬁ%%ﬂé

ERERFEE
,HJ%%FFHES‘E’ 2
BRERBMAHE R
FEmiEMRST
M- TEREM
Bt %5 8e 1) A0 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKREEREIR @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IR REE#)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 EHEK (&)

(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JR1E ()

(0

Other receivables and financial
guarantees (Continued)

The management evaluated the
distribution of expected cash flows of
the financial guarantees under multiple
scenarios based on experience of
historical credit loss, current situations
and forecasts of future conditions of
contract counterparties, and made
corresponding provision for ECL
allowance by applying several significant
assumptions, including the cancelation
or settlement of the financial guarantees
and their related probabilities which are
the major consideration to determine
the exposures at default, the expected
loss rates and the related probability
weight under different scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(0)

3.1

Other receivables and financial

guarantees (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions

underpinning the Group’s ECL model

for other receivables and financial

guarantees is as follows:

e MR ERR MR

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

MEEREIE &)

i 35S EE )
3.1.2 ERER (&)
(i) JR1E (&)

© HAEEFER
BT HE IR (A8)

ZANE e o
RAZEMEE
BEEXAERH

RERABEINT -

Basis for recognition of loss

Category Group definition of category allowance provision
bl HRNDBESR BRAAYMEEFERAENESE
Performing Customers/counterparties 12 months expected losses.
("Stage 1") have a low risk of Where the expected lifetime of
default and a strong an asset is less than 12 months,
capacity to meet expected losses are measured at
contractual cash flows its expected lifetime
("12 months ECL method”)
RERHF BERENRBAEREESE 1218 A TREARIR - SN TR ER

(TE 1B D

Underperforming
("Stage 2")

RARE
(I 2881

Non-performing
("Stage 3")

KHATR
(% 3mR)

ENETERRERERK

Receivables and financial
guarantees for which there
is a significant increase
in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is
presumed if relevant interest
and/or principal repayments
are 30 days past due

= B R K0 1 AN e MR IR
R BHER - WEH30xK
EEEERNERFAXE -
AR E R KR N

Interest and/or principal
repayments are 90 days
past due
BHOREEFE K AL

FEHENZBAZANEE
EHEREARERATENHE
(M2@AESREEEBRER ]

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHEE

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(0

Other receivables and financial

guarantees (Continued)

On that basis, as at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the provisions for ECL
allowance on other receivables from

related parties and third parties were

(BmEERIN  MBESERARETITIIR)

MEEREIE &)

3.1 BBREBEE®)

3.1.2 ERRER (&)

(i) JifE (#)

(©

H i & U R TA I
BT HE IR (A8)

DA & E 5 R
2022 FF ) 2021 4F
12A31H BF&
AREZFHEM

determined as below, which has UL K IE 2 B8
incorporated forward looking BEETEMT -
information. LWTEHREES
BINBIEREE
¥} o
Non-
Performing  performing Total
REREF ®EATR #st
Related parties )iy
As at 31 December 2022  1%2022%12A31H
Gross carrying amount BIREE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 121,460 - 121,460
Expected loss rate TRHEREX 10.10% -
Loss allowance provision BIREEEE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 12,265 - 12,265
As at 31 December 2021  EZ2021%12H31H
Gross carrying amount BERE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 74,837 - 74,837
Expected loss rate FRHEREX 1.60% -
Loss allowance provision EREREE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 1,197 - 1,197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (K RBEEEAIN - FIE L EEAARETTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(0

Other receivables and financial

MBREREIE@®
3.1 BEAKBEE#)
3.1.2 EARK(E)

(i) R1E (&)

© HAiEEFER

guarantees (Continued) BITSTEIR (4B)
Non-
Performing  performing Total
RERY RETR st
Third parties F=h
As at 31 December 2022  %2022%12A31H
Gross carrying amount BERER
(RMB'000) (ARETTT) 48,773 801 49,574
Expected loss rate TBHEEX 0.70% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision EREREE
(RMB'000) (AR®TF7T) 342 801 1,143
As at 31 December 2021  EZ2021F12A31H
Gross carrying amount HAERE R
(RMB'000) (AR%T7T) 39,139 801 39,940
Expected loss rate TRHEEE R 0.11% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision EREEREE
(RMB'000) (AEEFT) 42 801 843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& REIEEAIN - FiE £ EBUAARET TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBERERE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREE#)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 ARk (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) E1E (&)

(c)  Other receivables and financial guarantees
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the provision
for ECL allowance on financial

© HAEEHER

BT HE IR (A8)

N2022%12 A
318 BHBER

guarantees was determined as follows. KB EE L R
N
Under- Non-
performing performing Total
ZAXE RETR @t
Financial guarantees ABER
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%512A31H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #aBkmEE (ARET L) 580,508 28,224 608,732
Expected loss rate BHBREX 0.19% -
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) &8 &R & (ARET ) 1,088 - 1,088
Detailed information about the financial MBRERFMAG

guarantees is set out in Note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(d)

e MR ERR MR

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

Y PIE

LA f, L
w e IR (&)

3.1 B¥ERBRE®)

As at 31 December 2022, the provision

for ECL allowance on trade and other

3.1.2 ERER (&)

(i) JifE (#&)

(d M2022%F12 A8
31 B KE

receivables and financial guarantees b e U R I8 DA &
reconciles to the opening loss allowance B 76 = (R Y s 18
for that provision as follows: E {5 P {5 BRI
e B A5 dE
(GEE UM
Trade Other  Financial
receivables receivables guarantees Total
g5 Hity
EyHE ERHE  HBER st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®TR
As at 1 January 2022 M2022%1 /18 14,033 2,040 - 16,073
Charged to profit or loss WBzEHB (Gt A) 35,280 11,368 1,088 47,736
Asat 31 December 2022 20226128318 49,313 13,408 1,088 63,809
As at 1 January 2021 20211 A1R 6,945 2,586 - 9,531
Charged /(credited) to B
profit or loss 7,088 (546) - 6,542
Asat 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 14,033 2,040 - 16,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKREEREIR @

BREBEE )

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.2 ERRER (&)

(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JR1E ()
(d)  (Continued) d (&)
The directors are of the view that the EERAE BE
industrial characteristic factors with —E - _F+=
regard to trade and other receivables A=+—HIL#HF
collection and financial guarantees E mEBHEE
cancelation or settlement have been EEEHFHE
taken into accounts in the assessment EEEBES R
on the ECL rate throughout the year B e Rk IE BA
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same). N B 7% & R ;9 ER
BB EMITE
BHEZ - (ZF
——%F:[)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of cash deposits at banks,
trade and other receivables and financial
guarantees of RMB1,565,611,000
represented the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIKREEREIR@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIRERBEE &)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3 RF AR
To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors AEETEEER  AEE
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents HI S RIS E B KF
deemed adequate by the management to finance MEFTEEY . WS HBISES
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of HMEZAEBTUANERLS
fluctuations in cash flows. BEZESHKE  WERE

ERENBOTE -

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEENEREHEKEAF
liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on Em B S TR A E
the remaining period at the end of each reporting BHLmBaEs N AEEN
period to the contractual maturity date. The fEm4R - XD EH K
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HAARREBEELRES -

undiscounted cash flows.

Total

Less than Between Between contractual
1year 1and2years 2and5years  Over5years cash flows
ARRE

1FHUR 15282%F 26F5F S5EE RELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETTT ARBFT ARETTT

As at 31 December 2022 42022612 H31H
Financial liabilities tREE
Lease liabilities (including  FAE&(E
interest payments) (BEMEMHH) 7,289 1,852 1,235 - 10,376
Trade and other payables % 5 A1 H fth i [ Z08
(excluding accrued payroll (T B#HEE: 54
and other tax payables)  FEftENTHIE) 230,408 6,062 191 - 236,661

237,697 7,914 1,426 - 247,037

As at 31 December 2021 20215128310
Financial liabilities tREE
Lease liabilities (including  THE&(E
interest payments) (BHEFENF) 5143 2,127 2,812 - 10,082
Trade and other payables & 5 A1 H ft i (7008
(excluding accrued payroll (T EEEHE
and other tax payables)  FEfENTHIE) 192,079 18 6,140 191 198,428

197,222 2,145 8,952 191 208,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the

Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-

liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities

divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 asset-liability ratio of

the Group was as follows:

3

FrE€BEUARKTITIIR)
MEEREIE &)

3.2 EXER

AEEERER Z BNRRERSE
B ELENRES - ARRIRIZH
(2] 7 A A H 4 ) 5 48 BE & 12 (A
- RARERRENENGEBIAR
EEARRA

RRFXABRENER - AKE A
BEERAEXNTRROKRESHE
BITHBRNDIXBEEENRDE
% o
AEBNERABLLRERERSR
REEE - ERBBELRZAER
BIRABERERE -

M2022F K% 2021F12A31H » &
SEMNEEABLEMT :

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Asset-liability ratio BEBEHLEX 35% 38%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.
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As at 31 December

BZE12A31H
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARBTFT
Level 3 E3E
Financial assets at fair values BRAFESFABEZZSREE
through profit or loss
(“Financial assets at FVPL")
Wealth management products B E M 43,094 21,018

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
wealth management products.

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL represented
wealth management products, fair value of which
are estimated based on unobservable inputs (level
3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) The following table presents the movement in level

3 instruments for the years ended 31 December

2022 and 2021.

3

e MR ERR MR

(BREEEBPN  ESEUARETITIIR)
s R B IR ()
3.3 AFEME )
(b) TXREJHEZE20225F128

318 f2021412 A31H 1k
FENFE=ZBIANED -

Wealth

management

products

EEEm

RMB'000

ARETTT

Opening balance at 1 January 2021 ©K2021F 1 A1 ARNERVIHEE

Acquisitions INE 82,400
Gains for the year recognised in profit or loss  Ri8zs R HER B EAR Y zs 380
Disposals fank= (61,762)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 20214 12 A 3 BRIEIR &84 21,018
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 M2022F 1 A1 AR ERRIAS 21,018
Acquisitions NE 186,800
Gains for the year recognised in profit or loss  bA38z5 R ) E Uizs 1,001
Disposals e (165,725)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 2022412 A3 BHEIR &84 43,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NENE L E T eIk

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (KRB 1EBHIN - FTE & BAARE T THIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3 HBERERE®

3.3 AFEMLFE)

(9]

Quantitative information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) is as follow:

Unobservable input

FUBRGARE fEE R

Valuation technique(s)  Financial assets at FVPL
BRATEFABRS
HEMEE

ERERTABEG AKR
WAFEFE(FEIB)ME
EERWMT

Range of unobservable inputs

TABEGAYENEE
As at 31 December
R12A318
2022 2021
2022 F 2021

Expected interest rate per Discounted cash flow
annum

BHERN X

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:
the higher of expected rate of return, the higher the
fair value.

The Group manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purpose on a
case-by-case basis. At least twice every year, the
Group would assess the fair value of the Group's
level 3 instruments by using valuation techniques.

If the fair values of the financial assets at FVPL held
by the Group had been 5% higher/lower, the profit
before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have been approximately
RMB2,300,000 higher/lower (2021: RMB1,051,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) ECL of trade and other receivables and
financial guarantees

For trade receivables without remarkable different credit
risk characteristics, the Group used judgment in making
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the ECL
calculation, based on the Group’s historical cash
collection, ageing profile of the trade receivables, current
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates.

For trade receivables with remarkable different credit risk
characteristics and other receivables in groups,
management assessed the ECL by applying several
significant assumptions, including the estimation of
probability of default, loss given default and forward
looking estimates based on their knowledge about the
customers group’s credit ratings, industry information,
financial capability and payment histories, and current
market conditions as well as forward-looking information.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

B HRREE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) ECL of trade and other receivables and

financial guarantees (Continued)

For financial guarantees, the management evaluated the
distribution of expected cash flows of the financial
guarantees under multiple scenarios based on experience
of historical credit loss, current situations and forecasts of
future conditions of contract counterparties, and made
corresponding provision for ECL allowance by applying
several significant assumptions, including the cancelation
or settlement of the financial guarantees and their related
probabilities which are the major consideration to
determine the exposures at default, the expected loss
rates and the related probability weight under different
scenarios.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables and financial guarantees
and ECL in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates
made by the Group in the above areas is set out in Note
3.1.2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Current and deferred income tax

(9]

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of
the related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances predict that goodwill may be
impaired, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8, where the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating unit (“CGU") is determined based on value-in-
use ("VIU") calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates. Details of impairment assessment, key
assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (F&

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in provision of property
management services, related value-added services and city
services in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results
of the business as a single reporting segment as the nature of
services, the type of customers for services, the method used to
provide their services and the nature of regulatory environment
is same in different regions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the segments are
domiciled in the PRC and all the revenue were derived in the
PRC (2021: same).

As at 31 December 2022, substantially all assets of the Group
were located in the PRC (31 December 2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

REVENUE

Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
management services, related value-added services and city
services. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by category is as

6 WA

WATZBREMEEERY - HEEE
ARFE MW RIS PTG R IR  AREIZH
B DAL

follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET R ARETFT
Property management services Y% EIERE 480,918 350,767
Value-added services to non-property JEZE X ER
owners 151,527 311,935
Community value-added services & 1 E R 133,970 120,865
City services T AR 7S 26,505 =
792,920 783,567
Timing of revenue recognition UG A B 3R B
— Over time — BEREE 658,920 524,283
— At a point in time — A2 134,000 259,284
792,920 783,567

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from entities
controlled by Mr. Song contributed 13.9% (2021: 32.7%) of
the Group’s revenue. Other than entities controlled by Mr.
Song, none of the Group’s customers contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: same).

HE202F12A31HIEFE  BAR%E
ERHNEENRATERMANEEBRALD
13.9% (20214 : 32.7%) ° E & 2022 4
12A31BIEFE  BRRSTEMESNE
BN MEASEANEFEMASEE
A H 10% 8 A E (2021 4F : #8R]) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

6 REVENUE (continued) 6 A
(@) Contract liabilities (a) EREE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related ANEEDHERIATEWARBENES
contract liabilities: R&aE:

As at 31 December
BZ1N2A3MBLEEE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARKBTET

Contract liabilities ARAE
— Property management services — METERG 103,596 136,458
— Value-added services to non-property — FE 3 1% (8 iR 7%
owners 728 3,392
— Community value-added services — iR IEERS 5,728 6,953
110,052 146,803
(i) Changes in contract liabilities (i) AREENEt

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from
the advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

6 REVENUE (continued) 6 WA
(a) Contract liabilities (Continued) (a) ERIEE®)
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (i) HYEEAEEEIHWA
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINRNE BREHARM
recognised in the current reporting period relates to HHEAR B EERAWA o

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was SFAEMARAESREF
included in the balance of WERIZWA
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year

Property management services Y EIRRRTE 127,679 100,379

Value-added services to X FIBERE
non-property owners 3,392 812
Community value-added services ft [ R E AR S 6,953 7,125
138,024 108,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

6 REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Contract liabilities (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and value-added
services to non-property owners whose revenue are
recognised in the amount that equals to the right to
invoice which corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the Group’s performance to date,
on a monthly basis or settlement cycle. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to
disclose the remaining performance obligations for
these types of contracts. The majority of the
property management services contracts do not
have a fixed term. The term of the contracts with
non-property owners is generally set to expire when
the counterparties notify the Group that the services
are no longer required.

For community value-added services, they are
rendered in short period of time, which is generally
less than a year, and the Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of
contracts.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
was no significant incremental costs to obtain a
contract (2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 EBMEBEESHRX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) EEEFREZ (i 10) 177,305 191,931
Sales agency service costs SHERERBEAAR 47,981 87,670
Security service costs T2 HEERA 107,963 98,208
Greening and cleaning expenses LRLAE2E R 128,602 90,824
Maintenance and customer service costs HEN TP RIS A 62,042 56,883
Utilities IKEE 33,315 24,524
Listing expenses EmRAx - 14,019
Cost of goods sold 2EEmKA 23,921 24,148
Decoration business cost B ZEFE AR 18,780 6,854
Office expenses PN = 14,877 13,272
Travelling and entertainment expenses IR BAEE 6,690 7,352
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 R 7 A

— Audit services — BT RTE 1,868 1,700
— Non-audit services — A IR 1,038 1,200
Depreciation of property and equipment PR RENITE (KisE15)

(Note 15) 3,505 2,242
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 27) & & EHITE (H5E27) 1,624 1,104
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE (MizE16)

(Note 16) 1,812 1,812
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17)  #EfZ & E# 4 (i35 17) 3,391 1,594
Rental expenses related to short term B B A A REME R

leases (Note 27) (Ft5E27) 847 656
Others HAh 31,946 30,766

667,507 656,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

8 OTHER INCOME

(BmEERIN  MBESERARETITIIR)

8 EMUA

Year ended 31 December

HZ12B31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Interest income from loans to related

[] B R 77 SR B SR RIS A

parties (Note 32(b)) (BFEE32(b)) - 4,088
Interest income from loans to third parties [ 28 =5 & @I H S 4 A 372 539
Super deduction of value-added tax BE B E 2,576 2,583
Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (M 5E @) 6,319 1,055
Others Hip 396 229

9,663 8,494

(@  Government grants mainly consisted of financial support

funds granted by the local governments with no

unfulfilled condition.

9 OTHER LOSSES — NET

(a)

BRI B2 B 375 TS T 0Bt
B BES  WEMBRERD K
o

9 EfbEE —

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETE

(Losses)/gains on disposal of property,

HEWE - BE LREN

plant and equipment (B518) = (39) 8
Net foreign exchange losses YN 518 7 E BE (9,599) (2,312)
Net fair value gains on financial assets BAFEGFAEENSREE

at fair value through profit or loss B AT B 58 (B EE 3.3(0))

(Note 3.3(b)) 1,001 380
Others HAth (932) -

(9,569) (1,924)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10 EERFFX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Wages, salaries and bonuses Iﬁ - e MIEAT 144,468 162,175
Contribution to pension scheme expenses Rk &t 24 2 sz (MiE ()
(Note (a)) 13,958 13,007
Other employee benefits (Note (b)) HhE 5 @F (M5 (b)) 18,879 16,749
177,305 191,931
(a) Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to (a) A&EEHRWNBRFNESELM
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme B T N B e AE Y FE RE AR
administrated and operated by the local municipal RIRETE - AREEF B E A R]M
government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute ZETEIER - VB AEE R IKE
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the TRt ES  HRSHIRBE T
average employee salary as agreed by local municipal HRRENFHEEHEMNETE
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits DEEE o

of the employees.

(b) Other employee benefits mainly include housing benefits (b) EMiEERNBIFEETEREFNEEM
and other social insurance, festival welfare, employee HeRE - SEEMN 8T %$ %
medical check and catering expenses. EHRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 10 EBEENAXZ @
(c) Five highest paid individuals () EEEEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest A 220229F K2021%F12 A31H
in the Group included three directors for the years ended IEFE - AEEN T EZEHHMA
31 December 2022 and 2021. The emoluments payable THRBRE=RES - HZE2022
to the remaining two individuals during the years ended FR2021F12ANBIEFE - JE
31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows: MESMEATZAHFTMAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ1N2A3MBLEEE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTET

Wages, salaries and bonuses IE #FHaeNEs 1,352 1,469
Contribution to pension scheme expenses RK& st 2L 60 49
Other employee benefits Hig E&F 104 91

1,516 1,609
The emoluments fell within the following bands: IR A TE8EE R :

Number of individuals

A

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEFE

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 £
Emolument bands (in HK$) FHe GEoT)
HK$500,001-HK$ 1,000,000 781 $500,001-7%5 % $1,000,000 2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (K RBEEEAIN - FIE L EEAARETTHIR)

11 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 11 BEWA(BRA) — F58

Year ended 31 December
BZNAMBLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Finance income BB A
Interest income on bank deposits RITF A EWA 5,294 1,472
Finance costs ¥ D %N
Interest expenses FERX (1,077) (8,395)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEUWA S (BA) — BEE 4,217 (6,923)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (KRB 1EBHIN - FTE & BAARE T THIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 MiEBATA]
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 REBER2022F % 2021F12 A31 HE
December 2022 and 2021 are set out as below. TEWBATIGEEEHNET o
Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
EMRY 2/ ERf M12A318
GRS Rtit R A& RERER FEXBEREEHH hAKERE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
Directly owned:
ERER:
Kanggiaoyue Service Holdings Limited* BV, US$50,000/ Investment holding 100% 100%
15 October 2020 US$50,000 in the BVI
REURBERLR ERARRNS 50000%T/  REREBRES 100% 100%
2020410/ 158 50,000% 7T RERR
Friend Holdings Limited BV, Us$1/ Investment holding 100% 100%
("Friend Holdings") * 6 March 2020 US$1 in the BVI
ARERRARAE* ABARREE 1%t/ REBABRES 100% 100%
202053 A168 1% RERR
Indirectly owned:
BEEE :
Keanda Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$1/ Investment holding 100% 100%
("Keanda Holdings") * 11 May 2020 HK$1 in Hong Kong
Rz BRAR (TRZE])* Bk 1%/ RERREBER 100% 100%
202054118 187
Hong Kong Kanggiao Service Hong Kong, HK$100/ Investment holding 100% 100%
Group Limited* 6 November 2020 HK$100 in Hong Kong
ERRBUREREERAR* A 100787,/ REBRERR 100% 100%
202051168 10077T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 B RTE]®)
Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
EfRy/  Ef/BEf R12A318
NCEE Rt A RBRER FEEBRLEHE hARERE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo Service PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Investment holding 100% 100%
Group Co., Ltd. 1 December 2020 Nil in Henan
("Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo”) *
AEERHLEREREERAR G AR R EREER 100% 100%
(TMEREHER]* 2020612818 10,000,007t/
i
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo Service Group The PRC,  RMB507,631,579/  Property Management 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Kanggiao Yueshenghuo") ** 31 August 2007 RMB405,457,514 Services in Henan
ERHELERESEERAR PE - AR%E  RNAEYEERRY 100% 100%
(TRABtATE]) * 200748A318 507,631,579/
AE®
405,457,514 7T
Henan Kangjia Junpinle Catering The PRC, RMB1,000,000/ Catering Service 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 17 May 2017 RMB900,000 in Henan
MEEFEREERRBARAF hE - N R BB SRR 100% 100%
2017458178 1,000,0007T/
AR 900,0007C
Henan Kanggiao Jiahe Property The PRC, RMB3,000,000/  Property Management 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 25 December 2017 RMB500,000 Services in Henan
MEREERNERBERADR *** e ARE  RUEVEFERRG 60% 60%
20179128258 3,000,000/
AR 500,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

(BR=EEHI -

12 B AR &)

Registered/
issued and
paid-up capital

Principal
activities and
place of operation

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Attributable equity

interest of the Group

as at 31 December

2 1A/ 3 VA=Y S M12B31R
DEER Rt A RERER FEEBREEHEY AR B A
2022 2021
2022% 201
Henan Yuxi Real Estate Marketing The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Real Estate Marketing 100% 100%
Planning Co., Ltd. *** 14 March 2018 Nil Planning in Henan
A TREHETHRABRAR e ARH R EE 100% 100%
2018538148 10,000,0007T,/ T3
E
Henan Kanggiao Zhufu Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 2 September 2019 Nil Services in Henan
AEERABNEREERAR *** i - N SEIRIES 60% 60%
2019%9A828 50000007,/ ERR%
E
Henan Kangyun Youxuan Business The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/Nil Commodity Sales 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. *** 24 September 2019 Services in Henan
MAREERREERERAR i - N RABARREm 100% 100%
2019498248 5,000,007,/ HERS
E
Luohe Suhe Property Service Co., Ltd. *** The PRC, RMB1,100,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
22 November 2013 RMB1,100,000 Services in Henan
AR F R R BT i - AR  RAmYEERRE 51% 51%
201311228 1,100,0007T,/
ARH
1,100,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

12 B AR &)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
Efmy 2/ BRf M12831R
AEER Rt A5 RERER FEEBREEHY fhARERE
2022 2021
2022% 2021%
Puyang Junyang Property The PRC, RMB2,000,000/  Property Management 70% 70%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 13 November 2015 RMB40,000 Services in Henan
BETEGRRERB A < hE - ARE  RAmYEEERS 70% 70%
20156118138 2,000,0007T,/
AR 40,0007
Henan Kanggjiao Taichen Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. *** 24 September 2019 Nil Services in Henan
ERRERNEERARAR hE - ARE  WAmYEEERS 100% 100%
201949A248 5,000,000,/
E
Henan Kanggjiao Yuejin Property The PRC, RMB1,000,000/  Property Management 70% 70%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 10 June 2020 RMB1,000,000 Services in Henan
AEERESNEREERAR *** hE - ARE  RAmYEEERS 70% 70%
2020668108 1,000,000,/
AR
1,000,000 7T
Henan Kanggiao Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Property Management 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 28 July 2020 Nil Services in Henan
AERRNEREBRAT < - ARK SEIERIES 100% 100%
2020674288 10,000,000,/ ERRE
i3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(BR=EEHI -

12 B AR &)

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
EfERY,  ER/BEf R12A318
NGRS Rtit R A& RERER FEXRBREEHH hAKBRE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
Henan Yuequ Internet The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Technology 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd. *** 29 July 2020 Nil Development Services
in Henan
A BBERR AR AT *** e ARH NBEE Y] 100% 100%
202057A298 10,000,007, R RS
E
Henan Kanggiao Zhuyou Property The PRC, RMB3,000,000/  Property Management 67% 67%
Services Co., Ltd. *** 26 August 2020 RMB3,000,000 Services in Henan
MEERERNEREERAR *** hE - AR® SELELYES 67% 67%
202068826 3,000,000,/ ERR%
ARH
3,000,0007T
Hebi Kanggiao Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 9 September 2020 RMB2,000,000 Services in Henan
BENRRNFREERAT - AE% SEIRIES 51% 51%
20209898 5,000,007, ERRB
ARE
2,000,0007T
Zhejiang Lansheng Property Service The PRC,  RMB12,000,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Lansheng”) *** 7 February 2012 RMB5,000,000 Services in Zhejiang
MIERNERBEARAT PE AR AR 51% 51%
(DITER ) >+ 2012%2R78 12,000,007t/ ERRB
N
5,000,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 TN a] )

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
ARy, ER/BRT R12A318
NAER Rt & A RBREER IEXBREELE hARERE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou The PRC, RMB8,580,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Technology Industry Service Co., Ltd. 10 June 2002 RMB8,580,000 Services in Henan
("Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou”)***
BMERERRREEREARRR *** e AR RAmNFERRS 51% 51%
(IBMERBER ) 200266A108 8,580,000/
ARE
8,580,000 7T
Zhengzhou Jixiang Property Management The PRC, RMB3,270,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Co. Ltd ("Zhengzhou Jixiang") *** 23 October 2001 RIMB3,270,000 Services in Henan
BN ERYEERAREELA e ARE  RUEYEERRS 51% 51%
(BB ]) 2001€10A238 3,270,000t/
AE®
3,270,000 7T
Kanggiao Technology Service Group Co., Ltd. The PRC,  RMB50,000,000/ Technology 100% 100%
("Kanggiao Technology Service”) *** 25 February 2020 Nil Development
Services in Henan
FRMEREEEERAR e AE# AR 100% 100%
(TREREART )+ 202062A258  50,000,0007T,/ FIE IR
i3
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

12 B AR &)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
EMERY,/  ER/BRT RM12A318
NRER Ktk A5 RERER FEEBREEHY hARBRE
2022 2021
2022% 20216
Henan Kanggiao Aosheng Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Property Management 65% 65%
Service Co., Ltd.*** 3 December 2020 Nil Services in Henan
MERERBMERBERRR *** e ARH NEE/ES 65% 65%
2020512838 10,000,007,/ BB
E
Henan Dingfeng Property Service Co., Ltd. The PRC, RMB5,020,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
(“Henan Dingfeng") *** 29 December 2003 RMB5,020,000 Services in Henan
MEREYEREERAR e ARH NEE/ES 51% 51%
(T RE ) 2003128298 5,020,007,/ EBRY
ARH
5,020,000 7T
Henan Qiaoxu Business The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Business Management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. *** 17 September 2021 Nil in Henan
AEBREXERARAT e AR Rtk ER 100% 100%
202149A178 5,000,007,/
i3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 TN a] )

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
ARy, ER/BRT R12A318
NAER Rt A5 RBREER IEXBREELE hARERE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
Henan Railway Kanggiao Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 26 September 2021 Nil Services in Henan
AERERBNEREERAR *** i - AR iSEEE) 51% 51%
202169A268 10,000,007,/ XERRB
E
Henan Railway Kanggiao Yueshenghuo The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Property Service Co., Ltd. *** 19 November 2021 RMB510,000 Services in Henan
BB AR EREBRAR e ARH SELELAES 51% 51%
2021411 A198 10,000,007,/ ERRH
AEE
510,000 7T
Henan Kanggiao Yuezhou Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 51% 51%
Service Co., Ltd *** 26 November 2021 RMB255,000 Services in Henan
AEERENERBEERAR *** e AE# NEEERIES 51% 51%
2021%11A268  5,000,0007T,/ BERS
AR 2550007
Henan Kanggiao Jinyuan Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 36% 36%
Service Co., Ltd *** 31 December 2021 RMB500,000 Services in Henan
MEREERNERBARADR *** e AE® INEEERIES 36% 36%
2021128318 5,000,007,/ TERS
AR 500,000
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

12 B AR &)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
ARy, ER/BRT R12A318
NEER Rt & A& RBRER IEXBREELY hARERE
2022 2021
2022% 20216
Henan Yuesong Property Service The PRC, RMB1,000,000/  Property Management 60%  Not applicable
Management Co., Ltd *** 18 April 2022 Nil Services in Henan
MEREYEREERBRAR *** e ARH SELELAES 60% Gl
202254R188  1,000,0007,/ BB
E
Fugou County Rail Kanggiao Cleaning The PRC, RMB1,000,000/ Sanitation Services 51%  Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd *** 25 April 2022 Nil in Henan
FRAGDBRRERRKEARAR e ARH NEEZEELE 51% Gl
2022648258 1,000,000,/
E
Zhoukou Kangyue Property The PRC, RMB1,000,000/  Property Management 51% Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd *** 18 May 2022 Nil Services in Henan
BARGMERBERRR *** e N SELELYES 51% Gl
202245R188 1,000,007,/ ERMRH
E
Henan Kanggiao Yijiagin Property The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Property Management 51% Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd *** 1 June 2022 RMB300,000 Services in Henan
AEER—Z R ERBRBR AR < i - N SELELYES 51% Taf
202246A18 5,000,000,/ ERMRH
AR300,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bk B A5 -

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BESRNAARETITIIR)

12 B AR &)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital place of operation as at 31 December
ARy, ER/BRT R12A318
NAER Rt & A RBREER IEXBREELE hARERE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
Henan Home Online Real Estate Marketing The PRC, RMB5,000,000/  Real Estate Marketing 100%  Not applicable
Planning Co., Ltd *** 14 June 2022 Nil Planning in Henan
MEREREHERHRABRAF *** e N RARELE 100% Gl
202246A148 5,000,007,/ %3
E
Henan Kanggiao Nanshan Property The PRC, RMB1,000,000/  Property Management 51%  Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd *** 29 June 2022 Nil Services in Henan
MEREELERBERAR *** e ARH SELELAES 51% Gl
202266A298  1,000,0007,/ ERRH
E
Henan Kanggiao Weijia Property Service The PRC, RMB3,000,000/  Property Management 36%  Not applicable
Management Co., Ltd *** 14 April 2022 RMB500,000 Services in Henan
NHREERNFREERARAR HE ARE INTERES 36% T~ER
2022548148 3,000,0007,/ ERRH
AR 500,0007
& Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law. @ BIERBEREMAIEEERE -

*x Registered as sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures under PRC law.

***  Registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC law

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort

by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese

names as they do not have an official English name.

= REFEDAEEM AT IS ERERE

ok RIBPBDAREMAREALE -

HRYETARXEHE  HEARMNE
XEBMDASEERERNBEETX

B ZRER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(BR=EEHI -

13 PSRRI

A SRUAARETITIIR)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MALLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARETTT
Current income tax BVERFTIS AR

— PRC corporate income tax — B EMERH 29,682 35,295

Deferred income tax (Note 18) EIEFTSHRL (FE18)
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMER (12,378) (3,697)
17,304 31,598

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s subsidiaries in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) were incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and
accordingly, are exempted from the BVI income tax.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong did not
have assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: same).

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
the PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The
statutory tax rate is 25%. Under the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax Law, certain subsidiaries of the Group
qualified as small enterprises earning low profits in the PRC are
subject to a reduced income tax rate of 20%. Income tax
expenses is recognised based on the management’s estimate of
the weighted average effective annual income tax rate expected
for the full financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on
6 December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their
foreign investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax
of 10%, a lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China are incorporated in Hong Kong
and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group has not
accrued any withholding income tax for these undistributed
earnings of its subsidiaries in Mainland China as the Group is
able to control the timing of distributions from subsidiaries and
is not expected to distribute these profits out of Mainland China
in the foreseeable future.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities as follows:

e MR ERR MR

(Br BHE45884N -
13 TSR @)

RIER 2007 F 12 A6 HBEMACDERT
SEEEBMAAD) PRERNMA TR
200841 A1 B AR EEMFIE M EE
IMEEE D IRH AR BB BN 10% K TE T
Fis®i - mMEPBRARHBATNERE
ERARIERBEMAKL  THFEFEH
HEBBBHRELHENERE - AJEA
BEMS%ENMEREE - ARAE
B EH B AR SRR - BB
RA] LRI KZEFNE D IKZEH E
WL LA T - BN BN B ph ez
R B b BT B R R R 5 R B A FT IR
RITEHFTIS R o

BESRNAARETITIIR)

7K 5= I B9 Bk A5 B R R BB S R E AR
BRNAEE BB BN MNEFSHEX
EENERSE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Profit before income tax & BT 15 %5 B A 83,009 120,157
Tax charge at applicable income tax rates %3 F3 1> 2 P58 R U 1 20,898 30,224
Tax effects of: Mg 2
— Expenses not deductible — RANF A
for tax purposes 1,273 4,026
— Write-off of previously recognised — ARITRERHELE SR EE
deferred tax assets for tax losses R RSB R vk B 1,059 =
— Preferential income tax rates applicable — i@ AR E THEB A FIMESR
to certain subsidiaries Frig i % (5,306) (2,652)
— Utilization of previously unrecognized — — I LA BT A FE SR A UL 38 55
tax losses (620) =
Income tax expenses FrSHif X 17,304 31,598

The effective income tax rate was 21% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: 26%).

HE2022F 12 A3 BILEEHNERE T
BIEA21% (20214 : 26%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

14

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended

31 December 2022.

The Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021. Diluted earnings per share was equal to basic earnings

per share.

(BmEERIN  MBESERARETITIIR)

SRR EF

FRREREF THIRE E 2022 F12 A 31
BIEFEARRQRES ARGEFERUE
BT BRI ESETE -

HZE2022FK2021%F12A31BIEFE
R AW EEAL ] BT RN B E T B
f&fn - BREERFENEREREF -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Profit attributable to owners of RNARHEE AEEFDE
the Company (RMB’000) (AREBFT) 54,121 83,885
Weighted average number of ordinary B 31T AR A I 5 21
shares in issue (in thousands) (Fm) 700,000 606,027
Basic and diluted earnings per share RNARIHEE AERFER
attributable to the owners of BRERNREERF
the Company during the year (ABRARETIITR)
(expressed in RMB yuan per share) 0.08 0.14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15 WEKZE
Furniture Leasehold Office
Vehicles  and fixtures improvements premises Total
B GEREE HENEEE BAYE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  AR®TR ARMTR AR®Tr AR%TR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021%12831H

LEE
Opening net book amount HEESE 701 3,422 945 4,000 9,068
Additions NE 43 2,918 284 - 3,250
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A A 14 113 17 = 144
Disposals e - (13) - - (13)
Depreciation charge TESH (169) (1,621) (358) (94) 2,242)
Closing net book amount HARREEE 594 4,819 888 3,906 10,207
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318
Cost A 1,945 11,406 1,454 4,094 18,899
Accumulated depreciation e (1,351) (6,587) (566) (188) (8,692)
Net book amount EEEE 594 4819 888 3,906 10,207
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022% 128311

LFEE
Opening net book amount HOEmFE 594 4,819 888 3,906 10,207
Additions NE 162 3,264 3,835 - 7,261
Disposals & - (134) - - (134)
Depreciation charge FEXI (326) (1,759) (1,193) (227) (3,505)
Closing net book amount R REFE 430 6,190 3,530 3,679 13,829
As at 31 December 2022 RW2022%512A318
Cost B 2,107 14,536 5,289 4,094 26,026
Accumulated depreciation e (1,677) (8,346) (1,759) (415) (12,197)
Net book amount IR R E 430 6,190 3,530 3,679 13,829
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(@) Depreciation expenses were charged to the following

categories in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

(BR=EHERN  IESBEAARETITIIR)

15 MZENFZE @

(@) FEMXEHABAZERRER
FHIAER -

Year ended 31 December
HENAMBLEE

2022 2021

2022 % 20214

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTR AREF T

Cost of sales SHE A 2,592 1,284
Administrative expenses TR 844 950
Selling and marketing expenses SHE REHA 69 8
3,505 2,242

(b)  No property and equipment were pledged as security for
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Br=EHEHI

e MR ERR MR

BESRNAARETITIIR)

16 REME

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MALLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARKETT
Non-current assets — at cost FEREBEE — AL
Opening balance at 1 January BRI 454 3,893 5,705
Depreciation charge TEXH (1,812) (1,812)
Closing balance at 31 December ®12 A 31 BREIRE# 2,081 3,893
As at 31 December BZE12A31H
Cost B 8,620 8,620
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (6,539) (4,727)
Net book amount REFE 2,081 3,893

(a)

(i)

The investment properties represent commercial properties
held under leases, which are held for rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group (Note 27).

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of investment
properties were RMB8,729,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB10,381,000).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, as certain of
significant inputs used in the determination of fair value
disclosure of investment properties are arrived at by
reference to certain significant unobservable market data,
the fair value of all investment properties of the Group is
included in level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy.

(i)

REDEENAEETHANEE
WE - DEFEESKREAREAE
=5 (KEE27) -

HZE2022F128318  KEWE
AT E A AR KS729,0007T
(2021F 12 A831H: AR#
10,38,1,0007T) °

DNFEER

M2022%F K2021%12A8318 -
HREEREMFEAFEMANE
FERBASBEIZ2EZETEAT
ABEMBEEmMELE - NEEFf
EREMENDFEAMARTEF
EERNE=H -
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques

Fair values of the investment properties of the Group are
generally derived using the term and reversionary method.
This method is based on the tenancy agreements as at the
respective valuation dates. The rental income derived
within the tenancy agreements are discounted by
adopting term yields and the potential reversionary
income are discounted by adopting appropriate
reversionary yields for the period beyond the rental period
in the tenancy agreements. Potential reversionary income
and the reversionary yields are derived from analysis of
prevailing market rents. The prevailing market rents
adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings,
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

The higher the market rents or the lower the term yields
and reversionary yields, the higher the fair value.

There is no change in the valuation techniques during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

A SRUAARETITIIR)

(ii) fEERM

AEBREMENRFE-RENA
FHERERESH « ZTERMN
BEHEAHNEERZREE - R
HEBZOENHARNESNES
WARFE R REER - SIS
BEERNBREm S - BEERK
ABREBENERKE R - &
ERWARERK G E HERH
BRSO - [EPMRAHER
miEHEE2E B RMEREMA
LMEAR T EEBER -

5T M 4 Bl a5 R SR
HEME - AATFERES -

HZE2022F12A31HIEEE - 4
BRI EES) (2021 F : M) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 B EE

Customer
Computer relationships
software and backlog Goodwill Total
TEAEN EFEEAREE HE #@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ201E12ANBLEE
Opening net book amount B FE 1,450 5,593 13,819 20,862
Additions NE 215 - - 215
Acquisition of subsidiaries hELnEING 36 22,100 14,499 36,635
Amortisation iy (635) (959) - (1,594)
Closing net book amount BARERHFE 1,066 26,734 28,318 56,118
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021%512F31H
Cost B%N 2,993 28,300 28,318 59,611
Accumulated amortisation ESea (1,927) (1,566) = (3,493)
Net book amount RS 1,066 26,734 28,318 56,118
Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ202F12B31BLEE
Opening net book amount HURmFE 1,066 26,734 28,318 56,118
Additions NE 191 - - 191
Amortisation iy (591) (2,800) - (3.391)
Closing net book amount HARREEE 666 23,934 28,318 52,918
As at 31 December 2022 #2022 12F318
Cost B A 3,184 28,300 28,318 59,802
Accumulated amortisation ESa (2,518) (4,366) - (6,884)
Net book amount REEE 666 23,934 28,318 52,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 B EE #®)
Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the B AEMED T AGE2ERREZNA
following categories in the consolidated statements of TFEER -

comprehensive income:

Year ended 31 December
HENAMBLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Cost of sales HEKA 2,933 1,138
Administrative expenses TR X 458 456
3,391 1,594
(a) No intangible asset was restricted or pledged as security (a) #EZ=2022% 128318 BHEER
for liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021: same). BEERAEMZRS=AERR

(20214 : #AR) o

(b) The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair (b) FrEEARBEBLERKENELDT
value of the identifiable net assets of acquired subsidiaries MR R EEFEATFENTS A
is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was comprised of the FRECIERTE - BB A -
followings:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A831BLLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETE

Acquisition of Zhejiang Lansheng UG BB T BE 5% 9,967 9,967

Acquisition of Zhengzhou Kanggiao LT B8 01 s B 9% B DM =5 4
Guotou and Zhengzhou Jixiang 3,852 3,852
Acquisition of Henan Dingfeng U B n] g S L& 14,499 14,499
28,318 28,318
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(9]

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisitions of
subsidiaries and was determined at the acquisition date
respectively, being the difference between the purchase
consideration and the fair value of net identifiable assets
of acquirees. Goodwill has been assessed based on the
related acquiree’s cash-generated units for impairment
testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units were
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined a projection
period of five years based on expected development trend
of the acquiree and industry experiences. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated terminal growth rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the related industry in which the cash-generated units
operate. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant industry.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as
at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Zhejiang
Lansheng Jixiang

B FEMER

e MR ERR MR

(BrBEIRRIN - FTESBUARE T ITIIR)
M| E E ()
(c) BERERR

Fﬁ%%$‘$lﬂ&ﬁ§ﬁﬁ§"ﬂﬁ%?$

YRR EEESEE  ABER
BEFWE S AT BAIEEFENRD
FEZENEZRE - mEDHERIER
WHRETT IR S E A BAOETTRHA
TERERIS o

ReELELNAIRESEDER
EREEEEE - ZHTERA
RIZE IR B4t /E 2 B F RN TE
EMELZERRARESRE - E
EERBHRKETNRHERBES
MITHEZR BETRLFNER
B o M A FHRMIR S M OIRE
T3Pt RO fh ET A IR IR R R AETTHE
B AERXTHEBRCELSM
ﬁﬁi“‘**ﬁﬁ$ﬁfﬁ??%EG§Hﬁﬂ?i@i &
o PEMMMBERERAN - &
BR T EMRRTT R AN ERR

MN2022%12 8318 - ERBE
SR ERANBRREROT ¢

Zhengzhou

Kanggiao
Guotou and
Zhengzhou Henan
Dingfeng
B BRI B4R
AR

Expected growth rate of revenue Y A ByFEERE K& &
Terminal growth rate after 5 years 5414 8425 1% & &

Pre-tax discount rate FRATAL IR X

-8.2%-0.1% -7.4%-15.2% 0.7%-35.9%
3.0% 3.0% 2.00%
26.1% 23.6% 22.0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BIEEE @)
(c) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (c) BERBEANRE)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as BE2021F12H318 - £AEE
at 31 December 2021 are as follows: STEATEEAMABRERLT
Zhengzhou
Kanggiao
Guotou and
Zhejiang Zhengzhou Henan
Lansheng Jixiang Dingfeng
SR RS B 4%
ATER  FEMNERE ] SR
Expected growth rate of revenue  Y¢ A #)38 Hg & & 0.7%-6.4% 1.0%-14.0% 2.5%-70.5%
Terminal growth rate after 5 years 5 1& )48 im 1 & & 3.0% 3.0% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate T ATBL IR = 24.1% 20.7% 20.2%
According to the result of the impairment testing, the BIEREIZNER HEELS
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated units MRS AT Bl & 5B R A E R (E
exceed their carrying amount (i.e. the headroom) as (BPERER) AT -
below:

As at 31 December

BZ12831H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREETTT

Zhejiang Lansheng T EE R 5,503 12,711
Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou and M BRI B 4% R BB 4
Zhengzhou Jixiang 1,621 6,264
Henan Dingfeng VAl I 9,415 2,969
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(9]

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth
possible changes to the key assumptions of the
impairment test and the changes taken in isolation in the
VIU calculations that would remove the remaining
headroom respectively:

e MR ERR MR

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

17 B EE®)

(9]

R R AR ()

EEEC B ENAETHRE
BT o TREFIRER HARESE
RH AR B LN EREEFES
BEErENEF e D RIMBRER
THE :

As at 31 December

BZ12A318
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Zhejiang Lansheng AL ES B
Annual revenue growth rate FIP AR =X
Pre-tax discount rate MR ATALEE =

Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou and B A B B BP M & A

Zhengzhou Jixiang

Annual revenue growth rate FUT AR K
Pre-tax discount rate A AT AL IR &
Henan Dingfeng Sn] g Sl

Annual revenue growth rate FI AR =X
Pre-tax discount rate MR ATALEE =

Based on the above assessment and the historical result,
our directors have not identified any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based that would cause the carrying amounts
of the cash-generated units to exceed their respective
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: same).

-45.2% -110.1%
7.7% 20.3%
-14.3% -23.8%
7.2% 85.1%
-4.3% -0.8%
4.5% 1.2%

RIE EaETE RBERE  EFW
KREBIEAATKESEERNEE
BB MR eEE - BAim
YRS ELBUMNERERLH
K ER20225F12 A31 B Y@
£%8 (2021412 8318 : 8E) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a)

As at 31 December 2022, there was no offsetting of
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities balances within the same tax jurisdiction (31
December 2021: same). The analysis of deferred income
tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities was as

(a)

(BmEERIN  MBESERARETITIIR)

18 IRIEFTISME

HZE2022F12A31H » A—#%
AEBEBRANFEERLEMSHE
ERREMENA EEREENE
W(2021 %12 A318 : HRA) < &
EFEHEERELEFSHA RN

follows: TR
As at 31 December
HZ=Z12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFIT
Deferred income tax assets; FIEFTISTEE ¢
— Deferred income tax assets to be ~ — #7712 1& B AU [E #Y
recovered within 12 months EEFTISTHEE 20,804 9,485
— Deferred income tax assets to be  — R 12 # A& U E HY
recovered after more than BIEFTE R EE
12 months 848 503
21,652 9,988
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEFTSRAE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — 47 12 {8 A UL [El &9
recovered within 12 months ELETSRAaE (714) (714)
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — 7 12 & A 12 4= HY
recovered after more than FEEFTSRHEE
12 months (5,600) (6,314)
(6,314) (7,028)
15,338 2,960
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 EILEFTER (&)
(b)  The net movements on deferred income tax account were (b) EIEFTEREPHFEEIWNT ¢
as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MALLEE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

At the beginning of the year =] 2,960 4,788
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB E A A - (5,525)
Credited to profit or loss FFABE 12,378 3,697
At the end of the year FER 15,338 2,960
(c)  The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (0 # £2022%F K&2021F12H31H
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, was IEFE  BEMSEHEERBED
as follows: BEIT
Deferred income tax assets BEEMEBHREE
Allowance
on doubtful Net impact
receivables and of right-of-use
financial Accrued assets and
guarantees expenses Tax losses lease liabilities Total
EREEERN
B REEN HESEN
BB EREE % BIERX F¥e @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  AR®TR  ARRTR  ARMTz  ARWTR

As at 1 January 2021 BZ2021%5181A 2,345 1,781 1392 1,026 6,544
Credited/(charged) nBe/(GtA) B

to profit or loss 1,692 - 2,087 (335) 3,444
As at 31 December 2021 BZ20215128318 4,037 1,781 3479 691 9,988
As at 1 January 2022 HZ202F1518 4,037 1,781 3,479 691 9,988
Credited/(charged) to profit ~ $1& B /(3 A) Bz

or loss 11,734 - (485) 415 11,664
As at 31 December 2022 BZ202%12831H 15,771 1,781 2,99 1,106 21,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (KRB 1EBHIN - FTE & BAARE T THIR)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 IRIEPTISH ()
() (Continued) (o (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities EBIEFTEHR AR
Value of
Excess of intangible
value of assets
property from identified
acquisition in business
of a subsidiary combination Total
W kg — A

op PSR ) RERE 6

YIREE o Bl 9 R
B AE|E #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T ARBT T

As at 1 January 2021 BZ2021F1 818 (403) (1,353) (1,756)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZE 14 239 253
Acquisition of a subsidiary  UgEE-F A A] - (5,525) (5,525)
As at 31 December 2021  #EHZE 202195128318 (389) (6,639) (7,028)
As at 1 January 2022 EZ=2022F181H8 (389) (6,639) (7,028)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE 14 700 714
As at 31 December 2022 #Z2022512H831H (375) (5,939) (6,314)

(d) As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not recognised (dy #HZE2022F12H31H  KEERE
deferred income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax RERLEFTSHREERN RETTHEE
losses of RMB7,172,000. KRANRET,172,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 ZERE SR T A

As at 31 December

BZ12A318
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Financial asset at amortised cost REBHRRATENESHEE

Trade and other receivables (Note 21) B 5 N E Y TE (ffsE21) 598,869 419,729
Restricted cash SRHIRE 12,100 1,325
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) Re RREEEY (FIE23) 345,910 540,833

956,879 961,887

Financial liabilities at amortised costs Z#tAFH A ENEREE

Trade and other payables B 5 M E b & 5118
(excluding accrued payroll and (T BIEEST IEM
other taxes payables) HE A IER
I EREOBERE) 236,155 197,529
Lease liabilities (Note 27) HEEEFE27) 9,518 9,785
245,673 207,314
There was no offsetting of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 HZE2022F12A31MHRAERKESRME
December 2022 (31 December 2021; same). EMaf(2021F12 8318 : #HE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (fk B EIERASN - FTE £ 5UAARE T TIIR)

20 PREPAYMENTS 20 TETFRIA
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Prepayments FEAT IR
— Prepayments to third parties — B=FENFKIE 73,038 66,674
Less: non-current portion of prepayments @i : TERTRIBHIERBIZ 5
(Note (a)) (MH3E (@) (69,730) (65,629)
Current portion of prepayments FERFIBERRBNE 3,308 1,045
(@) As at 31 December 2022, the non-current portion of (@) EZE2022%F12H318 BN

prepayments mainly represented a prepayment of
RMB65,629,000 for the acquisition of equity interest in a
property management service company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (K RBEEEAIN - FIE L EEAARETTHIR)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 B 5 N EMEWEIE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) Z 5 WA (K3 (a))
— Related parties (Note 32(d)) — BB 77 (FfRE32(d)) 264,844 189,168
— Third parties —B=75 225,712 131,857
490,556 321,025
Less: allowance for impairment B BRI R ERE
of trade receivables (49,313) (14,033)
441,243 306,992
Other receivables H fth FEURRIB
— Amounts due from related parties — FE AR 5 28 121,460 74,837
— Cash advances to non-controlling — FBEIE R R AIR S BN
interests 230 230
— Deposits — & 34,028 3,565
— Cash advances to a third party — RAE=FReBM - 20,926
— Others — = 15,316 15,219
171,034 114,777
Less: allowance for impairment BE - E A EUGRIE R E R
of other receivables (13,408) (2,040)
157,626 112,737
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b el siE 598,869 419,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (B

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services income, related value-added services income and
city services income.

Property management services income are received in
accordance with the terms of the relevant services
agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the
issuance of demand note.

Value-added services income is usually with a credit term
ranges from 0 to 180 days.

City services income is usually with a credit term ranges
from 0 to 90 days.

As at 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on recognition date were as follows:

SEERI

21

(a)

A SRUAARETITIIR)

B 5 I E A e WK

NIH (&)

B RWFIATI2RRR Y EERE
ARISHA - 8RR (B AR TS WA
MRISHA ©

YEERE R WA RRIZE AR
T % O GRS UCER Y = 0 568 38 AR A%
B BR A5 W A FE A 1) 3% 2 3 HE B
ST

EEREKABEEBOE 180K
RIEEHR -

RIS M ABE A0
EEHR -

F|90 KK

M2022%12 A31H  BSREKER
EAER A SRR ST

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Up to 1 year T8 14 295,043 270,691
1 to 2 years 1224 167,219 34,902
2 to 3 years ZE3F 19,250 9,099
Over 3 years 3ELAE 9,044 6,333
490,556 321,025
As at 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables (0 M2022%12A318 - 5 KHEA
were denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts of EWHIBAARKEGE  EHRHE

trade and other receivables approximated their fair values
(as at 31 December 2021: same).

Information about the impairment of trade and other
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was
disclosed in Note 3.1.2(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (K RBEEEAIN - FIE L EEAARETTHIR)

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 WRAFEFABRSNERE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
As at 31 December
HZ=Z12A31H

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETIT
— Wealth management products — By EM 43,094 21,018

As at 31 December 2022, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represented unlisted financial products purchased
from commercial banks (as at 31 December 2021: same).

HZE2022F12A318 ' HBAFEEA
BENEMEERENEERTEERED
JELTERAER20219F12A31H :

@) e
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BeEMIBEEEY
As at 31 December
H#Z12H31H

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T Tt AREFIT
Cash at bank and on hand RITMFBERS 345,910 540,833

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's cash at bank and on
hand was denominated in the following currencies:

MR2022F 12 A31H » REEBNRITR
FHEINE TIA T EEEE -

As at 31 December

HZE12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFIT
RMB AR 335,455 528,052
HK$ o 8,922 11,369
Us$ ETT 1,533 1,412
345,910 540,833

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2022
BREBEEEEARAT/ S _FFRH

209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& REIEEAIN - FiE £ EBUAARET TIIR)

24 RESTRICTED CASH 24 ZRH R E

As at 31 December
BZ12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARKETT

Guarantee deposits for property MEBEIHBRZES
management projects 2,177 1,325
Frozen accounts for litigations FABIZFHRERP 6,498 -
Co-managed account EIERP 3,364 =
Others Efb 61 =
12,100 1,325
(@) All the restricted cash were denominated in RMB. (@) FTEXBRHMIASHUAREE
E o
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 PR
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value
ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
BER
ZEREA ZEREE ZEAEE
HK$ RMB'000
BT AREFIT
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022 2021 F % 2022F12 A31H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 8,370
Issued: 81T
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022 2021 F K% 2022F 12 A31H 700,000,000 7,000,000 5,831
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 OTHER RESERVES

e MR ERR MR

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

26 HniE

Foreign
Capital Share Statutory currency
reserves premium reserve translation Total
BARE R aE EERES MEBRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT AEETFT ARETT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2021 ®2021%151A 5,000 - 2,982 = 7,982
Issue of shares in connection with BB (v B/7 7 B
the capitalisation issue R = 4373) - = (4,373)
Issue of shares in connection with ~ E27KA 7] EiiA H)
the Company's listing e = 518,588 = - 518,588
Currency translation differences GlhE e = - - (2,606) (2,606)
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT RS AR (M ()
(Note (a)) - - 5711 - 5711
Capital injection from shareholders ~ AR FRETE
of the Company 25,600 - - - 25,600
Deemed distribution to the then B EALE LR RRIEH
shareholder of the Group arising R DR
from the reorganisation (5,000) - - = (5,000)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12531H 25,600 514,215 8,693 (2,606) 545,902
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%181R 25,600 514,215 8,693 (2,606) 545,902
Currency translation differences ERAE R - - - 10,353 10,353
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT EE S BYBIR (3 ()
(Note (a)) - - 5195 - 5195
Dividends to shareholders of RATRERE (MEF29)
the Company (Note 29) - (21,000) - - (21,000)
As at 31 December 2022 ®20225128318 25,600 493,215 13,888 1,747 540,450
(a) Statutory reserve (a) ZERES

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC group entities are required to appropriate
no less than 10% of their profit after income tax
calculated under the PRC accounting rules and regulations
to the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total
of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward
from previous years or to increase the capital of the
respective the PRC Group entities.

BB+ BEEREARR LR - FE%
EEREAKTIRREPESR
AR R PIFTERFEREZFE10%
BAZERHBE EEZEEHR
;Hrf»@%'ﬁ A EEMEARE50% B
c RBBRERUAER  EERE
i@"ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ@;na%ﬁ@%
BRBMETEEEEENEARN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

27 LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

(BR=EHERN  IESBEAARETITIIR)

27 &

() REEERBRACHERMN
=8

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2022 2021
2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Investment properties REWHE 2,081 3,893
— Leased properties (Note 16 and (i)  — FAE Y2 (FisE 16 K& ()
Right-of-use assets EHEEE 3,013 3,130
— Properties (Note (i) — W ()
5,094 7,023
Lease liabilities (Note (i)) HEAES (M)
Current BNEA 7,131 5,002
Non-current JERNER 2,387 4,783
9,518 9,785

(i)  The Group leases certain properties from both
related parties and third parties on fixed periods
over one year, of which the ones held for rental
yields and not occupied by the Group are recognised
as investment properties and the others are
recognised as right-of-use assets. Lease liabilities
represent the corresponding liabilities of the leased
assets.
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BERREEEREERAT I T _FFR

() AKRBRBEBIRE=NR
—FUAELWEERREES
THE  EhHEHEHERS
Ko 3 FE 7N 5 T4l I RO P 3
BRARREYE - MEAMDA
BRAEREEE HEAR
EIEHEEENRERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

27 LEASES (Continued) 27

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

e MR ERR MR

(BrBEIRRIN - FTESBUARE T ITIIR)
A )

(b) FEXHEWRBEBRPEERHN
=8

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARKETT
Rental income from investment wEMEESHA
properties 2,369 3,216
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & ¥ & (M3 16)
(Note 16) 1,812 1,812
Depreciation of right-of use assets EREEENE (ME7)
(Note 7) 1,624 1,104
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEE
(included in finance costs) (GFABE K A) 684 1,015
Rental expenses relating to short-term ER45 HATH E A RINTE &5 2
leases (included in cost of sales and (5t ASEERAMITHF )
administrative expense) (Note 7) (BFsE7) 847 656

(c) The cash outflow of rental expenses relating to short-term
leases and the settlement of lease liabilities for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB3,305,000 (2021:
RMB5,928,000).

(c) EZE2022%12A31MBILEE - &
A EsENEeRAY KEESR
BEHEERRLDAARE
3,305,000 (20214F : A R ¥
5,928,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& REIEEAIN - FiE £ EBUAARET TIIR)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 5 MEMENFIA

As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Trade payables (Note (a)) B2 5508 (FiaE @)
— Related parties (Note 32(d)) — Bg:E A (5E32(d) 248 627
— Third parties — =7 74,243 66,113
74,491 66,740
Other payables H b fETFRIE
— Amounts due to related parties — BT RER 5 B RIE
(Note 32(d)) (MI3E32(d)) 13,302 21,890
— Payables for acquisition of a subsidiary — W% — RSBt B AR89 FE (T 5k 1E 4,594 4,201
— Deposits from third parties — F=HEs 59,755 42,796
— Accrued payroll — EEITE 38,471 40,974
— Provision for ECL allowance on — W IERHTER(E AEX
financial guarantees S 1,088 =
— Other tax payables — HAb eI 5,133 10,239
— Others — Hith 82,925 61,902
205,268 182,002
Total 1=t 279,759 248,742
Less: non-current portion of other W AR BRI SERBH S
payables (5.747) (5,450)
Current portion of trade and B S NE A IR R EE S
other payables 274,012 243,292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Fx R BRI - FrE £ EBUAARE T TIIR)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

29

(@  Asat 31 December 2022 and 2021, ageing analysis of the
trade payables (including amounts due to related parties

which were trade in nature) based on invoice date were

B 5 M EM RN IR @)

(@) 2022 K%2021F12A318 » &
REZBHENNE S ENFE(E
EEE SIS R RN Z0E)

as follows: HERRER DMTAA T -
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Up to 1 year BB F 70,927 65,594
1 to 2 years E2F 2,730 929
2 to 3 years 2E3F 640 82
Over 3 years 3ELE 194 135
74,491 66,740

(b) As at 31 December 2022, trade and other payables were
mainly denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximated their fair values
(31 December 2021: same).

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022
of RMBO0.057 per ordinary share have been proposed by the
Board of the Company and subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 6
September 2023. The final dividend will be distributed out of
the Company’s share premium. These consolidated financial
statements have not reflected these dividends payable.

A final dividend of RMBO0.03 per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2021, totalling RMB21,000,000 were
declared at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 30 June 2022 and paid in July 2022. These final dividends
have been distributed out of the Company’s share premium.

(b) P2022F12H318 ' B5NKHAM
BNREZEUARSE S
REAMEMNFIENREERLIEA
FE (202112 318 : R) °

29 A

EEeCDEBRERE20225F12 A31
HIEFESRETBRARK0.057TH
REIRR B - WAFR2023F9 6 H £
THARRFRFEFAS FEARER
R o ZERER B AR FHAR
MmBERIRE - ZFHREMBRRILAK
REZERMRE

HE2021F12A31HIEFE 2 RHAK
BEREBERAARK0OZT  AHFEA
R #21,000,0007T + 720224 6 A30H
BITNARARERFAGLEIR - I
202257 AR - ZEREKREDHK
RA T IR AD B R EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M T

(BR=EEHI -

30 I”REmEA

A SRUAARETITIIR)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
BEEENRE

(a) Cash generated from operations (a)

Year ended 31 December
BZE1N2A3MALEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20215
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
Profit before income tax FTS AT F S 83,009 120,157
Adjustments for: HEIEE
— Depreciation of property and — MERFHENITE (B3 15)
equipment (Note 15) 3,505 2,242
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — EREEENTE (ME27)
(Note 27) 1,624 1,104
— Depreciation of investment — REMERE (K 16)
properties (Note 16) 1,812 1,812
— Credit impairment losses — ERREEREFHE
(Note 3.1.2(ii) (BF3E3.1.26i)) 47,736 6,542
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EREEEE(HEF17)
(Note 17) 3,391 1,594
— Interest income from loans to related ~ — T FME =
parties and third parties (Note 8) FSWA (KHEE8) (372) (4,627)
— Losses/(gains) on disposal of property  — HEYE KR ER
and equipment (Note 9) B/ (W) (HIEE9) 39 (8)
— Gains from financial assets at fair —BAFEF AR
value through profit or loss (Note 9) SREER (FHFE9) (1,001) (380)
— Share of profit of investments — (hEAEREARD
accounted for using the equity method RE W (1,021) (244)
— Net foreign exchange losses (Note 9)  — SMEE 8% %8 (HH3E9) 9,599 2,312
— Finance (income)/costs — net (Note 11) — B1& (W A) /B — 3%
(BF=E11) (4,217) 6,923
144,104 137,427
Changes in working capital: EEEeH
— Restricted cash —XBHRE (10,775) M
— Inventories —FE 61 (1,075)
— Contract liabilities —&R&E (36,751) 32,564
— Trade and other receivables — B S M EAEWRIA (226,741) (58,809)
— Prepayments — IR (2,263) (956)
— Trade and other payables — BSMEMERNFE 32,393 6,398
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 34 (FAR) /fti@LhES (99,972) 115,548
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e R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (K RBEEEAIN - FIE L EEAARETTHIR)

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 30 WEen&EM@
(b) Net debt reconciliations (b) EBEFEHER

Liabilities from financing activities

REEBAR
Cash
advances Cash and
Bank Other Lease from cash
borrowings payable liabilities ~third parties  Sub-total  equivalents Total
YL ReRRS

ROER RMEGHE  AEAR  ReBX Nt SEY it
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AR®TR ARMTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTZ

As at 1 January 2021 R202151A18 346,984 = 13,185 = 360,169 134,758 494,927
Cash flows Ree (346,984) - (5272) 3,435 (348,821) 410,993 62,172
Addition of leases RELEM - - 857 - 857 - 857
Accrued interest expenses ez S B % = - 1,015 = 1,015 = 1,015
Addition of acquisitions 715 - 4,201 - - 4,201 - 4,201
Foreign exchange INERZ

adjustments - - - - - (4.918) (4,918)
Asat 31 December 2021 1202112 A31H = 4201 9,785 3,435 17,421 540,833 558,254
As at 1 January 2022 R02F1A1H - 4,201 9,785 3,435 17,421 540,833 558,254
Cash flows REhE - - (2,458) 24 @214 (195677)  (197,891)
Addition of leases HEE - - 1,507 - 1,507 - 1,507
Accrued interest expenses  [E:F| S F% - 303 684 - 1,077 - 1,077
Foreign exchange SNEHE

adjustments - - - - - 754 754
As at 31 December 2022 12202212 A31H - 4,594 9,518 3,679 17,191 345,910 363,701
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NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

31 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has provided three
financial guarantees to counter parties, with a total maximum
credit risk exposure of RMB608,732,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB575,869,000).

(a)

A subsidiary of the Group (”Subsidiary A”) has provided a
joint guarantee for the financial liability of a related party
(Note 32(b)) (“Liability A”) which covered the principal,
interests, penalties and other incidental expenses of
Liability A (the “Related Party Guarantee”). Liability A has
other guarantors and mortgagors, and the pledged assets
included land use rights, commercial real estates and
equity interests of certain related parties. As at 31
December 2022, the maximum credit risk exposure of the
Related Party Guarantee was RMB388,336,000 (31
December 2021: RMB362,000,000).

The debtor, together with Subsidiary A and other
guarantors and mortgagors of Liability A, was sued by the
creditor in 2022, and has reached an agreement with the
creditor in January 2023 that the maturity of Liability A
was extended to 17 December 2024. In March 2023, the
Related Party Guarantee was discharged by the creditor.
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A SRUAARETITIIR)

31 BRHER

HZE2022F 128318 A5ECRH
HEFH=EARBER  ZeERRR
Wi O 4258 & A R 608,732,000 7T (2021
#12H31H : AR#¥575,869,000) °

(a)

REBWAMB AR ([ARBAF)
EABE N ERE ([ARE])
(MtsE32(b)) 1Rt T E B ER - %
BRAEZETABRENAE - FE
1 3R A0 E BT A5 2 AR ([ BA B 5 1
R1) - ABVE B EMIERAFE IR
A BREESELIWERRE &
A RN L BRSSO AE - HLE
202212 A318 @ BBt A ERE
&A1z A R i D 4 388,336,000
(202112 A31H: A R #
362,000,0007T) °

BBANEARBRRIARAGE K
MR AR A R 2022 F 15
EHEARRE - WK 20234F 1 AEf&
EANEK T BREANTIEA
& & £2024%F12 A17H ° 2023
F3IH - EEANRBRT R E
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

31 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

(b)

A subsidiary of the Group (“Subsidiary B”, whose 51%
equity interests are acquired by the Group in October
2021) provided joint guarantees for a financial liability
("Liability B”, amounting to RMB192,172,000) and a bank
loan (“Liability C”, amounting to RMB28,224,000) of two
related parties of the then shareholder of the Subsidiary B,
respectively, which covered the principal, interests,
penalties and other incidental expenses payable of Liability
B and Liability C (the “Third Party Guarantee”). As at 31
December 2022, the maximum credit risk exposure of the
Third Party Guarantee was RMB220,396,000 (31
December 2021: RMB213,869,000).

b-1) Liability B has other joint guarantors. Because of
Liability B’s overdue in 2022, upon the application
by the creditor of Liability B, the Zhengzhou
Intermediate People’s Court issued a freezing order
on August 8, 2022 against the relevant guarantors
including Subsidiary B, freezing each guarantor’s
bank deposit for up to RMB186,224,556.
Approximately RMB4.8 million in Subsidiary B's bank
account was frozen as at December 31, 2022. In
December 2022, the debtor of Liability B has
reached an agreement with the creditor that the
debtor would settle Liability B by transferring certain
equity interests of an entity under IPO to the creditor
and signed the agreement with the creditor in
January 2023; after that, the lawsuit has been
withdrawn through and the frozen assets of the
debtor, Subsidiary B and the other guarantors have
been released. As at the date of these financial
statements, the creditor is still assessing whether the
value of the equity interests of the entity under IPO
is sufficient to settle Liability B. The management of
the Group, with reference to the assessment of the
fair value of equity interests of the entity under IPO
by an independent third-party valuer engaged by
the Group and the legal opinion issued by an
independent third-party lawyer engaged by the
Group, considers that the value of the equity
interests of the entity under IPO is sufficient to settle
Liability B and that the guarantee liability of
Subsidiary B was released at the same time of the
settlement of Liability B in January 2023.

e MR ERR MR

(B=HBERPIN  IAEEZBEAARETITIIR)

31 IR

(b)

ANEBHBKE A R(BHWEB A
Al ES51%MBREAAEERR
2021 F 10 REE) H Rl ABHIB A
A E MRF A% R A AR (E BB 5 /0 mb st
E(B@E |- 28 AAREK
192,172,000 7% ) FIERITE Z ([ C @t
& £% AR 28,224,0007) 1%
HTEEER ZERREZTBM
BEMCRERMNHAS - FIE - 50
HMEMKHEER(E=ZFE
1) #ZE2022F 128318 §
= HERNEAERARRB A AA
R # 220,396,000 7T (2021412 A
31H : AR¥213,869,0007T) °

b-1) BEEHFHEMERERA - B
RBRIE N 2022F 8 Hf - f&
BELEMIEREAR R - B
MR ARER R 20224F 8
A8 BYBEBHERRIEN
MAEREERATERES
RESERANRITIERS
= AR#186,224,556 7T ° &
Z2022%F12HA31H  BHIE
RAEIRITERP A AR 480
BT REE - 2022F12 8
BENE M ETS A BLERE AR
W& B ABBBARGEE
ANEE R IPO B B2 A 3 L IS
RERRBEEE - WH 2023 F
THEEBERBEAZZEHE: 2
% ZFABWED - B
A BESEB A RIFIEALERA
WREMNEECWER - H
EXRFHBHERBE  EEA
EHGER IPO B R IERE
BEEEENAEEBRE &
BAEBEEFNELE =
B ELEIR=N/N Y e
A& A A EE G R A
EEEBBIE=HEME
BERZREERE  REZER
IPOERHREEETASE
BELE - HBMIEB R RIAIER
EEE2023F1H)/5EBR
&M [RI R AR BR o
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e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(BR=EEHI -

31 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

b-2) Liability C has other joint guarantor and mortgagor,
and the pledged assets are commercial real estates.
Moreover, the Group would be entitled to acquire
the remaining 49% equity interest of Subsidiary B
at zero consideration, and the realisable value of the
49% equity interest is considered enough to shield
the Group against almost any loss as a result of the
guarantee related to Liability C. Because of Liability
C’'s overdue in 2022, and the debtor, together with
Subsidiary B and other guarantor, was sued by the
creditor. According to the court’s decision in
December 2022, Subsidiary B and the other
guarantor and mortgagor should bear joint liabilities
for the settlement of Liability C, and their assets
were subject to enforcement. On 28 July 2023,
bank deposits of Subsidiary B amounting to
RMB11,095,000 have been executed by the court.

The management of the Group adopted a multi-scenario
discounted cash flow approach under the 3-stage model
when evaluating the expected credit losses of the financial
guarantees for the year ended 31 December 2022. Several
key assumptions were adopted for different scenarios,
including the cancelation or settlement of the financial
guarantees and the related probabilities which are the
major consideration to determine the exposures at
default, the expected loss rates and the related probability
weight under different scenarios. Based on the above
assessment, the Group made a provision for ECL
allowance on financial guarantees of RMB1,088,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Based on the
circumstances prevailing in the historical period and the
expected liability in respect of guarantees, the
management of the Group assessed the losses related to
the financial guarantees that may be required to be
provided in previous year and considered the impact was
insignificant, therefore no retrospective adjustment was
made.
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31 IR

(b)

(%)

b-2) CRLE B HthHEFERAM
A BEREEAREEML
Eoltih EEBEBEENUT
¥ B W EBKH B A 7 H &
49% KRR HE - 7% 49% AR HE Al
BREBEERATTHBERH
ECRE 2 EREWHAE
EEMIBL ARCHRER
2022 @ B - B A EE B fT
BRI E AL PR A — RB A
EHREARREF o IRIBIEFT 2022
F12AWH L BH B A A
HE—ERA - KEARY
CRIEMBEREESET
HEEWHESIBIT ° 20234
7H28H 'BHIBARINAR
# 11,095,000 JT 48 77 17 3% 1
SEBTSRHIAT

RNABEEEATIE2022F EH
BEROEFERBERRFHEAT =
BEEATHZBEENTRRER
7% SETRBSERAT AT
BRERR BERTRBRBONEE
ZEEREZR2022F12 A31HE
STEREMBRIERETERNIE
FERARE - REFE THIERE
KRERMERE - 426 EABERD
Il AEBR2022FEETIRT
[MERmEERL — MBERE RIE
% | AR #1,088,0007T ° AN & [H
EEEEANELHMEERNBERLR
HIBFTpt Lt BRI R AR R
EE - FHETRARIFEE A REF A8
ERTIRMBI ISR RIBR - REFE
SETEK - SRR ANFEH
MK P EITBPTE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

The following individual/entities were related parties of

the Group that had significant balances and/or

transactions as at/during the years ended 31 December

e MR ERR MR

(Br BHE45884N -
32 BERR 5

(a) BHEREFBKSNEER

BESRNAARETITIIR)

ATEA BERAASERE #
F£2022% K2021512A318 1k
FENBERREHRR IR 5NH

2022 and 2021: Bes
English Name Chinese Name
KL BB hXHE BB
Ultimate controlling shareholder BRARERRR

Mr. Song REZE

Entities controlled by Mr. Song REEFEFINER

Beijing Kanggiao Tongdao Shenghe Consulting Group
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Tongdao”) and its subsidiaries

Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo Holdings Limited

Zhengzhou Kanggiao Yidu Educati